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LOUIS J. CONGI~M1 MAYOR 
December 17. 1999 

CITY OF KENNER 

1 lonorable Mayor and City Councilpersons City of Kenner, Louisiana 1801 Williams Boulevard Kennel. Louisiana 70062 

1801 Williams Boulevard Kennel Louisiana 70062 (504) 468-7200 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Kennel Louisiana, for the fiscal year-ended June 30, 1999 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness arid fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material aspects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of' operations of the various funds and account groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activities have been included. The Conlprehensivc Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the most recent GFOA Certificate, the City's organizational chart, a list of principal officials and a map of the City. The financial section includes the geucral purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report on the financial statements and schedules. The statistical section inclndcs selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multiyear basis. The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with fl~e provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non- Profit Organizations". Information related to this single audit, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, fiudings and questioned costs, and auditor's leports on compliance and on interual controls, are included in the single audit section of this report. CITY OF KENNER The City is the largest incorporated area in Jefferson Parish, a sulmrban parish (county) in the New Orleans Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area. It is bounded on the north by Lake Pontchartrain, on the south by the Mississippi River, on the east by unincorporated Jefferson Parish, and on the west by St. Charles Parish. The map of the City which is enclosed in this Introductory Section reflects a total area of approximately 15 square miles. Since 1946, the City has contained the site for the New Orleans International Airport. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES The City is a unit of general local government under the Census Bureau's criteria. It is a home rule charter city incolporated under the constitution and laws of the State of Louisiana on July 1, 1974. A seven person council and an elected mayor govern the City, as reflected in the mganizational chart of the City's administrative departments included in this introductory section. The City's department directors with the'. exception of the Police Department, which is governed by an elected chief, report to thc Chief Administrative Officer who in tuna reports directly to the M ayor. 
ENN 



This report includes all funds and account groups of the City. The City provides a full range of services. These services include police and fire protection; sanitation services; the consta'uctiou and maintenance of highways, streets, and infrastructure; recreational activities and cultural events. As required by generally accepted accounting priuciples, the financial statements of the reporting entity present the primary government (the City) aud its component unit. Component units are defined as legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable. The criteria used in determining whether financial accountability exists include the appointmeul of a voting majority of an organization's governing board, the ability of the primary government to impose its will on that organization or whether there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens to the primary government. Fiscal dependency may also play a part in determining financial accountability. In addition, a component unit can be another organization for which the nature and significance of its relationship with the primary government (the City) is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund is included in the City's reporting entity as a blended component unit because of its operational relationship with the City and because its exclusion would render the financial statements incomplete or misleading. THE REPORT FORM The authoritative promulgations by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) were applied in the preparation of this report. As ontlined in these promulgations, the City's funds are grouped into three broad fired types (governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary) and two account groups (general fixed assets and general loug-tenn debt). In general, governmental funds measure income (the flow of current financial resources), whereas proprietary funds measure wealth (the preservation and changes to capital). This report is prepared in a pyramid form whereby at the base are statements on individual funds. Next the combining statements combine each fund of the same type to give totals for each of the seven generic fund types. Finally, the five statements under the heading "General Purpose Financial Statements" summarize these seven generic fund types and two account groups, and other significant accounting information. MAJOR INITIATIVES AND ECONOMIC OUTLOOK For the Year Sales tax revenues grew steadily during the year which provided new funds to cover ever increasing costs. Also, other smaller revenues continued to grow. The City again received significant revenue from the Treasure Chest Casino. These funds are dedicated to capita outlay and debt service. The expansion of the Civic Center, which was funded by a contribution of city and state funds, was completed. Additional improvements were made to the City's infrastructure as well as recreational facilities and new equipment was again provided for various departments. Sewerage improvements, which were being funded by a low interest loan from the l.ouisiana Department of Environmental Quality, were also completed. Construction of the new police complex and jail continued as well as the new fire station in North Keuner. Another parcel of land was acquired for the new city park being developed in North Kenner. Also, drainage improvements being funded by a federal graut continued in South Kenner. The merger of the Kenner Firemeu's Pension and Relief Fund into the Louisiana Firefighter's Refirement System was completed which improves benefits 10 the City's firefighters and also reduces the potential liability to the City. 



For the Future The City's sales tax revenue is expected to continue to steadily grow. This will help offset increases in the costs of providing services to the public. The riverboat casino is expecled to continue to provide significant funds for further capital outlay Last year it was noted that the City received two federal grants totaling seven ($7) million dollars. Five ($5) million is for further sewerage improvements and will be used to expand the City's newest trealment plant and close down the City's two older plants. The expansion will add enough capacity to accommodate the City's needs in the foreseeable fature. "]'he other lwo ($2) million is for a planetarium and will help further develop the City's Rivertovva area. These projects aze expected to begin early in the year 2000. Funds remain in the budget for a new gym in South Kenner The City entered into a new contract effective July 1, 1999 with Professional Services Group which operates the City's sewerage system. The new contract reduces the City's costs which will provide funds for additional capital improvements to the sewerage system. Costs to collect and dispose of garbage will rise significantly in the coming year due to increased costs for collection of garbage and due to the closing of the landfill the City uses to dispose of garbage. "Ihe costs for the new landfill are significantly higher. An increase was recently approved in the City's service charge for garbage collection to cover these increased costs. In November 1999, the voters approved the renewal of a property tax for roads for 15 years, which will provide the City with significant new funds 1o maintain the roads lhroughoat the City. This property tax is currently being collected in Kenner by Jefferson Parish to debt service Jefferson Parish bonds, which were issued to do roadwork in Kenner. Jefferson Parish will loan the City $500,000 per year for 1999 through 2002 to do road maintenance in the City. In 2003, the Parish's property lax will expire and the City will start collecting it. At that time, the City will repay the loans fiom Jefferson Parish and then the funds generated each year will be available for the City to do roadwork. The property tax cunently generates approximately $2 million per year. FINANCIAL INFORMATION Inlenml Accounting Contro Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure thai the assets of the City are protected t?om loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The inlernal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. Single Audit As a recipient of federal, state and parish financial assistance, the City also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management. I believe that the City's internal control structure adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable assurance of proper l~cording of financial transactions. As a part of the City's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure, including thai portion related to federal financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the City has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The results of the City's single audit for the fiscal year-ended June 30, 1999 are included in the Single Audit Section of this report. 



Budgetary Control In addition, the government maintains budgetary controls, The objective of these budgetary controls is tu ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City's governing body. Activities of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, 13ebt Service Funds and Enterprise Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. Project-length financial plans are adopted lbr the Capital Projects Funds. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is at the fund level, except for the General Fund which is at the departmental level. Any amendments to the total budgeted expenditures of a department require Council approval. The Mayor can approve changes to the budget wilhin a department, as long as the "total is not changed. The government also maintains an encumbrance accounting sys̀tem as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Besides comparing current year expenditures to the prior year, comparison to budget is of paramount importance in a government's financial reporting. The City Council annually adopts a budget for each governmental fund type (except capital projects are budgeted on a project basis) and proprietary type funds (except for the Internal Service Funds). Budgetary accounting is not used for the Self Insurance and Health Insurance lntcmal Service Funds because nlanagement considers effective budgetary control achieved since their amounts, which are charged back tu other funds, are included as expenditures in each Fund's budget. Budgets are adopted by June 1 for the fiscal year which begins the following July 1. Revenues and expenditures are budgeted on the modified accrual or accrual basis as appropriate for the fund type. Encumbrances of ̀the cun'eln year are recorded as obligations against budgeted appropriations and are included in the colunms titled "budgetary" in the statements in the financial section of this report. Unencumbered appropriations in any year are dedicated to capital outlay of the department and budgeled in tile following yeaL GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS Legal restrictions and generally accepted accounting principles require the operations of recurring governmental fimclions to be presented in separate fimds. However, it has been found that it is much easier to grasp the stale of govermnental finances when data from different funds is consolidated on one report. The General Fund, special reveuue funds receiving resources from taxes (specifically, the One Percent Sales Tax of 1984, "the Garbage Collection, Roads and Bridges, Street Lighting and Fire Department Funds), and debt service funds each contain pan of the entire scope of recurring governmental operations. Special revenue funds receiving resources fiom intergovernmcntal or miscellaneous revenue and capital improvements funds are used for non-recurring outlays of the City. The following schedule presenls a summary of revenues of funds used tu report recurring governmental operations for file fiscal year-ended June 30, 1999 and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation tu prior year reveuues. 
Revenues Amount Taxes Licenses and permits Intergovemulental Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Special assessments Interest Miscellaneous Total 

$ 44,617,388 2,399,576 2,366,336 1,736,289 1,846,210 29,272 1,185,654 263,410 $ 54,444,135 

Percent of Total 81.95 4.41 4.35 3.19 3.39 .05 2.18 .48 

Increase (Decrease) from 1998 $ 2,659,556 35fl31 (256,762) 89,807 339,530 61,766 - 19,588 100.00 $ 2,9492=.~_16 

Percent oflncrease DLD~rease) 6.34 1.51 (9.79) 5.45 22.53 5.so 8.03 
The increase in taxes was due to growth in sales taxes, parking taxes, franchise fees and revenue from the Rivelboat lutergovernmental revenues decreased due to reduction in law enforcement grants received from the state. Fines and forfeitures revenue increased due to additional traffic fines 



~/]le following schedule presents a summary of expenditures of funds used to report recurring governmental operations for lhe fiscal year-ended June 30, 1999 and the percentage of increases and decreases in relalion to prior yea/ alYionllts. 
Exnendilures 
Genelal government Public safety Public works ttealth and welfale Culture and lecrealion Transit and urban development Miscellaneous Debt service: Principal lnleresl and fiscal charges Agenl fees '/'otal 

Amount 
$ 7,718,928 20,823,712 7,062,176 789,516 3,862,742 436,047 1.546.418 3,346,203 2,466,262 13,50_0 $ 48,065,504 

Percent of Total 
16.07 43.32 14.69 1.64 8.03 .9l 3.22 6.96 5.13 .03 00.00 

Increase (Decrease) from 1998 
$ (430,001) 4,283,987 199,940 20,211 2.927 27,241 (397,806) 146,174 (134,598) 

Percent of Increase LDecrease) 
(5.28) 25.90 2.91 2.63 .07 6.66 (20.46) 4.57 (5.18) 

General goverument expenditures decreased due to decreased legal fees in comlection with various litigation and a reduction in expenditures to professionals, such as engineers, as some of these expenditures have shifted to capital projects funds. Public safely expelldilures increased due to expendilmes in conneclion with the new police complex and jail undcJ constlllclion. Public works expenditures increased due to additional purchases of new equipment and increased costs of garbage collection and disposal. Miscellaneous expenditmes decreased due to a reduction in general insurance costs and the write-off of delinquent assessment receivables in the prior year. General Fund "/'he following lable sunmmrizes the changes in fund balance of the General Fund compared to the prior fiscal year 
Revenues Expenditures Net other financing sources(uses) 

1998 $ 32,274,982 (30,358,526) $34,751,244 (33,992,327) 851,326 940,004 2,767,782 698.921 

FUND BA1,ANCI INCREASE .(_D_ECREASE) $ 2,476,262 (3,633,801) 88.678 (1,068,86I) Beginning fund balauce 16,867,155 I_A~9 634,937 _~2,767,782 
Ending fund balance $ 19,634,937 $21,333,858 ~ ~698,921 The reasons for the changes in the General Fund revenues and expenditures are the same as the changes in revenues and expenditures for recurring governmental operations which were explained earlier. 



"/'he significant increase in the General Fund fund balance reserved for encumbrances and the decrease in time fund balance reserved for capital expenditnres were due to encumbering the remainder of the contract for the new police complex and jail. The significant balance in the General Fund fund balance reserved for capital expenditures is due to funds remaining iu del~altmem budgets, wlficb by ordinance are dedicated to those departments for future capital outlay, the largest portion being for the police department. The General Fund fund balance designated for subsequent riverboat in the year-ended June 30, 1999 but budgeted year expenditures is primarily for funds accrued from the for expenditures in the subsequent year when they are received. The General Fund balance which is unreserved and undesignated increased due to revenues from sales lax, fines and interest received over the anaount budgeted. Focusing on the General Fund alone does not preseut a complete picture of the City's expenditures for recurring government functions. Part of the expenditures for this purpose are accounled for in selected special revenue and debt service funds and are included on the schedule of expenditures shown previously. Special Revenue Funds The fund balance of the Special Revenue Funds did not change significantly, although the portion reserved for encumbrances increased due to a new fire truck which was ordered from funds which the fire department had been setling aside for that purchase. Debt Service Funds The Firemen's Pension Merger Debt Service Fund was established to account for repayment of a loan fiom the State to repay time Stale the unfunded liability of the Keriner's Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund at the lime of the merger with the State System. Capital Project Funds ']'he fired balance of the General Capital Projects Fund increased due to pm~jects being funded by the revenues from time riverboat. The operating transfers out were transfers to debt service funds as a portion of the riverboat revenues arc dedicated to retiring debt. The fund balance in the Capital Projects Funded with Bond Proceeds fund decreased due In cornpletion of several projects. EutemT, rise Funds The Department of Wastewaler Operations has a deficit in retained earnings due to depreciation taken on assets which were purchased through EPA grants under which the majority of the funds were provided by the EPA. qlle Civic Ceuter Operations Fund also has a deficit in retained earnings due to depreciation taken on assets acquired through bond proceeds. lnlemal Service Funds The retained earnings in the Health Self-Insurance Fund increased due to increased charges to departments for employees' insurance costs. Fiduciary Funds The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund fund balance decreased due to it being merged into the Louisiana Firefighters Retirement System as noted earlier. The amounts remaining are in a continget~cy fund to pay the benefits of retired members until they become eligible for benefits under the State System and to cover other contingencies. 



The following table summarizes the changes Jn the City's bonds and certificates outstanding, notes and other debt during the fiscal year: 
Outstanding July 1, 1998 Issued During Year Paid During Year Outstanding June 30, 1999 $48,891,000 $ 2,960,000 $ 3,346,000 $48,505,000 Of the total amount outstanding, $1,395,000 was in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, $28,025,000 was in Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, $11,315,000 was in sales lax bonds, $4,085,000 was in excess revenue bonds, $29,000 was in Paving Certificates, $125,000 was in notes, $2,957,000 was in pension merger payable, and $574,000 was in capital leases. Please see Note G in the Notes to Financial Statements for details of changes in long tenn debt. The ratio of net long-term debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita are useful indicators of the City's debt position. This data for fl~e current fiscal year and the prior fiscal year is as follows'. 
Fiscal Yea1 1999 1998 

Net Long-Term Debt $37,916,240 40,909,508 
Ratio of Net Long-Term Debt to Assessed Value 11.08% 12.17% 

Net Long-Term Debt Per _Capita 510.86 551.49 
Net long-term debt includes general obligation bonds, special tax bonds, and special assessment debt with governmental commitlnent less amounts available in the Debt Service Funds. The ratio o1" net long-term debt to assessed value and net long-teml debt per capila decreased due "to the fact tha't payments were made during the year in excess of the debt incurred in connection with the Firemen's Pension merger. The City's ad valorem debt is rated Baa by Moody's Investors Service. This rating was changed from Baal in 1988 The City's sales tax debt is rated "AAA" by Standard & Poor's Ratings Group. CASIt MANAGEMENT The City has a fiscal agent contract to handle its operating accounts. Transaction balances are kept in sweep accounts, where balances are swept into overnight repurchase agreements earning Federal Funds rates less ] 50 basis points, and investable balances are kept in money market accounts. The City, however, still reserves the right to remove investable funds and invest them at other institutions. ~Ihe balances in the money market accounts and the repurchase agreements are reported on the balance sheet as "investments". Funds being held as reserves on bonds and amounts being accumulated to pay principal and interest on bonds are held in trust accounts. The trustee invests the funds under the direction of the City. Bond proceeds being used fol construction are invested in U. S. Government Securities for terms based on file draw down schedules of the projects. The investments are made using the sel~eices of a financial investment advisory company with which the City has an agreement 10 provide these services. Total interest earnings for all the governmental fund types and expendable trust funds of the City decreased to $1,557,624 this year from $1,561,567 last year. The decrease is due to lower interest rates although the available cash balances increased during the current year. Construction funds increased as funds are available for various projects from the riverboat revenue. Other funds increased due to the increase in the General Fund's fund balance explained earlier. 



The following table shows the changes in total cash and investments for those funds by purpose, during the fiscal year: 
Sinking funds Construction funds All other funds RISK MANAGEMENT 

Balance on 6/30/98 $ 6,346,851 $ 5,495,264 $ 15,846,060 
Balance on __6/30/99 $ 6,474,404 $ 6,513,723 $18,429,235 

Increase (Decrease) $ 127,553 $1,108,459 $ 2,583,175 
To account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss, the City has established a Self-Insurance Fund (an internal service fund). Under this program, the Self-Insurance Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of $250,000 for each general liability claim, with commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund up to $10,000,000; coverage for up to a maximum of $250,000 for each auto liability claim, wilh conmaercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund up to $10,000,000; and coverage for up to a maximum of $300,000 for each worker's compensation claim, with commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the ftmd up to $1,000,000. The Self-Insurance Fund also provides coverage for auto/physical damage which requires a $1,000 deductible per department per occurrence. The remaining balance on fl~e claim is paid by the Self-Insurance Fund. See Note P in the Notes to Financial Statements for additional details. LEGAl, COMPLIANCE The Single Audit Act of 1984 (P. L. 98-502) and related 1996 Amendments requires reports by the Auditors on compliance and on the internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, the City's compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and tile Schedule of Expenditmes of Federal Awards. These reports, along with the City management's responses to the non-compliance findings, are presented in the Single Audit Section of this report. INDEPENDENT AUDIT Louisiana municipalities not audited by the Legislative Auditor are required by La. R.S. 24:517 to have conducted annually an audit of their accounts by a certified public accountant. Moreover, the City Charter (Section 2:28) requires fllat the Council shall execute a contract each year with a certified public accountant or a firm of certified public accountants for an examination of the accounts of the City to include all funds appropriated by the Council. These requirements have been complied with and the opinion of the fima of Rebowe & Company, Certified Public Accountants - A Professional Colporation has been included in this report. AWARDS The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year-ended June 30, 1998. This was tile sixth consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report satisfied both genelally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to detelanine its eligibility for another certificate. 
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Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Presented to 
City of Kenner, Louisiana For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada to government units and public employee retirement systems whose comprehensive annual financial reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest standards in government accounting and financial reporting. 
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REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CONSULTANTS 
3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ P.O. Box 6952 ' Metairie, LA70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 , Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Council City of Kenner, Louisiana We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group financial statements of the City of Kenner, Loulsiana, as of and for the year-ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Kenner's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with generany accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general-purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the City of genner, Louisian,n as of June 30, 1999, and the rcsulls of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 17, 1999 on our consideration of the City of Kenner's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. 
Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of the City of Kenner, Louislana, taken as a whole, and on the combining and individual fund account group financial statements. The accompanying financial information listed as supplementary information and statistical data in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements of the City of Kenner, Louisiana. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits" of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information, except for that portion marked "unaudited", on which we express no opinion, has been subjected Io the auditing woeedures applied in the audil of the 
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general-purpose, combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose, combining and individual fund and account group financial statements taken as a whole, 
The year 2000 supplementary information on page 66 is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and do not express an opinion on it. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the City is or will become year 2000 compliant, that the City's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the City does business are or will become year 2000 compliant. 
December 17, 1999 



GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND A('COUNT GROUPS June 30, 1999 

ASSE I'S AND OTIIER ])EIHTS Assets: Cash Equity ill pooled cash and ilweShlacnls ]nvesjlnenlS P, eceivables (net, where applicable, of allowances for uncollcclibles) Ad valo[cm taxes Aeeounls I nlergovernlBenla] Special ass( SsinelHs Special ass~:ssnlenls - dellnquenl Intctest Olher l)ue from other funds Inventory, al cosl thepaid items I)cposils Property, plant and cquiplllent (nct, where applicable, of aceunlulatcd depreeialion) Otbcr debits AmouIll available: in Debt Service Funds hi Special Revenue Funds Anlounl to bl; provided for icOrenK:nt of ]ong-lerlll debt 

GOVERNMI!NTAI. FUNI) TYPES 
GI'NERAL SI'ECIAI REVENUI 
133,179 622,754 1,034,918 120,666 4,039,039 2,478,679 
4,659,182 3,100,656 26,697 24 3,664,010 71,148 14,276 

TOTAl, ASSI!'I S ANI) OTI IER I)EBITS $ 26,743,129 
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277,298 2,229,152 1.400 

DEBT SERVICE 
229,173 280,014 5,965,217 

CAI'ITAI, I'ROJliCTS 
1,028,356 1,593,579 3,891,788 

665,113 203,845 29,271 4,826 70.408 5 5,037 712,215 



~ROI'RIETARY FUND TYPES 
+N'I'I~RI+RI S 
483,490 807.927 

23.244 
444,806 240,396 40,245 3.669 
72,800,679 

NTERNAI SERVICE 
FIDUCIARY FUND 'I'YPES ACCOUNT GROUI'S 

3.639.070 
54,877 

TRUST AND AGENCY GENERAl FIXEI) ASSE'I S GIiNERAI, ,ONG - TI~RM I)EI]'I' TOTAl. (MEMORANI)UM ONI,Y) 
187,766 $ $ 1 092.620 
,306,051 301,787 
9,142 60 
4,97 

6,938,178 125.000 

3,405,794 3,837,105 1.106.413 
1,306,051 4,814,059 6,815,888 29,271 26,697 13,997 1,727,201 7,016,181 71,148 60,892 3.669 
6,938,178 125.000 

75,944,456 $ 4,515,023 $ 2,902,398 $ 97,676,458 $ 50,445,420 $ 281,156,923 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINED BAI,ANCE SI IEH" - AI 3, FUND TYPES AND ACCOLINT GROUPS (CONTINUEI)) Juno 30. 1999 

,IAIHI,H IES, EQUHY AND O3"111 R CRIGDH'S dabilitics: Accounts payable Contracls payable Retainagcs payable CtlTI elll portion of lnoFIgagc note payable (!uHenl portion of notes payable Accrued liabilitics Esfimated claims payable Dcposils on futme evenls Due Io other funds I)uc to olher govcnlnlcllts Refunds payable I)efe~led revenues Other liabilities COlllpenssled absences Notes payaNc Mortgage nolo payable General obligation and special sales lax bonds Special asscssment debt with govenlnlcllLal eonnnit ment Capital leases 

GOVERNMliNq'AL FUNI) TYPES 
GENERAl. 
,291,73 190.01 
591.459 
,252,350 794,639 ,152,970 136,111 

SPECIAl. REVENUE I)EBT SERVICE CAPIIAI, PROJI~?IS 
230,960 $ 23,751 $ 482,518 10.427 74,464 

250.000 380.988 
875,000 132,093 

TOIAI. I.IABII.I'I IES 5,409,271 4,759,300 Ikluily and othe/cledits: Investment ill general fixed assets Contributed capital Retained earnings Unreserved (deficit) }:trod balances Reselved for I~ncumhrances lnvenloly, Prepaid items Noles payable - Section 108 loans Rcstrictcd expenditures Capital expenditures Dcbl service Et))plo)'ecs' polls Jot1 botlcfits Unreserved Designated for subsequent years' cxpendilures Designated for capital additions and improvenlenls [lndcsignaled 

7,921,429 71348 14,276 886,320 5,325,128 
715,437 1,400 125,000 635,544 

3.110.461 1.897.989 

405.844 

q (Yl AI. Rli3 AINEI) EARNINGS/ I:IJND BAI.ANCE 21,333,858~ 3,391,892 6,938,178. 3 (3q AI EQUFI Y AND O'1 It fiR CREI)ITS 21,333,858_ 3,391,892 6,938,178. ] O'1 AI. 1 IABILI'III;S, EQUHY AND OTI liaR CIII~DITS $ 26,743,129 $ 8,151,192 $ 7,344,022 
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937 970 

257,675 



I~I~.OPRI EJ ARY FUND 3YPES 
iNTI(RPRISI: INTERNA SIiRVICE 

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS 
"1 RI3ST AND AGENCY GENERAl FIXEI) ASSETS GF.NERAI, ,ONG - TIiRM I)EB3 I"OI'AI. (M EMORANI)UM ONLY) 

224.741 $ 768.436 $ $ $ $ 
17,651 1,790 61,219 47,997 16,576 
20,151 2,117 21.723 

2,367,188 3.744 490,148 201,192 52,943 

713,965 3,139,368 1,744,283 
(17,949,395) 1,375,655 

(17,949,395) ,375,655 

58,115 

97,676,458 

75,23(I,491 1,375,655 1,158,115 97,676,458 
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1,940,180 3,082,795 44,820,000 29,272 573 173 50,445,420 
29,272 573.173 67 555.42 
97,676,458 93.179.886 
8,894,541 71,148 15,676 125,000 1,521,864 5,325,128 6,938,178 1,158,115 
6,239,180 4.021.618 
213,601,502 



I(I!VI!NUliS 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OLJISIANA COMBINED S3"ATI~M ENT OF RF.VI!NUES, EXPI~NI)ITURF.S, AND CI IANGES IN FUNI) BAI.ANCES - At .I, GOVERNM ENTAI~ FUND TYPES Year Ended June 30. 1999 

O'I'AI. REVI';NI.JE8 ~Xl'l !NIIIItJRI~S Curlcnt GClleral govelnlngnl Public safety I'ublic works I lealth and welfare Culture and rcelcafon "1 ransit and urban development Miscellaneous Debt service Principal Interest and fiscal charges Agclll fees Miscellaneous "I O'1 AI. I~XPI!NI)I I UI(I';S XCI'SS (I)EFI(II~NCY) OF REVI!NL/ES OVER ((INI)ER) IgXPIiNI)ITURES O'IIII';R FINANCING SOURCFS (USES) Operating transfers in Operating Iransfers out 

GOVERMENTAI. FUNI) "I'YI'I~S 
GENERAl SPECIAl REVI';NUI 26,855.187 $ 2,399.576 2,366,336 438,353 1,846,210 717,286 128,296 
7,718.928 6,942,062 2,696,614 789,516 3,862,742 436,047 1,546,418 

33,992,327 
758.917 
7,207,586 (6,267.582) "1 OTAI. OTIII';I( FINANCING SOUI(CES (USES) 940,004 XCESS (I)I!FICIENCY) OF I(I~VENUES AND O3"IIER I:INANCING SOURCES OVI'R ([JNI)I~R) I!XPISN DITUI/I~S AND O'111EI( FINANCING USES 1,698,92 FUND BAI .ANCES A'I I~EGINNING OF YEAR AT ENI) OF YEAR 9.634.937 
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I)EI~T SERVICI $ 
29,272 369.622 125.448 

3,346,203 2,466,262 1.500 12,000 
(I,471,9931 
.301,135 
,301,135 

6.938.178 



CAIqTAI, Iq(OJECTS 
422,980 
348,944 35,000 806,924 
192,243 2,146,286 877.199 ,312,372 

6,176,297 (I,525,238) 
929~883 
5,566,972 

3"OTAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 30,684,817 2,399,576 2,789,316 438,353 1,846,210 29,272 1,435,852 288,744 39,912,140 
7,911,171 9,088,348 3,573,813 789,516 5,175,114 436,047 1,546,418 3,346,203 2,466,262 1,500 12,000 44,346,392 
4,685,018 7,792,82G 6,892,198 
2,457,946 
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"101AI, REVENUES EXPI NI)I 1 URI':g Curlenl Genoal govemmenl Public safety Public winks Ilea0h and welfare cllltule alld rcclealion "] rallSll all~ uiball dcv~lollln rlll Miscellaneous 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA COMBINlil) STATEMI!NT OF REVENUI~S, EXPI'NI)ITURES, AND CIIANGES IN FUND BAI.ANCES - BUDGH' AND ACTUAl. GENERAL, SPI!CIAL REVJ':NUI! AND DFBT S}!RVICE FUND TYPES Year lindcd June 30, 1999 
GENERAL FUND 

$ 26,855,187 2,399,576 2,366,336 438,353 1,846,210 717,286 128,296 

ADJUS1 MEN] TO BIJDGETAI(Y BASIS BUDGH ARY 

255,599 5,728,050 584,824 1,061 79 078 

VARIANCE I AVORABI .E (UNFAVORABI ,E) $ 1,567,683 112,099 547,488 37353 405,305 167,286 34,?26 34,751,244 31,878,904 2,872,340 
7,974,527 22,670,112 3,281,438 790,577 3,941,820 436,047 

33,992,327 6,633,791 40,626,118 EXCI~S8 (I)EFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNI)ER) EXI'ENI)I l URbS 758,917 03 JIER FINANCING SOURCI S (USI,S Oj~~l allng Ilansfc[s ill ()peralh~g transfers Otll 7,207,586 (6,267,582) qOIAL O] I IlK FINANCING SOURCES 940,004 I,,XCI(SS (1)I,,FICIENCY) OF RI VI,:NUES AND OI1 IER fINANCING SOURCES OVIR I,:XPI NDI I URI S AND O'1 IIER I.INANCING USliS HIND BALANCES Aq liE(fINNING O1' YEAR 9.634,937 

8,928,550 25,545,539 3,282,611 802,047 4,479,784 372,453 1,552,648 
(6,633,791) -- (5,874,874) (13,084,728) 

954,023 2,875,427 1,173 11,470 537,964 (63.594 21,051 

7,207,586 6,265,305 942,28I -- (6.267,582) (6,072,756) 094,826) 

1,671,510 21,306,447 21,306,447 
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REVI(NI/ES 'la~es ]nlclgovcnul~ental Chalgcsfor services lnlclCSl Mi~ceU~llcotls "lOq AI, kI{VENUliS EXPI,:NI)I I |IRI(S Cunenl Public safely Public works (:U0tlt~ alld [ccrcaliOll It llban dcv~]opnlcill 

CITY OF KL:NNER, LOUISIANA COMI]INI!D STATEMI~NT OF REVI!NUES, IiXPF.NI)I'I URF.S, AND CtlANGES IN FLIND BAI.ANCES - BUI)GE'I AND ACTUAl. GFNliRAL, SI'ECIAI. REVENLJE AND I)FBT SERVICE FUNI) TYIW, S (CONTINUEI)) Year l':nded June 30, 1999 

30IAI. I~xlgiND]] DRES EXCESS O] REV[:NUES OVER EXPENI)I I URES OIlIEI( FINAN(:IN(] SOL/RCI'.S (USES) Oper alin8 II ~liSfci $ 01 Operallng IFall Sf~1S OUI ] f)] A1 O]1 IER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

ANNUALI ,Y BUI)GEI El) SI'F~IAL RliVENUE FUNDS AC] UAI 
11,944 146,973 158,917 

A1)JUS]MEN] 30 BUI)GE J ARY BASIS BUDGETARY 

489,732 118,016 

11,944 46,973 

VARIANC]! FAVORABI.E (UNFAVORAIH.E) $ (13,800,203) (2,070,492) (I,288,651) (80,088) 139.473 158,917 17,258,878 ( 17,099,961 
489,732 237,078 .~ (2.1261 
5,396,215 5,400,564 725,076 1,337,313 

4,906,483 5,163,486 725,076 1,339,439 2,134,484 39,855 (605,622) (565367) 4,399,710 (4,965,477) 
I.XCESS (I)EFICII,NC~) OF REVENUES AND O] IIER FINANCING SOLIRCES OVER (UNI)BR) EXPI,,NI)II URI S AND OH ]ER FINANCING USES 39.855 (605,622 t|IND BAI,ANCES A'I BI:GINNIN(I OI YEAR 

4,087,157 00,374,967) 4,087,157 0,324,967 (6,287,810) 6,287,810 
(109,816_) -- (109,816) -- (109,816) $ 39,855 $ (715,438) $ (675,583) $ (I,997,916) 322,333 



RLVEN|JI;S "laxes Special assessments InWlesl Miseellancous qO] AI, RF VENIJES EXI'I,:NI)I I LJRICS I)cl*t S~lViCc Pli.cipal Intcrcsl and fiscal dlarges Age.~ fees Miscellaneous 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMI!NT OF RI~VF, NUES, I';XPENI)ITURI'S, AND CHANGFS IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGI';T AND ACTIJA]. GIiNERAI., SI'FCIAI, REVFNUE AND DI:J~T SERVICE FUNI) TYPES (CON'I INUI';D) Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXCI SS (I)I,FICIENCY) OF REVI NUES OVER (UNDI R) I:XI'ENI)I I URES O'llll R FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Opcrafng tralLSfels ill ()pelating tlansfers Ollt 

I)EI]] SERVICE FUNDS 
$ 3,829,630 29,272 369,622 125.448 
3,346,203 2,466,262 1,500 12.000 

ADJUSI MEN'I TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY 

5,825,965 
61,471,993) 1,301,135 

]O] AI, O I ]IER FINAN(!ING SOURCES (USIiS) 1,301,135 EXt';ESS (I)EFICIENCY) OF REVENUI S AND OJ HI R FINANCING S()lJ R(:E~; OVER (UNI)ER) l,Xl'l NI)I [ [JR]'8 AND O2 ]I]',R HNANCING 3JSIS FUNI) BAI.ANCliS A'I BFGINNING OF YEAR A1 LND OI YEAR 
(170,858) 7,109,036 

3,829,630 29,272 369,622 125,448 
VARIANCE I'AVORABI,I: {UNI'AVORABI,li} 

364,900 125,447 300,546 29,272 4,722 
4,353,972 4,620,523 (266,551) 
3,346,203 2,466,262 1,500 12,000 5,825,965 6,197,389 
(I,471,993) 0,576,866) 
,301,135 

288,943 82,481 
371,424 
378,639} 1,679,774 (378,639) 

102,908 (273,766 7.109.036 



10"l AI+ REVENIII~8 

CITY OF KENNER> I,OUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF RIiVJ~NIJI:S, ]'XPJ!NDJJ IJRES> AND CIIANGES IN ]:UND BAI.ANCES - I]UDGFT AND ACTUAl. GENlitt.AL, SPFCIAI. REVENUE AND DEBT SERVICE FUNI) TYPES (CON'I INUED) Year Ended Junc 30, 1999 

I XPENI)I ]URE~ Cuue.l (ienetal government Public safely Public wolks I Icallh mid ~~lf~rc Culture and recitation ]fallSil arltl ilrb~ll dcvdollnlenl Miscellaneous I)e61 sel vice P0ncipal Inletesl ~lid fiscal clmtgcs Agent fees Miscdlancous 10'1 AI EXPENI)IIIJItI!S 

TOTALS fMEMORANDUM ONLY 

39,264.133 
7,718,928 6,942,062 2,815,676 789,516 3,862,742 436,047 1,546,418 

AI)JUSIMENT I"0 BUI)GETARY BASIg BUDGEIARY 

255,599 6>217,782 702,840 1,061 79,078 (2,126 (14,821 
7,974,527 23,159,844 3,518,516 790,577 3,941,820 433,921 1,531,597 3,346,203 2,466,262 1,500 12.000 

$ 43,217,883 2,287,477 3,889,340 1,689>251 1.440.905 ,006,932 226,519 

VARIANCE I:AVORABI,I~ (UNI AVORABI ,li) 

8,928,550 30,941,754 8,683,175 802,047 5,204,860 1,709,766 1,552,648 
954,023 7,781,910 5,164,659 11,470 1,263,040 1,275,845 21,051 288,943 82481 

39+937,354 7,239,413 47,176,767 64>020>189 16,843,422 I';XCI SS (I)EHCIENCY) OI RINENUES OVER (UNDI';R) liXl)l~NI)l'l URES (673,221) (7,239,413~ (7,912,634) (I. 0,261,884) 2,349+250 O'IIIER FINANCING SO'tJRCliS (USES) O0cl 8ling transfels in Opelafn0 lla~lS~lS oHI 201AI. O'1111';R FINANCING SOURCES (USI SJ 
8,508,721 (6>267,582) 

iXCESS (1)I] ICIENCY) OF RI~VENIJES AND 011111R HNANCIN(I SOURCES OVER (LJNI)EIt) I,;XI)ENI)I I [iRIS AN] ) O'1111R I INAN6 ING USES 1,567,918 I tlNI) ItAI.ANCI,;S A'I IIEGINNING OI YEAR A3 END 01 YEAR 

"lhc ~ccconlpanyiilg liOlcs ale all inlcgral part of Illis stalcinenl 

8,508321 (6,267,582! 2,241,139 
12,032,236 (16,447,723) 

26>743,973 1,561,694 28,305,667 28,305,667 $ 28,311,891 $ (5,677,719) $ 22,634,172 $ 13>628,296 
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(3,523,515 10.180.141 6,656,626 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CIIANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)/FUND BALANCE - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES Year Ended June 30. 1999 

OI'ERA'I ING REVI!NUI~S (barges Ibr services Misccllancous "I'O'fAI~ OPERA'I ING I',1 VENUES (WERATIN(I EXPENSES ['crsolmd expenses Supplies and oRi~c e~pensc Ihfilding and nlainlellallce expenses Outside services q ransporlation I Bsurancc claims lnsilranee plell)iUlliS (ieneral { xpcnsc l)cprceiation Other 10"I'AI. OI'I'JtATING EXPENSES OI'IIP, ATING INCOMI~ (LOSS) NON-OI'I!RATING RIiVENIJI~S (I~XPI~NSES) Ad valorem taxes I Iotdhnolcl taxes Cable television franchise l~cs hlteresl revenue InlereM expense "1 O'1AI. NON-OPI ~I~-A'I ING I~-I!VI{NUI!S 

~NIERPRISF 5,749,869 I 1.653 
57,770 15,930 449,090 5,743,769 263 44,531 2,271,878 100,526 8,683,757 

NTERNAI SERVICI~ 

940,938 1,102,025 2,372,896 

TOTAl, (MEMOI~,ANI)UM ONI,YI $ (I,120,605 11.653 
57,770 15,930 449,090 6,684,707 263 1,102,025 2,417,427 2,271,878 100.526 3,099,616 (2,922,235) (45,123) (2,967,358) 

451,019 333,613 62~969 53,109 (2,541) 465.169 NET INCOME (LOSS) IH~I:ORE OPI{RA'IING TRANSIq!RS (1,457,066) OI>ERA'I ING TItANSFI~RS 'I tansl'crs in NET INCOMI! (I,OSS) 27.045 
RH AINH) EARNINGS (I)I~FICrI'I/FUNI) BAI,ANCIi A'I ItEGINNINO OF YEAR (16,519,374) A3 END OF YFAR 

"lhe acconlpanyhlg noles ale all integral part of this statement. 

$ (17,949,395) 
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51.675 
51.675 
06,552 
06.552 
,269,103 ,375,655 

1,616,844 
,350,514 
27.045 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA PENSION TRUST FUND STATEM ENT OF CI IANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS Year Ended June 30. 1999 

A1)D1TIONS Contributions: Participants Employer: City of Kenner Total Contributions nvestnlenI lncolne: Net appreciation in fair vahle Interest Dividends Total lfJvestlnent ]ncoo'Je Less Invesinlent Expense Net lnvestnlenl lneonle 
Other IncolllC Tolal Additions 
DEDUCTIONS Transfer of plan assets to the Slatewide Firefighlers Retirement System Members' benefits Refunds to terminated employees Continued service incentive Administrative expenses TOTAl. DEDUCTIONS NET DECREASE PLAN NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 

The aeconlpanying ilotes are an inlegral part of this statelneBl 
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FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF 
81,266 
271.425 452.69 
114,321 252,468 51.056 417.845 
43,665 1,374,180 0 1,826,981 
11,130,143 494,049 4,529 39,408 18.995 687.124 (9,860,143) 
018,258 
$ 1,158,115 



 
CITY OF KENNER, I.O'tJISIANA COMI:~INI';I) STATI~MENT OF CASII FI.OWS - PROPIETAI~.Y FUNI) TYPI'S Year Ended June 30, 1999 

NCREASli (I)E(REASI!) IN CASII AND (:AS EQUIVA| .ENTS: Cash flows from operating activities: Oflcrating inconlc (loss) Adjustlnents to reconcile opcrallng incolne (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) opcraflng acflvitics: |)cplecialion Change ill ctmcnt assets (increase) decrease Receivables Due from otb~~ f.ac, ds Intergoverlullental J'repaid expenses Cballge ill current liabilities increase (decrease): Accounts payable Rclainag~ payable l)cfcrred revenue Acct ued liabilities Due to oilier funds Deposits on future events Col)lpe~)sa~cd absences "I'OTAI , AI~J U STM I:.N'I',N Nct cash plovided by (used for) operating activities Casb flows flora noncapital financing aclivi6cs Ad valorcm taxes I Iotcl/nlotel taxcs (?able television franchise fees Operaflllg transfer in Nel easll provided by nollcapital financing aeflvides Cash flows flora capilal and related [inancing activities: Principal payments - note payable Principal r, ayments - mortgage payable Interest paylnellls Acqulsltlc~n of propelS.y, plant, at~d equipmenl Net cash used by capital and Iclalcd financing activifles 

ENTI,;RI'RISE I N'fI~;I~.NA1 SERVICI5 TOTAl, (MI';MOlC.ANIIUM ONLY) 
$ (2,922,235) $ 145,123) $ (2,967,358) 

(146,265) (129,fl36) 20,558 362,905 
90,723 17,651 10,520 37,894 (195,3321 43,921 I 

451,fl19 333,613 629,969 27.045 

(3,736) 0,784) (2,5411 __.~M9,4f16) 
__.(527,467) 
28 

12L115) 
533,560 3.000 
360,568 
315.445 

2,745,986 
451,019 333,613 629,969 27.045 
441.646 
(3,736) (1,784) (2,54!) (519,406) 
1527,467) 



 
CITY OF KENNER, I.OI.JISIANA COMI'qNEI) STATI';MENT OF CASI I FI.OWS - PROPII';TARY FUND TYI'ES (CONTINUI".I)) Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Cash flows from invcsling activities: Purchases of investments Proceeds frOlll malurilics of hlvCStlllelltS Inlelcsl received Net cash provided by (used for) invcsling aclivifcs 
Ncl increase (dcclcase) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents, bcgilming of year Cash and cash equivalents, elld of year 
RI'CONCII .IATION TO I~AI .ANCE $111!ET ACCOUNTS Cash Equity in pooled cash and inveslmcnts 

EN'/11RPRISE 
53.109 
53.109 
430,471 860.946 ,291,417 
483,490 807.927 

INI'ERNA SERVIC} $ (13,205,0461 12,885,979 146,371 
TOTAl. (MEMORANI)UM ONI.Y) $ (13,205,fl46 12,885,979 199,480 

(172,696) (119,5871 
142,749 573,220 578,327 1,439,273 721.076 
721.076 204,566 807.927 Cash and cash equivalenls, end of year $ 1,291,417 $ 721,076 $ 2,012,493 

NONCASII IN VIeSrING, CAIqTAI., AND FINANCING ACTIVII II{S: Conlributions of capital Acquisitions of plopclay, plant, and equipnlcnl through capital conlribtltions 

The accompanying nolcs are an inlcgral parl of this statelnenl 

323,346 (323,346) $ 

29 

$ 
$ (323,346) 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30. 1999 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIIqCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES City of Kennel Louisiana's (the "'City") syslem of government is established by its ttome Rule Chartcl which became effective in 1974. The City operates under a mayor-council form of government. Tile financial statements of City of Kennel Louisiana have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standald setting body for establishing governmental acconnling and financial reporting pJ~nciples. ']'he more siguificanl of the govennnent's accounting policies are described below. 1. REPORTING ENTITY Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, fl~e fiuancial statements of the rcpmling entity present the primary govermnent (tile "City") and its component units. Component units ale defined as legally separate olganizations for which lhe elected officials of the primary government (the City) are financially accountable. The criteria used in determining whether financial accountability exists include the appointment of a voting majority of all organization's governing board, file ability of the primary governmeut to impose its will on that organization or whether there is a potential for fl~e organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens to the primary government. Fiscal depeudency may also play a part in determining financial accountability. In addition, a component unit can be another organization for which fl~e nature and significance of its relationship with a primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting cntity's financial statements Io be misleading or incomplete. Component units are included in the City's repmling entity either as a blended component unit or as a disclctcly presented component unit because of the significance of its operational or financial relationship with the City. The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund is a legally separate entity from the City. It is governed by a five lnember Board of Trustees of which three of these members iuclude the City's Mayor aud two members of the Cily's Council. For financial reporting purposes, the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund is reported as if it were a part of the City's operations (blended) because its purpose is to finance and provide a retirement system for the fire department employees of the City and because its exclusiou would render lhe financial statements incomplete or misleading. The Police Chief is an elected official elected by the citizenry in a general, popular elecIion. The City Council approves the ammal budget for the Police Department and dedicates portions of the City's revenues to fired this department. The Police Department is not legally separate, aud therefore is a function oftbe primary government and its operations are reported as a part of the City's General Fund. 2. FUND ACCOUNTING The City uses funds and accomrt groups to report on its finaucial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. An account group, on the other band, is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability fo~ certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietm7 and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate "fund types". 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government's general activities, including ahe collection and disbursement of eannal~ed monies (special revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets (capital projects funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service funds). The General Fund is used to accouut for all activities of the general goverument not accounted for in some other fund. Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the detenninatiou of net income is necessary or useful for sound financial administration. Goods or services fiom such activities can be provided either for outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies primarily within the government (internal service funds). Fiduciary Emds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including othm governments, or on behalf of olber fuuds within the government. When fllese assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, either a pension trust fund, a nonexpendable mist fund or an expendable trust fund is used. The terms "nonexpendable" and "expendable" refer to whether or not the government is under an obligation to maintain the trust principal. Agency funds generally are used to account for assets that the government holds on behalf of others as their agent. 3. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fired is determined by its measuremen! focus. All governlllenla] funds are accounted for using a cun'ent financial resonrces measnrenlcnt focus. With this measurement focus, only eunent assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. All proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measmement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on tile balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) ill net total assets. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types and agency fnnds. Under file modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., wheu they become both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the cunent period. The City considers ad valorem (property) taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due. Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, fianchise taxes, beer taxes, parking taxes and certain state shared revenues such as tobacco taxes, parish transportation funds, and video poker monies. Sales taxes collected and held by inlemlediary collecting governments at year-end on behalf of the City government also me recognized as revenue. Fines and permits are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the government and are recognized as revenue at that time. The accrual basis of accouuting is utilized by proprietary fund types and pension trust funds. Under this method revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) In accordance with Statement No. 20 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), "Accounting and Financial Report#Jg for Proprietary Funds' and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting" it is the policy of the City's proprietary funds to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as all Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedures issued on ol before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncelnents. The City reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revelmes also arise when resources are received by the City before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the resources, tile liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 4. BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING Fonnal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control device and budgets are legally adopted at the fired level, except for the General Fund for which appropriations are adopted at the department level. Budgels are included for the following ftmds: General Fund Special Revenue Funds One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 Conmnmity I)evelopment Block Grant Galbage Collection and Disposal Roads and Bridges Street Lighting Fire Deparlmenl Debt Selwice Funds General Debt Ad Valorem Tax Bonds Firemen's Pension Merger Fund Enterprise Funds Deparlment of Wastewater Operations Civic Center Operations 

Expeuditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at file fund level, except for file General Fund which is at the departmental level. Appropriations lapse at year-end. Furthernaore, appropriations which are not expended nor encumbered are dedicated to capital outlay for that department and are rebudgeted in the following year. Budgets for lhe General, Special Revenue (except Drug Enforcement Forfeiture Fund and Local Law Euforcement Grant Fund), Debt Service Funds, and Proprietm2~ Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except that encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures in the year of incurrence of the commitment to purchase. Legally adopted budgets for two special revenue funds (l)mg Enforcement Forfeiture Fund aud Local I.aw Enforcemeut Grant Fund) are not presented due to the uncertainty of revenues, if any, to be received fiom year to year. 32 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POHCIES (CONTINUED) 5. ENCUMBRANCES Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contlacts, and other commitments for tile expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extensiou of formal budgetary accounting in lhe General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Entelprise Funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do nol constilnlc expenditures nor liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent fiscal year. 6. CASIt. INVESTMENTS AND POOLED ASSETS The City maintains three cash and investment pools as follows a. Genelal Pool - maintains cash balances for all funds except the paving assessmeuts, sewerage assessments and tile Pension Trust Fund. b. Paving Assessments Pool - maintains cash balances for the General Fund and Debt Service Fmld c. Sewerage Assessments Pool - maintains cash balances for the General Fund and Debt Service Fund. The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds except for restricted funds due to Trust Agreements and Bond Indenture Agreements, and the City's component unit, the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund. Total cash, investments, and accrued interest on investments of the Pool are reported in all funds as "Equity in Pooled Cash and lnvestmeuts'. Funds with a negative Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments report the advance as an interfund payable and the General Fund, which has been determined to be the receivable fund by maoagemeul, reports an offsetting inteffuud receivable. Interest earned on pooled cash and iuvcstments is allocated to each individual fund based on its mouth end "Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments". The entire cash balances in the General Pool Cash account, the Capital Projects Funded with Bond Proceeds and tile Enteqorise Funds are swept and iuvested into overnight repurchase agreements earning Federal Funds rate less 150 basis points. The market value of the underlying security in the repurchase agreement transaction is always 105% of the cal~ying amount of repurchase agreement, lnteresI is allocated among funds in the General Pool Cash account on the basis of ending monfldy cash balances. "Ille balances not needed for transactions in the otheJ accounts are deposited m individual nmney market funds earning interest at market rates; no checks can bc wri|ten on these accounts. ('ash reported on the Combined Balance Sheet includes anaounts in demand deposits, certificates of deposit, and short-term iuvestments with a maturity date within fllree months of the date purchased. State Law R.S. 39:1225 provides that the amount oftbe security shall at all times be equal to 100% of the amount on deposit to the credit of each depositing authority, except that portion of tile deposits insured by any governmental agency insuring bank deposits, which is organized under the laws of the United States. State Law R.S. 33:2955 allows the investment in U.S. bonds, treasury notes, certificates or other obligations of tile United States of America, which may include certificates or other evidences of all ownership interest in such obligaiious, which may consist of specified potqtions of interest thereon, or time certificates of deposit of stale banks organized under tile laws of Louisiana and national banks having the principal office in tile State of Louisiana, or any other federally insured investment. In accordance with the provisions of Governmental Auditing Standards Board Statement No. 31, "Accolmting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External hwestment Pools", all investmems are repolited at fair value with gains and loses included in the statement of revenue and expenses. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POIACIES (CON37NUED) Fol purposes of tile statement of cash flows of the Proprietary Funds, cash and cash equivalents includes .the following items: demand deposits, petty cash, certificates of deposit, "equity in pooled cash and investmems" and short-term investments with a maturity of three nlonths or less. 7. SItORT-TERM 1NTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet. 8. INVENTORIES The costs of materials and supplies acquired by the governmental funds ai~ l~corded as expenditmes at the thne of purchase. The inventory of such materials and supplies at June 30, 1999, would not be material to the financial statements. However, the inventory of parts for vehicle maintenance, which is accounted for under the consumption method, is considered to be material and is recorded in the General Fund at cost, determined by the first-in, firsl-oul method. 9. PREPAID ITEMS Payments made to vendors for services tbal will benefil periods beyond June 30, 1999 are recoJded as prepaid items. 10. FIXED ASSETS GENERAL FIXED ASSETS Eixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital asset acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assels are reported in the gcnelal fixed assets account group. All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost wbere historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at theil esthnated fair market value on the date received. Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets consisling of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighthlg systems are capitalized as general fixed assets. Assets in the general fixed assets accounl group are not depreciated PROPRIETARY FUND ASSETS 1)epreciation of property, plant and equipment in the proprietary fired types is computed using the straighl-line melbod with estimated useful lives as noted in Note F. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially exlend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of tile related fixed assets, as applicable. Interest is capitalized on proprietary fired assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred fiom the date of the bonowing until completion of lhe project with interest earned on invested proceeds over file same period. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 11. COMPENSA'[I~.I) ABSENCES Vacation (annual leave) and sick pay (sick leave) are accrued when earned in the Proprietary Funds. Such amounts are not accrued in the governmental funds, as the amount left unpaid at tile end of the fiscal period would not be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. Accumulated annual leave and vested sick leave as of the end of the fiscal year is valued using employees' cun'ent rates of pay and the total is ineladed m the General Long-Terna Debt Account Group, which represents the City's commitment to fund such costs fiOlU filturc operations. In Proprielaly Fund types, ammal and sick leave are expensed when earned by file employee. A liability is recorded for accumulated annual leave and vested sick leave as of the end of the fiscal year using employees' current rates of pay. In accordance with Statement No. 16 of tim Governmental Accounting Standards Board, "Accounting for Compensated Absences ", an additional liability is recorded for salary related payments associated with the future payment of conaperJsated absences. 2. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS Loug-lerna debt expected to be fiuanced from governmental funds is accounted for in the general long-term debt account group. Loug-term liabilities expected to be fiuanced fi'om proprietalT fund operations are accounted for in flmse funds. 13. FUND EQUITY Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds fl~at have received capital grants or contributions fiom developers, CtlStOD'*ers of other funds. Reserves represent those porlions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific futnre use. Designaled fund balances represent tentative plans for futule rise of fiuancial resources. 14. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursemeuts to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to auother fired, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All other iuterfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as transfers. Nomecurring or nonrouline permanenlt transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfuud transfers are reported as operating transfers. 15. TOTAl. COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS Total columns on tim combined statements are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that fl~ey are preseuted only to facilitate fiuaneial analysis. Data in these colunms does not present financial position and lesults of operations m conformity wifll generally accepted accounting principles, lnterfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data, 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
The procedures used by the City in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements are as follows Not less than 60 days before the end of the fiscal year, the Mayor recommends to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the ensuing fiscal year. The budget is prepared by fund, department (for file General Fund), function, and object, and includes information on the past year, current year estimates, and requested appropriations for the ensuing fiscal year. b. The proposed budget is summarized and advertised and, within 30 days Ibereafler, public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. c. The operating budget is then legally adopted through council ordinance prior to June 1 d. The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts wilhin funds, except for the General Fund which is at the departmental level; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of fuud or depallment in the case of the General Fund must be approved by the City Council. A reconciliation of the originally adopted budget to the Revised Budget (including supplemental appropriations through June 30) is presented below: 
General Fund Revenues aud other financing sources Expenditures and other financing uses Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over (under) expenditures and other finaucing uses Special Revenue Funds Revenues and other financing sources Expenditures and othei financing uses Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses Debt Service Funds Reveuues and other fiuancJng sources Expenditures and other fiuancing uses Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses 

. ORIGINAL 
$ 38,752,531 38,752,531 

$ 20,497,215 22,385,315 

$ 6,025,463 5,922,555 

REVISED 
$ 38,144,209 51,036,388 

INCREASE (DECREASE) 
$ (608,322) 12,283,857 

$ (12,892,179) $(12,892,179] 
$ 21,346,035 23,234,135 $ 848,820 848,820 
$ 1,888,100 $ 
$ 6,300,297 6,1_97,389 $ 274,834 274.834 
$ 102,908 $ The sources for these supplemental appropriations include the prior year's fund balances and current year fedora grants. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 

NOTE B - STEWARDSI-IIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) 

P;xcess (deficiency) of revenues and oilier somces over (under) expenditures and other uses (budgetary basis) Adjustments: Tinting differences: To adjust for encumbrances 

GENERAL SPECIAl. REVENUE DEBT SERVICE 
$(5,148,188) $ (441,023) $ (170,858) 
__6,847,109 605,622 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses (GAAP basis) $__1,698,921 $ 164 5~99 $ (170,8581 EXPENI)ITURES 1N EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS No funds had expenditures in excess of appropriations for the year ended June 30, t999 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABII.ITY (CONTINUED) I)EFICIT FUND IIALANCES/RETAINED EARNINGS The following funds had deficits in fund balance/retained earnings at June 30, 1999: 
Entelprise Funds Department of Wastewater Operations Civic Center Operations 

DEFICIT 1N FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS 

The deficits in tile Enterprise Funds are a result of depreciation expense 
NOTE C - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

$ 15,564,628 2,384 7~67 $ 17,949,395 

At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $7,242,899 and the bank balance was $10,392,253. The bank balance is categorized as follows: Amount insured by the FDIC, or collateralized with securities held by the City's agent in the City's name. $ 10,392 2~53 
The City's investments at year-end are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the City at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the City oi' its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and m~registered investments for which the securities are held by file eouuterparly's lnast department or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes uninsured or unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the cotmlerparly, or by its ~'ust department or agent but not in the City's name. 
[J. S. Government securities U. S. Instrumentality securilies (FNMA, FHLB, etc.) Slocks 
Mutual funds Total lnvestnlents 

CAq~GORY 1 2 3 FAIR VAI,UE 
$ 530.638 $ $ $ 530,638 
28,022,643 485,092 28,022,643 485,092 29,038,373 $ $ 29,038,373 2,068,040 $ 31,106,413 The mutual funds are owned by tile Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund and Debt Selwice Funds. The stocks are owned by the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE D - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS A reconciliation of total equity in pooled cash and investments is presented below 
Euuitv in Pooled Cash and Investments Cash (Bank Overdraft) Repurchase Agreement 

GENERAl. POOL $ (2,890,364) 5 8~59 574_ Total Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments .~_2,969,21 Q Euuitv in Pool Bv Fund True General Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects Enterprise T1EISl and Agency Total Equity in Pool 

PAVING ASSESSMENTS POOL $ 862,236 
862,236 

SEWERAGE ASSESSMEN]S POOL $ 5,659 $ (2,022,469) 5,859,574 
$ 5,659 $ 3,837,105 

$ 167,023 $ 862,236 $ 5,659 120,666 280,014 1,593,579 807,927 1 .$2,969,210 

$ 1,034,918 120,666 280,014 1,593,579 807,927 t $ 5,659 $ 3,837,105 
The amount which is shown as a bank overdraft represents outstanding checks for which the bank has invested in a repurchase agreement. The repurchase agreement and the amount shown as bank overdraft are held in the same bank account, therefore, fl~ere is no actual bank overdraft but rather excess funds invested in the l~purchase agreement pursuant to an agreement held with the bank. NOTE E - RECEIVABLES Receivables at June 30, 1999 consist of the following (in thousands of dollars) 
Receivablcs: ]'axes $ Accounts lntergovemmental Special assess- ments ]ntelesI ()fl~en Gross receivables Less: allowance fol estimated uncol- lec6bles 

SPECIAl. GENERAL REVENUE DEBT CAPITAL SERVICE PROJF~TS ENTERPRISE - $ $ 4,659 3,101 2,421 631 8,39 277 2,698 
$ $ 665 204 29 5 - 5 1~510 699 209 1,633 

INTERNAE SERVICE $ 155 
55 

qOq AI~ 
302 9 
1,349 4,814 6,816 

712 Nettotal receivables $ 71787 $ 2,698 $ 699 $ 209 $ 1156~ $ 155 $ 1,617 $14~733 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMF, NTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE E - RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) An allowance for estimated unconectible receivables is established based on historical collection experience and other relevant cireunrstauces. The allowance for estimated uncollectibles at June 30, 1999, consists of the fonowing alnountsl 
General Fund Enterprise Funds Department of Wastewater Operations Fiduciary Funds Ad Valorem Tax Collection 
NOTE F - FIXED ASSETS 

$ 603,732 
$ 65,231 
43,175 

The following is a summary of changes in the genelzl fixed assets account group during the fiscal year 

Land Buildings Improvements other than buildings Furniture, fixtures and equipment Vehicles Construclion 

BALANCE JUI.Y I~ 1998 ADDITIONS 
$11,245,980 13,905,807 $ 801,252 1,172,087 
36,661,011 957,487 
11,489,215 10,303,019 2,713,962 607,700 in progress 6,318,641 6,157,788 

COMPLETED RE'I IREMEN~I CONSTRUCt ION BAI ANCIi JUNE 3011999 
$ 200,000 $ 11,847,232 15.077.894 

4,457,49[ Totalgeneral fixed assets $ 89,923,673 $12,410,276 $.__. $4,457,491 

37,618,498 
14,203,177 10,910,719 8,018,938 
$ 97,676,458 

The City is in the process of having a physical inventory taken of its fixed assets. Howeveh at the lime of this report, the inventory was not complete. Therefore, any required adjustments to the fixed assets of tile City of Kelmer, as a result of Ihe physical inventory, are not reported in these financial statements. 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 

NOTE F - FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) Conslroclion in progress is comprised of the following 
Public Safety: Police headquarters and Jail N. Kenner Fire Station CAD and Records Management System 

AUTHORIZATrON JI3NE 3011999 
$10,976,414 1,273,738 3915~!9_10 TOTAl, PUBIAC SAFETY $12,641 6~62 Public Works: Brake "/ag Station South Kenner Drainage Loyola Drive Project Drainage Master Plan Vehicle Maintenance Building Aberdeen Slreel Improvements 
$ 253,536 284,820 545,250 338,000 42,860 155~5~52 

EXPENDED TO JUNE30~r999 
$ 4,673,136 1,264,140 327,909 $ 6,265,185 
$ 19,423 244,707 546,298 242,875 37,012 15,552 

$ 6,303,278 9,598 __ 63,601 $~6376,477 
$ 234,113 40.113 95,125 5.847 

REQIIIRED FUTURE FINANCING 
$ 6,303,278 9,598 63,601 $ 6,376,477 
$ 234,113 40,113 95,125 5.847 

TOTAI. PUBL1CWORKS $ 1,4800,~8_18 $ 1,105,867 ~ 375,198 $ 375,198 Culture and Recreation: Riverstar Theatre Laketown Kenner Jr. High Repairs LaSalle Landing Susan Park Gym Kennerville Park Muss Bertolino Parking Lot TOTAl, CULTURE AND RECREA]'ION 

$ 474,579 19,867 26,344 17,600 75,000 10,000 240~868 
$ 474,579 19,867 21,934 17,192 22,838 7,742 16,318 

$ $ 4,410 408 52,162 2,258 __ 7,750 
4,410 408 52,162 2,258 7.750 

$ 580,470 L 66,988 $ 66,988 Transit and Urban Development: Multipurpose Center $ 842~06 $ 67,416 L 16,790 $ 16,790 TOTAl. TRANSIT AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT $ 84 2,~fi06 $ 67,416 $__~ 16,790 $ 16,790 TOTAl. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS $14,8533.~444 $ 8,018,938 $~.6835,453 $ 6,835,453 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 NO'D'; F - FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) The following is a summary of proprietary fixed assets at June 30, 1999 

Land and improvements Building and improvements Furniture and fixtures Vehicles and field equipment Construction in progress Total 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS $ 1,825,937 73,884,382 151,167 1,283,694 919,800 78,064,980 

CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS TOTAl $ 5,319,450 16,470,931 2,963,889 36,893 24,791,163 
$ 7,145,387 90,355,313 3,115,056 1,283,694 956,693 102,856,143 Less: accumulated depreciation 25,922 9_~52 . 4,132,512 30,055,464 Net $ 52,142,028 $ 20,658,651 $ 72,800,679 The following estimated useful lives (in years) are used for computing depreciation and amortization 

Buildings and improvements Utility plants, stations and lines Vehicles, machinery and equipment Furniture and fixlures 
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS 0-15 50 5 10 

CIVIC CENTER OPERAqqONS 20-50 5 10 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMF.NTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 

NOTE G - I.ONG-TERM DEBT BONDS AND CERTIFICATES Long-term debl at June 30, 1999 includes the following serial bonds and certificates 
DESCRIPTION General Obligalion, Special Tax and Excess Revenue Bonds 

INTEREST RATES 
RANGE OF ANNUAl. PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS FINAL MATURITY DATE FROM TO 

(IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS) AMOUNT AMOUNT OUT- ISSUEI) STANI)ING 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1992 5.20- 5.75 03-01-05 $ 200,000 $ 260,000 $ 2,595 $ 1,395 Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 1992 5.20 - 6.125 06-01-12 $1,445,000 $ 2,945,000 36,580 28,025 Sales Tax Bonds, Series 1994 2.95 06-01-16 $ 450,000 $ 740,000 11,428 10,085 Sales Tax Bonds, Series 1995A 2.95 06-01-16 $ 55,000 $ 90,000 1,463 1,230 Excess Revenue Bonds, Series 1996A 4.88 01-01-01 $ 690,000 $ 760,000 3,450 1,485 Excess Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B 5.45 01-01-06 $ 300,000 $ 435,000 3,450 2,600 $58,966 $44,820 Special Assessment Debt with Govemmenlal Commitment Paving Certificates 7.75 04-01-00 $ 29,272 $ 293 $ 29 TOTAL BONDS AND CERTIFICATES 
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$59,259 $44,849 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) Additional information pertaining 1o the foregoing bonds and certificates is as follows GENERAl. OBLIGATION, SPECIAL TAX AND EXCESS REVENUF; BONDS General Obligation Refunding Bonds These bonds are secured by, and payable flx)m Ad Valorem taxes collected in the Ad Valorem Tax Bonds Fund. At June 30, 1999, $1,395,000 of such bonds were outstanding and $219,095 was available in the Debt Service Funds. 2. Sales Tax Bonds The Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 1992 and file Sales Tax Bonds, Series 1994 and 1995A are all obligalions of the City. These bonds are secured by, and payable from the City's allocation of the proceeds of sales taxes collected pnrsuanl 1o Louisiana Legislative Acts 188 of 1954 and 29 of 1966 collected and remitted by (he Parish of Jefferson. At June 30, 1999, bonds outstanding were $28,025,000, $10,085,000 and $1,230,000, respectively. The amount available in the Debt Service Funds was $5,081,290. The amounts outstanding for the Sales Tax Bonds, Series 1994 and 1995A represent the unpaid amounts drawn down as of June 30, 1999 through loans obtained from the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality. These loans are secnred by the Sales Tax Bonds, Series 1994 and 1995A. The City has developed a Wastewater Compliance Plan as a result of an EPA Administrative Order to perform those lasks necessary for its three wastewater treatment plants to comply with the effluent limitations of theil discharge permits. In July 1994, the City obtained approval for a loan in the amount of $11,430,000 flom the Louisiana I)epartment of Envimmnental Quality (LDEQ), of which $11,427,803 was actually received. The loan will be repaid over a period of twenty years colmnencing with the completion of the project. Interest payments and an administralive fec is payable semi-annually at a rate of 2.45% and .50%, respectively, based on the tolal amounts drawn on the loan. At June 30, 1999, the loan bad an outstanding balance of $I0,085,000. Total interest and administrative fees paid during the year-ended June 30, 1999 were $258,108 and $52,675, respectively. Due to the shortage of funding, in April 1995 the City obtained approval for a second Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality loan in the amount of $3,395,000, of which $1,462,875 was actually received. The loan will be repaid over a period of twenty years commencing with the completion of the project. The characteristics of this second loan are similar to those noted on the first loan above. At June 30, 1999, the loan had an outstanding balance of $1,230,000. Total interest and administrative fees paid during the year-ended June 30, 1999 were $31,483 and $6,425, respectively. The funding necessary to service these loans was obtained from the dedication of the 1954 (1/2 cent) and 1966 (1/2 cent) sales tax revenues. 3. Excess Revenue Bonds Cerlificates of Indebtedness Series 1996A and 1996B are to be used for various capital projects. These certificates are collateralized by a pledge of the excess revenues from the General Fund. At June 30, 1999, bonds outslanding were $1,485,000 and $2,600,000, respectively. The amount available in the Debt Service Funds Was $1.618,972. 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DEBT WITH GOVERNMENTAl. COMMITMENT These certificales are collateralized by and are payable from, the irrevocable pledge and dedication of the funds to be derived from the collection of the assessments, in annual installments, levied on the real property improved, using the thnds derived fiom the sale of specific certificates. In case of property owner default, the certificates would be backed by the full faith and credit of the City. Therefore, in accordance with the criteria set forth by GASB Statemcnl No. 6, the governing authority of the City has been deemed to be "obligated in some manner". At June 30, 1999, $29,272 of such certificates was outstanding and $13,703 was available in the Debt Service Funds. NOTES PAYABLE In December 1992, City of Kenner issued a long-term note for $700,000. The proceeds were to be loaned in accordance with the IIUD Section 108 Loan Guarantee program. The loan did not materialize, lherefore, the proceeds have been invested to finance the payment of the note payable. The investment is accounted for in the Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund. The long term note is payable over a period of 6 years with iuterest payable semi-annually at a rate of 6.83%. At June 30, 1999, the note payable had an outstandiug balance of $125,000. FIREMEN'S PENSION MERGER PAYABLE In March 1998, the required three-fourths vote of the active and inactive members approved the merger with the Statewide Fircfighters Retirement System ("SFRS"). Approval of the merger was received from the SFRS aud the Joint Retirement Committee. The City Council approved the merger in December 1998 and signed an agreement with SERS on March 25, 1999 regarding the payment of the merger liability. The final merger liability as of March 27, 1999 was $14,050,233, which represents 60% of the accrued liability for active employees ($6,301,446) and 100% of the accrued liability for relired employees ($7,748,787). The Fund transferred assets in the amoun! of $11,130,143 1o the SFRS to pay the merger liability. The value of the transferred assets for purposes of the merger as discounted fiom the date of receipt to the merger date of March 27, 1999, at the system's actuarial valuation interesl rate of 7% was $11,089,495. The remaining liability of $2,960,738 plus interest at the rate 0f7% per annum was assumed by the City of Kenoer to be paid over 30 years. This payable is accounted for iu the Firemen's Pension Merger Fund. At June 30, 1999, $5,118 was available in the Firemen's Pension Merger Fund (Debt Service Fund). The City has split the liability to be amortized into two components as follows: $1,190,000 of the liability is payable monthly at a rate of 7%. The monthly payments including interest are $7,917 A1 June 30, 1999, the merger payable for this component had a total outstanding balance of $1,187,057. $1,770,738 of the liability is payable annually at a rate of 7%. The annual payments iucluding interest are $142,697 At June 30, 1999, the merger payable for this component had a total outstanding balance of $1,770,738. The funding necessary to service this merger payable was obtained from the dedication of the fire insurance tax received fi'om the State of Louisiana and tlae reduction in the City's contribution rate under the Statewide Plan. MORTGAGE PAYABLE lu June 1978, City of Kenner obtained a loan in the amount of $40,000 at an interest rate of 9.75% for the purchase of land and an existing building. This loan is accounted for in the Waslewater Operations Enterprise Fund. At June 30, 1999, the mortgage payable had an outstanding balance of $23,513. GENERAL DEBT Capital Lease Oblieations "llle City has capital lease obligations on various facilities and equipment. See Note Q - Lease Commitments - General. 45 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) Compensated Absences .General All employees, except police and fire employees, earn sick leave at the following rates: Full time employees: 1 day/nmnth not to exceed 12 days/year Regular part time employees: 112 day/month not to exceed 6 days/year Employees earn annual leave in varying amounts according to years of service as follows: Service Amount___ Full time employees 0-5 5-10 over 10 Regular part time employees: 0-5 5-10 over 10 

1 day/month 1 1/2 day/month 2 days/month 
1/2 day/month 3/4 day/month 1 day/month Employees ale required to use their annual leave during the calendar year following the year in which it is earned. Annual leave not used by December 31 of the calendar year is determined for each employee, Half of this leave is lost and half is canied forward to be paid upon separation of service. This carryforward time is not available to be taken as annual leave in future periods. Annual leave is payable upon separation of service. Sick leave is accunmlated without time limitation and is payable up to a maxinmm of 90 days upon retirement or death. In accordance with Statement No. 16 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, "Accounting for Compensated Absences ", an additional liability is recorded for salary related payments associated with the future payment of compensaled absences. Such salary related payments consist of the City's portion of Medicare tax withholding. Fire Department Firefighlels receive 18 days of annual leave after one year of service. After 10 years of service employees receive one additional day of annual leave for each additional year of service to a maximum of 30 days per year. Vacation time not used by December 31 is lost. Firefighters receive 90 days of sick leave when they join the Department. Any sick time taken is applied agains! this accumulation. At retirement, the employee is paid for any unused sick leave up to a maximum of 90 days. Employees receive 365 days of sick leave with medical delernfination. Police I)e~rtment Police personnel earn mmual leave in varying amounts according to years of service as follows 

Years Service 0 - 1 Year 1 - 10 Years 10 - 20 Years Over 20 Years 

Civil Service Anlonnt -0- 120 Hours 160 Hours 200 Hours 

Non-Civil Service Amounl -0- 105 1 lours 140 Hours 175 ltours 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 

NOTF, G - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) These hours are accrued on January 1st, and are for use only in the calendar year. ttours not taken by December 31st are lost. lfan employee terminates employment, they are paid for the annual leave they have remaining on the books. Police personnel earn sick leave at the following rates: Full time employees: Regulal part time employees 1 day/month not to exceed 10 days/year 1/2 day/month not to exceed 5 days/year Upon retirement, employees are entitled to receive pay for accrued, unused sick leave days up to a maximum of 90 days. 
CItANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT During the year-ended June 30, 1999, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the general long-term debt accouut group (in thousands of dollars): 

Balance at July 1, 1998 Bonds and certificates Compensated absences Capital lease obligations Note payable 

ONDR AND CERTIFICATES OTI IER GENERAl. OBLIGATION SPECIAL TAX & EXCESS REVENUE 
$47,960 
47,960 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DEBT WITtl GOVERNMENTAL GENERAL COMMITMENT NO'I ES I)EII'I TO'IA 
$ 59 
59 
$ 
240 240 
$ 1,741 632 2,373 

Firemen's Pensiou note issued 2,960 Bonds and certificates retired (3,139) (30) Additional compensated absences 199 
Payments made on: Capital lease obligation Note payable Balance at June 30. 1999 $44,821 $ 29 

47 

$ 48,019 1,741 632 240 50.632 
2,957 (3,169) 199 

(59) (59) (118) (115) $3,082 $ 2,513 $ 50,445 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) Annual debt service to maturity, including interest of $21,045,210, is as follows 

YEAR-ENDING JUNE 30~ 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005-2009 2010-2014 2015-2019 2020-2024 2025-2029 
COMPI,IANCE 

N THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS BONDS AND CERTIFICATES SPECIAl. ASSESSMENT DEBTWITH GENERAl. OBLIGATION $ 284 283 281 283 279 275 

SAI.ES EXCESS TAX REVENUE $ 3,979 $ 1,254 3,987 1,252 3,988 457 3,982 457 3,983 457 19,933 915 13,659 1,708 
$ 55,219 $ 4,792 

GOVERNMENTAl. COMMITMENT $ 32 

_$ 32 

OTHER ENTERPRISE FUNDS MORIGAGE AN[) NOIES NO'I ES J'OTAI $ 367 238 238 238 238 1,188 1,188 1,188 1,188 _!d~_66 $7237 

4 4 4 4 4 17 
$ 37_ 

$ 5,920 5,764 4,968 4,964 4,961 22,328 14,847 2,896 1,188 1,166 $ 69,002 
There aIe a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. ADVANCE REFUNDING In a prior year, the City defeased certain special lax bonds by placing the proceeds of tile new bond into inevocable masts to provide for all futm~ debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liabilities for the defeased bond are not included in the City's financial statements. Debt outstanding at June 30, 1999 relating to these prior year defeasances is as follows: Special Tax Bond Special Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 1988 $ 4,520,000 NOTE It - RESERVATIONS AND DESIGNATIONS OF FUND BALANCE The nstule and pul]oose of the reserves and designations are as follows Reserved for Encumbrances This reserve was established for outstanding pmvhase orders and other commitments for unperformed contracts for goods aud services wlfieh the City intends to honor. Reserved forlnventory This reserve was established as an offset against the asset, inventory, because it does not constitute an available spendable resource of the General Fund. 

48 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE H - RESERVATIONS AND DESIGNATIONS OF FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) Reserved for Prenaid Items This reserve was established as an offset against the asset, prepaid items, because it does not constitute an available spendable resource of the General Fund. Reserved for Notes Payable This reserve was established as an offset against the portion of cash and equity in pooled cash and investments which represents assets reserved for the repayment of the notes related to tile Section 108 Loans. Reserved for Restricted Exnenditures "lllis reserve was created to restrict tile use of all resources remaining in the Special Assessment Funds included in the General Fund. The reslriction is mandated by the terms of the bond indentures in that the anaounts o11 hand are to be used only for similar projects in the assessment area. Also included in this reserve are monies which are restricted for law enforcement pulposes. Reserve for Caoital Exnenditures This reserve represents the anaount of unexpended and unencumbered funds remailfing in a departmental budget dedicated for capital expenditures in the next fiscal year. This restriction was dedicated by ordinance. The reselvc also includes Video Poker Revenues which are dedicated to Capital Expenditures. Reserved for Debt Selwice This reserve represents the amounts reserved for payment of principal and interest maturing in future years. Fund Balance Reserved for Emolovees' Pension Benefits This reseJve was created to restrict the use of all resources contributed to or earned by the Firemen's Pension mid Relief Fund. This anaount is required to be fully reserved under file Plan. l)esianated for Subseouent Years' Exncnditures This designation represents the expenditures budgeted in 1999-2000, paid from funds zemaining in 1998-1999 Desienated for Canital Additions and Inmroveme The proceeds of various bond issues and the interest earned on the investment thereof are designated for capita projects in lhe various capital projects funds to lhe extent that such amount has not been reserved for encumbrances. 
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CITY OF KENNER, 1.OUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTI'; 1 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS Interfund AssetsfLiabilities Individual fund interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 1999 are as follows RECEIVABLE FUND FUND General Special Revenue One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 Community Development Block Grant Garbage Collection and Disposal Roads and Bridges Street I .ighting Fire Department Drug Enforcement Forfeiture Debt Service General Debt Ad Valorem Tax Bonds Firemell's Pensior~ Capital Projects General Capital Projects Capital Projects Funded With Bond Proceeds 
l';ntelprise Department of Wastewater Operations Internal Service Health Insurance 
Fiduciary Ad Valorem Tax Collection Ailpori Sales Tax 
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PAYABLE FUND $ 3,664,010 $ 1,252,350 
446,156 12,869 190,236 686,708 129,438 758,745 5,000 2,229,152 65,105 105.303 170,408 712,215 712,215 

2,289,970 210,066 412,648 33,508 576.183 3,522,375 
250,000 250.000 303,582 77,406 380,988 

240,396 116,576 
3,744 
1,389,552 100,596 1,490,148 $ 7,016,181 $7,016,181 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE 1 - 1NTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) A summaly of operating transfers by fund type for the year ended June 30, 1999 is as follows 
FUND General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 
Debt Service Funds 
Capital Projects Funds 
Enterprise Funds 
Total OpclalJng Transfers NOTE J - AD VALOREM TAX 

TRANSFERS TO OR FROM Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds Enterprise Funds 
General Fund Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds CapitM Projects Fund 
Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds 
General Fund Debt Service Funds Special Revenue Funds Enterprise Funds 
General Fund Capital Projects Funds 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN $ 6,904,180 303.406 
- 7,207,586 90,146 3,492,700 - 22,118 ~ 3,604,96_4 127,327 . l,173,808 1,301,135 6,176,297 
6,176,29_27 25,906 27,045 

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT $ 90,146 6,176,297 1~139 6,267,582 6,904,180 3,492,700 127,327 10,524,207 
303,406 1,173,808 22,118 25,906 1,525,238 

The ad valorem tax on real properly is levied as of November 15th of each year. The tax becomes an enforceable lien on the property on the first day of the month following the filing of the tax rolls by the Assessor with the Louisiana Tax Commission (usually December lst). The tax bills are mailed by the City in early December and are due upon receipt. The taxes become delinquent on January 1st in the year after levy. The taxes are levied on property values delermined by the Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office. All land and residential improvements are assessed al 10 perceut of their fair market value and other property at 15 percent of its fair market value. Ad valorem taxes are levied (per $1,000 assessed value) in varying amounts for maintenance and operation, debt service and capital improvements for the City. The number of mills levied for 1999 and 1998 are as follows: 
FUN General Fund Garbage Collection and Disposal Fund Fire Department Fund Ad Valorem Tax Bonds Fund Department of Wastewater Operations Fund TOTAL 

1999 MILLS 3.51 2.71 12.42 1.13 1.93 

1998 MILLS 3.51 2.71 12.42 1.13 1.93 



NOTE K - SA1,ES TAX 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 

A sales tax of 8.75% for the period of July 1, 1998 through June 30, 1999 was collected on purchases in the City of Kenner (food and drugs are taxed at a 6% rate, and hotel/motel rooms at a 9% rate). Of the 8.75% total, 4.0% is levied by the state, and 4.75% by Jefferson Parish, for itself and other local government subdivisions within the Parish. qbe following table for parish taxes lists the effective year of each authorized tax rate, the Parish-wide tax rate (which includes 1/6% retained by the Parish), the rate collected for the benefit of the Jefferson Parish School Board, and tile rate collected for the beuefit of the City of Kenner. 
Effective Date 1954 1966 1980 1981 1984 1993 1994 TOTAL 

Parish-Wide Rate 1% 1% 1/2% 1/2% 1% 1/2% 1/4% 

School Board Rate 1/2% 1/2% 1/2% 0% 0% 1/2% 0% 

City Rate 1/2% 1/2% 0% 1/3% 1% 0% 1/4% 4 3/4% 2% 2 7/12% 
The Parish Sheriff's Office (a separate reporting entity) collects all parish taxes, except on motor vehicle sales, and retains 11% as a collection commission on the share going to local goveruments. The state collects parish taxes ou motor vehicle sales, and remits them back to the Parish of registration. The Sheriff prorates this motor vehicle tax back to the municipalities in proportion to the sales tax collected within each nmnicipality. Taxes due on sales in a month runs! be remitted by tile merchants to the Sheriff by the 20th of the following month. The Sheriff distributes these collections to the local governments approximately 30 days later. 
NOTE L - INTEREST COST Interest expense incurred in the proprietary funds during the year was as follows: 

Interest expense 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER .OPERATIONS $ 2,388 

NOTE M - SEGMENT INFORMATION-ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS $ 153 
The City maintains two Enterprise Funds of which one provides sewer services to the residents of tile City and one is used to account for the operations of the Pontchartrain Civic Center. Segment information as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, is as follows (in thousands of dollars): 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 NOTE M - SEGMENT INFORMATION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Type of service Operating revenues Deprecialion Operating loss Operating transfers m Ad valorem tax revenues ltotel/motel taxes Franchise fees Net loss Current capital contributions Properly, plant, and equipment, net Net working capital Tolal assels Total lont,-term liabilities Total fund equity 
NOTE N - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 

DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS 
Sewerage $ 4,556 1,676 (1,810) 27 451 
(1,330) 889 52,142 1,309 53,758 24 53,427 

CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS TOTAL Facility Rental $ 1,205 595 (1,112) 
334 630 (100) 20,659 1,144 22,187 21.803 

During the yeal, contributed capital increased by the following amounts (in thousands of dollars) ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
Balance at July 1, 1998 Additions: Contributions of fixed assets financed by: Municipal Government Balance at June 30, 1999 

DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS $ 68,103 $ 24,188 $ 92,291 
889 $ 68,9.9_.2 

NOTE O - TREASURE CHEST RIVERBOAT CASINO AGREEMENT 
889 $ 93,180 

$ 5,761 2,271 (2,922) 27 451 334 630 (1,430) 889 72,801 2,453 75,945 24 75,230 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE O - TREASURE CHEST RIVERBOAT CASINO AGREEMENT (CONTINUED) should file opening date occur during the Initial Term at an amount equal to $2.50 for each passenger throughout lhe remainder of the Initial Term. Commencing with the Primary Term, the Lessee paid to the City a minimum annual rent ("Base Reut'). The Base Rent for the first year of the Primary Term was $1,600,000. The Base Rent shall be determined for each subsequent lease fiscal year of the lease by multiplying the actual number of passengers during the first three quarters of the lease fiscal year by $2.50. The Base Rent for the first year of the Primary Term was calculated based upon 640,000 passengers. Commencing with the Primary Term, in addition to the Base Rent above, the Lessee shall pay to the City an amount equal to $2.50 for each passenger in excess of the number of passengers pet lease fiscal year used to determine the Base Rent for that particular year ("Per Capita Rent"). In accordance with the "Initial Improvement Plan", the Lessee paid to the City a "Lump Sum Advanced Paymenf' in the amount set forth in the Initial Improvement Plan, the proceeds of which were used by the City to make certain infiastruclure improvements. The Lessee agreed to make certain leasehold improvements at pre-approved costs and was entitled to recapture the Lump Sum Advanced Payment and that portion of the costs of the leasehold improvements by means of credits against the rent. The Lessee was entitled to deduct from its monthly rent payments 25% of such payments until the lessee has leceived a credit equal to the cost of the lent credit improvements. Total rent credits allowcd under the lease of $2,619,000 have been fully utilized as of June 30, 1998. Commencing on the opening date, in addition to the Initial Rent, Base Rent and Per Capita Rent, the Lessee shall pay to the City the "Percentage Reuf' in an amount equal to the greater of 1% of its net gaming proceeds and any admission fees in excess of $10.00 pez passenger or the "minimum percentage rent". There will be no Minimum Rent during the Initial Term. The Minimum Percentage Rent for the first year of the Primary Term was $312,853, and for each subsequent base fiscal yeas, an amount equal to the Percentage Rent for the first three quarters of the preceding base fiscal year. Such Percentage Rent shall be used 1o subsidize City projects such as City Recreational Facilities, City Playgrounds, Tourism Advertisement and Brochures, Convention Center/Hotel Shuttle, Trolley Transportation, City Museums, Alzheimer's Center Operations, City Sponsored Summer Camps, and City Senior Citizens Activities. Any funds remaining shall be dedicated 1o City capital projects. The Kenner Police Department is entitled to 24% of all lease revenues received by the City, and shall not be subject to any Rent Credits. During the Primary Term of this lease and each Renewal Term, the lessee agrees to pay to the Kenner Police I)epartment the greater of $400,000 o1 1% of net gaming proceeds. lu Septenther 1994, the riverboat casino begau operations qlle City is currently in dispute with the Parish of Jefferson over the right of Jefferson Parish to levy a $2.50 admission fee upon the patrons of the Treasure Chest Riverboat Casino. Also, the Parish of Jefferson has filed a lawsuit against the City contesting the am~exatiou by the City of Kenner of a portion of Lake Pontchartrain where the Williams Boulcvard Boat Launch and the Treasure Chest Riverboat Casino are located. While the City is not beiug sued for a sum of money, this lawsuit could affect the City's righl to collect revenue from the Treasure Chest Riverboat Casino. Management and its outside legal counsel are of the opinion that the possibility of losing this lawsuit is remote. In the prior year, the Appeals Court denied Jefferson Parish's claim that they were entitled to collect the $2.50 fee for each passenger boarding the Riverboat. This decision was virtually dispositive of the case and no further action has been taken on it by the Parish of Jefferson. The lawsuit was a declaratory judgment broughl by the City of Kelmer against the Parish of Jefferson. It has not been dismissed but the Appeals Court decision described above virtually ends any chance that Jefferson may have to a claim for the boarding fees. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 

NOTE P - RISK MANAGEMENT The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; enors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. To account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss, the City has established a Self-Insurance Fund (an internal service fund). Under this program, the Self-Insurance Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of $250,000 for each general liability claim with commeJvial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by lhe fund up to $10,000,000; $250,000 for each auto liability claim with commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund up to $10,000,000; and $300,000 for each worker's compensation claim with commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund up to $1,000,000. "Ilae City purchases commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. Also, the Fund provides coverage for auto/physical damage which requil~s a $1,000 deductible per department per occurrence. The remaining balance on the claim is paid by the Fund. All funds of the City with employees, except for the Department of Wastewater Operations and the Civic Centel Operations Funds, participate in the program and make payments to the fund based on an actuarial valuation dated July 1996 adjusted by the actual performance of the programs using historical experience. The claims liability of $2,367,188 (which includes claims incurred but not reported of $915,368 reported in the Fund at June 30, 1999 is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be repoJled if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the anaount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 30, "Risk Financing Omnibus - An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 10", requnes that specific, incremental claim adjustment expenses and estimated recoveries be considered in calculating the claims liability. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during fiscal years 1999 and 1998 were as follows: 

1997-1998 1998-1999 
Beginning of Fiscal Year Liability $1,301,143 $1,833,628 

Current Year Claims and Changes in Claim Estimales Payments $ 1,061,760 $ 1,085,930 $ (529,275) $ (552,370) 
Balance at Fiscal Year End $1,833,628 $2,367,188 

HEALTH INSURANCE The City provides health and accident insurance to its employees through health maintenance organizations (ltMO's) and commeicial iusurance carriers. The City has no additional liability other than the initial premiums. NOTE Q - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES LITIGATION The City is a defendant in a number of claims and lawsuits resulting principally fiom personal injmT, property damage, and excessive assessment claims. The City Attorney and outside counsel have reviewed these claims and lawsuits in order to evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the City and to arrive at an estimate, if any, office anmunt or range of potenfial loss to the City. As a result of such review, the various claims and lawsuits have been categorized into "probable", "reasonably possible", and "remote" contingencies as defined in GASI/ Codification C50. The City's "reasonably possible" loss contingencies at June 30, 1999 for which an amount of liability can be estimated ranges from $60,000 to $620,000, and is not reflected in these financial statements. All probable claims have been accrued as liabilities in the City's Self-Insurance Fund. See Note P for additional details. The City is also currently in dispute with the Parish of Jefferson over the right of Jefferson Parish to levy a $2.50 admission fee upon the patrons of the Treasure Chesl Riverboat Casino. See Note O for additional details. 
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CITY OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 

NOTE Q - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) FEDI;RALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS The City receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal and state govennnental agencies in the form of grauts, qlae disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance wilh temls and conditions specified in the grant agreements. The programs are audited in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984 and 1996 Amendments and also subject to further examination by the grantor agency. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds, llowever, ill tile opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material effect on any of the financial statements. EI~A ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER On November 30, 1990, the United Slates Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) issued the City au Administrative Order for sewerage effluent violations. As a result, the City has initiated a sewer rehabilitation project for which costs are approximately $15 million. Failure to comply with the provisions of the Order could result in monetary fines or an EPA administrative penalty. See Note G for additional infomaation regarding the financing of the sewer rehabilitation project. AGREEMENT FOR OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES OF THE KENNER WASTEWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT SYSTEMS In July 1995, the City entered into an agreement with Professional Services Group, lnc. ("PSG") for the management, operation and maintenance of the Wastewater Collection and Treatment Systems. PSG offered employment to all personnel of Kenner who were currently assigned full-time to the Wastewater Department. The term of the agreement is for five years commencing on July 1, 1995. PSG's compensation under the agreement consists of an annnal fee. For the first four years of the agreement, PSG's annual fee is $4,409,261. The annual fee will be adjusted at the end of the fourth contract year in accordance with the CPI Adjustment Formula as stipulated in the agreement. CITY OF KENNER FIREFIGtlTERS The Firefighlers Association filed a class-action lawsuit against the City in 1994, alleging it violated State law by not giving firefighters the full 18 days of annual vacation required. The suit bounced back and forth between the district, appealed, and Supreme Court, before the Firefighters Association eventnally lost in the 24th Judicial District Court in 1998. The Fireflghters Association appealed, and the 5tl~ Circuit appellate court reversed the decision in August 1999. The case will be brought back to court in order to affix a dollar amount to the judgment. At the time of this report, a judgment amount is undeterminable and is therefore not reflected in the financial statements. COPS GRANT PROGRAM In the prior year, questioned costs arose related to the Kenner Police Department hiring an officer before May 1, 1996, the COPS Universal ttiring Program ("UHP") grant award date; and requesting reimbursement of COPS More '96 gzant funds for equipmenl/technology expended before June 1, 1997, the COPS More '96 grant award date. After a Monitoring Division site visit and infomaation provided by the Keimer Police Department, it was determined by the COPS Otfice that the City of Kenner violated a condition of the COPS UHP and More '96 by expending grant fimds for au officer hired before the grant award stma date and by requesting reimbursement for equipment purchased before the grant award start date. Therefore, the COPS Office is requesting the re~arn of a portion of the COPS UHP gran! award and the entire COPS More '96 grant award for a total of $468,220. The City with its legal counsel is in the process of negotiations with the COPS Office in an effort to resolve this matter favorably for the City. Since the status of these negotiations is mrknnwn at the time of this report, this amount will not be reflected as a liability in the financial statements but will be reported as a questioned cost as of June 30, 1999 in the Schedule of Findiugs and Questioned Costs. LEASE ('OMMI'IMENTS - GENERAL Leases are accounted for in accordance with GASB Codification Section L20-Leases, which requiles classification of leases as capital or operating leases. Governmental fund assets under capital leases are recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group and the lease obligations are recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. 56 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE Q - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) Capital lease The City entered into a Municipal Lease and Option Agreement for the purchase of various equipment to be leased/purchased by the City. On Septenrber 11, 1996, a lease/purchase and escrow addendum was made to fl~e original lease/purchase agreement dated December 7, 1995. Monthly payments began in October 1996 for a term of 10 years with payments of $8,384 per month. Funding for the lease payments will result fiom the energy savings derived from the installation of such equipment. The following is a schedule of the future minimum value of the mininmm lease payments as of June 30, Year-Ending June 30th 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005-2007 Total minimum lease payments Less amount representing interest Present value of future minimum lease payments Operating leases 

lease payments under the capital lease together with tile present 1999. Governmental Funds $ 100,613 100,613 100,613 100,613 100,613 226,379 729,444 I156,270 L573,174 
The City is committed under various leases for buildings. These leases are considered for accounting purposes to be operating leases. Lease expenditures for the year ended June 30, 1999 amounted Io $47,532. Future mininmm lease payments for these leases are as follows: Year Ending June 30~ 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 Thereafter TOTAl, 
NOTE R -. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

Amounts $ 47,532 47,532 47,532 47,532 47,532 _ 11,883 249,543 
The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance wi01 lnternal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until lennination, retirement, death, oi unforeseeable emergency. In 1996, the U.S. Congress passed the Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996, which requires that employer governments place all amounts defened under IRC Section 457 into a trust for the exclusive benefit of participants 
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CITY OF KENNER, 1.OUIS1ANA NOTES TO FINANCIAl. STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1999 

NOTE R - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

NOTE S - POSTEMPI.OYMENT BENEFITS In addition to the pension benefits described in Note T, the City provides postretirement health care and life insurance benefits, authorized by City resolution, to all retirees with 20 years or more of service. Expenditures for postretirenlent health care and life insurance benefits are recognized as the premiums are paid by the City, which is required to pay only the retirees' portion. The rethee must pay the portion of the prenfium related to any dependents. At June 30, 1999, sixty-eight retirees were eligible and were receiving such health care benefits. Total health care premiums amounted to $189,280, of which $139,606 (74%) was paid by the City and $49,674 (26%) was paid by the retirees for the year ended June 30, 1999. Life insurance premiums paid by the City for seventy eligible retirees amounted to $2,569 for the year-ended June 30, 1999. These post retirement health care and life insurance benefits are not accounted for as a defined benefit pension plan thus Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 26 "1financial Reporting for Postemployment llealthcare Plans Administered by Defined Benefit Pension Plans" does not apply. NOTE T - PENSION PLANS G l ".N F.RA ] "]'he City reporting entity participates in tlu'ee defined benefit pension plans. Assets are held separately and may be used only for the payment of benefits to the members of the respective plans, as follows: Substantially all of the City's full-lime, permanent employees, other than those employed by the Kenner Fire Department and Kenner Police Department are participants in the Municipal Employees' Retirement System, State of Louisiana (the Municipal Plan), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan. All full-lime officers of the Police Department of the City are participants in the Municipal Police Employees Retirement System (the Police Plan), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Prior to the merger with the Statewide Firefighters Retirement System ("SFRS") as of March 27, 1999, the employees of the Filc Department of the City were participants in the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (The Firemen's Plan), a single-employer defined benefit plan administered by a five member Board of Trustees. A contingeucy fund remaius to handle those six (6) naelaabers who could retire after twenty (20) years of service if hired before April 1, 1978. Upon these members meeting the qualifications for retirement under the Statewide Plan, no fnrther benefits would be liable fi'orn the contingency fund. PLAN I)ESCRIPTIONS Municinal Emolovees' Retirement System. Slate of Louisiana (The Municioal Plan Employees of the City participate in Plan A of the Municipal Plan. Under the Municipal Plan, employees with 10 years of service may retire at age 60, employees with 25 years of service may retire at age 55, and employees with 30 yeats of service may retire regardless of age. In addition, employees may also retire with 20 years of service regardless of age; however, the benefits payable to such employees must be actuarially reduced and such employees may not participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP). Effective July 1, 1999, employees with 25 years of service may retise or participate in the DROP, regardless of age. The monthly amount of the retirement allowa~ce is equal to 3 percent of the member's final compensation multiplied by his years of service. Retirement benefits are payable monthly for the life of the retiree, and upon the retiree's death, under certain conditions, are payable Io the surviving spouse. "]'he Municipal Plan retirement information in this Note is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation, June 30, 1998. The Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial stateme1~ts and required supplementary information. The financial report may 58 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1999 

NOTE T - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) be obtained from the Baton Rouge office of the Legislative Auditor and, where appropriate, at the office of the parish clerk of court. Municipal Police Employees Retirement System (The Police Plan) Members of the Police Plan are eligible for normal retirement after they have been a member of the plan for one year, if they have 25 years of service at any age or they have 20 years service and are age 50 or have 12 years service and are age 55. Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211 - 11:2233. The monflfly ietirement benefit is equal to 3 1/3 percent of tile member's average monthly earnings during the highest consecutive 36 months, multiplied by years of cl~ditable service, not to exceed 100 percent of member's final compensation. Retirement benefits are payable monthly to the retiree, and upon the death oftbe retiree, under certain conditions, are payable to the sureiving spouse and minor children. The Police Plan retirement information m this Note is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation, June 30, 1998. The Municipal Police Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The financial report may be obtained from the Baton Rouge office of the Legislative Auditor and, where appropriate, at the office of the parish clerk of coup1. Firenreu's Pension and Relief Fund (The Firemen's Plan Prior to the merger with the Statewide Plan, all permanent active employees of the Fire Department were eligible for participation. Under the Firemen's Plan, members prior lo April 1, 1978, with 20 years of service may retire. Contribution requirements were determined and authorized by Act 765 of the 1989 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature and appruved by the City Council of the City of Kem~er, Louisiana Resolution B - 8679 dated February 15, 1990. Contribution increases are established under Act 558 of the 1995 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Effective March 27, 1999, all contributions are made directly to the State for those members who merged with the SFRS. The amounts remaining in the contingency fund are deemed adequate for any potential contingency fund liabilities related to those members on the 20 year plan. Therefore, no additional contributions will be made In the contingency fund. Members after March 31, 1978 and on or before September 30, 1995 with 30 years of service are eligible to retire. Members after September 30, 1995 with 30 years of service and upon reaching age 55 are eligible to retile. Retirement benefits for members prior to April 1, 1978, arc 66 2/3 percent of monthly salary at the thne of retirement for 20 to 24 years of service, 75 percent of salary for 25 to 29 years of service, and 85 percent of salaly for 30 or more years of service. Retirement benefit for members after March 31, 1978, is 85 percent of the monthly salary received at time of retirement. Retirement benefits are payable monthly for the life of the retiree, and upon the retiree's death, under certain conditions, are payable to the surviving spouse. Due to the mezger in March 1999, only six Kenner members remaiu eligible for such benefits under the Fuud. Upon these members reaching the qualificatiolls for retirement under the Statewide Plan, no further benefits would be liable from the contingency fund. The Firemen's Plan retirement information in this note is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation, June 30, 1997. An actuarial valuation as of June 30, 1999 is in progress and will reflect the changes to the plan as a result of the merger witb the SFRS in March 1999. The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary informatioll. The financial report may be obtained fiom the City of Kenner, Louisiana. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The City's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer coulributions to each plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with file terms of each plan. METI1OD USEI) TO VALUE INVESTMENTS As requiled by Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 25, "Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosure for Defined Contribution Plans", investments are reported at fair value. Short- term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national or interuational exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price at cmxent exchange rates. Corporate bonds are valued based on 
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NO'I'E T - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) yields currently available on comparable securities from issuers of similar credit ratings. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value. Besides investments in the U.S. Government and U.S. Government obligations, the Plans had no investments ill any one organization which represented more than 5% of tile net assets available for benefits. COVEREI) PAYROI.I~ The total payroll, as well as the covered payroll, for each of tile plans for file year-ended June 30, 1999 were as follows: 
Municipal Plan Police Plan Firemen's Plan CURRENT MEMI~ERSttlP 

$ 8,021,589 6,349,600 2,063,971 
COVERED $ 7,349,879 4,507,356 2,014,067 

At June 30, 1997 (latest date for which such information was available at the date of this report), the plan membership of the Firemen's Plan consisted of: Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees who are entitled to receive benefits but are not yet receiving benefits Active plan participants Fully vested Partially vested q'otal 3 833 11_~6 Membership data for the Municipal Plan and Police Plan, cost-sharing multiple-employer plans, are not available by individual employer. CONTRIBUTIONS REQUIRED AND MADE Prior to the merger with the Statewide Plan in March 1999, the funding policy for the Firemeo's Plan provided fol employer contributions of 13.0 percent and employee contributions of 9.0 percent of the gross salary ofpallicipating employees. These rates were established by state statutes and adopted by the City. Contributions rates me not acmarially detemfined. Effective March 27, 1999, all contributions are made directly to the State for those membms who melged with the Statewide Firefighters Retirement System ("SFRS"). The amounts remainiug in the contingency fund are deemed adequate for any potential contingency fund l/abilities related to those members on the 20 year plan. Therefore, no additional contributions will be made to the contingency fund. In addition, prior to file merger, file employer also contributed the file insurance tax it received from the State of Louisiana. The fire iusurance tax is now used by file City to assist in paying the existing merger liability. The Plan further provides that the City of Kenner shall replenish file Fund in amounts equivalent to any deficit resulting from the payment of the benefits provided by the Plan. Prior to the mergel with the Slatewide Plan in March 1999, contributions required and made for the single-employer plan is comprised of the following as of June 30, 1999: 
Contributions required and made Employer Employee 

FIREMEN'S PLAN 
$ 271,425 181,266 $ 452,691 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUIH)) June 30, 1999 

NOTE T. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) Contributions made as a percentage of covez~d payroll Employer Employee 13.48% 9.00% As a result of the merger effective March 27, 1999, there was no unfunded pension benefit obligation as of June 30 1999. Tile fuuding policies for file Municipal Plan and the Police Plan provide for contributions at actuarially determined rates. The contribution rates of the Municipal Plan are determined using the frozen attained age normal cost method, with tile unfunded accrued liability being funded over a 33 year period. Member contributions are established by slate statute and are 9.25% of covered payroll. The contribution rates of tile Police Plan are determined using the entlT age normal cost method, wilh the unfunded accrued liability being funded over a 33 year period. Member contributions are established by stale statute at 7.5% of covered payroll. Contributions required and made for file Municipal Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan were as follows Citv Emnlovees Annual Year Ending Required June 30 Contribution 1997 1998 1999 $1,083,879 1,106,852 1,102,286 
Contribution $445,409 424,502 422.622 

% of Covered _~yroll Contribution 6.25 5.75 5.75 $638,470 682,350 679.664 
% of Covered Payroll 9.00 9.25 9.25 

Contributions required and made for the Police Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan were as follows Citv Emnlovees Annual Year Ending Required June 30 .Contribution 1997 1998 1999 $579,326 661,347 743,714 
Contribution $315,996 360,735 405,662 

% of Covered Pay_roll Contribution 9.00 9.00 9.00 $263,330 300,612 338.052 
%of Covewd Payroll 7.50 7.50 7.50 

The Municipal Plan and the Police Plan, cost sharing multiple-employer plans, do not conduct separate measurements of assets and actuarial accrued liability for individual employers. The City's contributions to the Municipal and Police Plans represented 6.4 and 3.0 percent, respectively, of total contributions required of all employers. TRENI) INFOIhMATION Historical trend information is presented ill order for a reader to assess the progress made ill accumulating sufficieul assels to pay pension benefits as dley become due. Six-year historical trend information is presented in tile Supplementary lnforulation Section of this reporl for tht Firelnen's Plan. Six-year historical trend infomlation for the Municipal Plan and tbe Police Plan is available in thc separately issued reports. NOTE U - APPROPRIATION OF STATE MONIES The expansion of the Pontchartrain Ceuter's facilities constl~action contract, including change orders, totaled was completed on December 15, 1997. The completed $3,699,344. The expansion was financed by $1,500,000 
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NOTE 11 - APPROPRIATION OF STATE MONIES (CONTINUED) received from the Louisiana Stadium and Exposition District and the balance of the contract was provided by file City of Kenner from proceeds from its issuance of Certificate Indebtedness Series 1996B. NOTE V - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS .Road Tax Millage On November 20, 1999, voters approved the renewal of a 15-year road tax for maintenance of the City's major streets. The City will begin levying the 10.35 mill property tax in 2003, when it expires with Jefferson Parish. In addition, Jefferson Parish will loan $500,000 per year beginning 1999 through 2002 which will be repaid to Jefferson Parish upon the City's collection of the 10.35 mill properly tax. Collection and Dist~osal of Solid Waste On September 2, 1999 an ordinance was passed increasing user fees for the collection and disposal of solid waste. These fees were increased due to the closing of the landfill utilized by the City of Kenner, thus requiring the City to utilize a new disposal site at considerably greater cost and to cover the increase in the amount paid to the solid waste collection contractor. NOTE W - AVAIl.ABILITY OF SEPARATE FINANCIAL REPORTS Separate audited financial reports for the year ended June 30, 1999, containing additional information as required by the revenue bond indentures, and more detailed information regarding operating results, are available from file City for the following fuuds: 
Enterprise Funds Pontchartrain Center Operations 
Pension "l'l~st Funds Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund 
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Auditors Rebowe & Company CPAs & Consultants, APC 
Rebowe & Company CPAs & Consultants, APC 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION 



998 997 996 995 994 993 

Actuarial Value of Assets (a) 
9,222 7,042 6,554 6,128 5.677 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA REQI.JIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFOP, MATION SCIIEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (In thousands of dollars) HREMEN'S PENSION ANti I~.ELIH: FUND June 30. 1999 

Actuarial Acclued Liability (AAL) Entry Age (b) 
3,673 2,217 5,605 4,783 3.737 
67.45% 57.64% 42.00% 41.45% 41.33% 

Uufunded AAL (UAAI,) (b-a) 
4,451 5,175 9,051 8,655 8.060 

2,014 2,523 2,224 2,049 1,940 1.964 

UAAI. as a l'ercentage of Covered Payroll ((b-a)/c) 
176.42% 232.69% 441.73% 446.13% 410.39% 

Analysis of the dollar amounts of actuarial assets, actuarial accrued liability, and uafunded actuarial accrued liability in isolation can be misleading. Expressing actuarial value of assets as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability provides one indication of the l"und's fimding status on a going concern basis. Analysis of this percentage over lime indicates whethel tile l.'uud is Ilcconling fillaucially stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater this perceutage, tile slrouger tile l:und. Trends in the unfimded actuarial accrued liability and almual covered payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation and aids ill the analysis of the progress inadc ill accuululaling sufficient assets to pay benefits when dtle. Generally the slnaller this pcrccnlage, the stronger the Fund. The above inforlnatiou is reported as lhe latest dale for which such inforlnalion is reported as of the latest date for which such information was available at the dale of this report. All actuarial vahlation as of June 30, 1999 is in progress and will reflect the changes to the plan as a result of the mergel with the SFRS ill March 1999. 

* All actuarial valuation report was not prepared for tile year ended Juue 30, 1998 
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Y~al Ended June 30 999 998 997 996 995 994 

CITY OF KI'NNER, I,OUISIANA P, IgQUII/I:~I) SUPPI,I~,MENI'ARY INFORMA'I ION OF IgMPI,f)YEP, CONTI~,IBLfI'IONS AND TRFNI) INFOI~,MATION (/n tbousallds of doflars) FIRI'MI'N'S PI'NSION AND RI~;I,II~;F FUND Junc 30. 1999 

Annual ])elision Cost (AI'C)* $ 271,425 473,643 437,313 430,767 410,377 380.186 

Pcrcenlagc of AI'C Contributed 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Net I)ensioll Obligation 

* The inforlnatioll plesentcd ill the required Stlpplelncnlary schedules was detcllnincd as part of the actuarial valuations at tile dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest acltlarial vahlation follows: 

Actuarial assumptions: ]]lvcgln~enl rate of rchlrll: Before administrative expenses After adininishativc expenses 

An actuarial valuation as of Junc 30. 1999 is in progrcss and w a rcsull of the merger with the SFRS in March 1999. 

6/30/97 I'nlry age l,cvcl percent open 3(1 years Accrual method of accounting and recording invcstll/~nts at amortized COSt 
18.33% 17.51% 3.0% - 6,0% 3.0% 



.~Q~ N CI 13~ERSON Belly ]~onura "l'cn y McCarthy Marc JohllSOU John T. I,avarine, Jeannic Black Michelle Brauigau Philip L. Capitano 

('ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA RFQUII/.ED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCIIEDUI,E OF COUNCILPERSON'S COMPENSATION Year Ended June 30, 1999 

NUMBER O1" DAYS SERVED ~QMPENSATION 365 365 365 365 365 365 365 
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$ 30,690 29,202 23,291 20,592 24,453 23,219 23,219 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION YEAR 2000 DISCLOSURES (UNAUD1TED) June 30, 1999 

Tile Year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing systems and othel electrouic equipment lhat may adversely affect the operations of tbe City. As of June 30, 1999, the City completed the assessment stage necessary to implement a Year 2000 compliant system. This stage included establishing a project plan to address the Year 2000 issues and identifying systems and individual system components that may be affected by the Year 2000 and that are necessary to conducting the City operations. The City completed validation aud testiug of system changes for fiuancial, public operations and adlninistrative functions by December 15, 1999. The City has also initiated formal conmaunications with a substantial majority of its significant suppliers to dcternrine tbeir plans to address the Year 2000 issue. While the City expects a successful resolution of all issues, ihele can be no guarantee thai the systems of other companies on which the City relies will be converted by a supplier or that a failure to convert by a supplier would not have a material adverse effect on the City. Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related renrediation efforts will not be fully determinable until file Year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that the City is or will be Year 2000 ready, that the City remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the City does business will be Year 2000 ready. 
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND AND ACCOUNT GROUP STATEMENTS 
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GENERAL FUND 
The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City of Kenner, and accounts for the financial resomces and expenditures not accounted for in any other fund. 
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CITY OF K|:,NNF.R, LOUISIANA (IENERAI. FUNI) BA1.ANCE SI II':ET June 30, 1999 
ASSETS Cash Equity in pooled cash and investments Iiivcsttllcrlts Receivables (net, where applicable, of allowanccs for uncollectibles) Accounts lntergovcrnn'mr~tal Special assessments - delir~quenl Interest l)ue from other funds 1 nvcntory I'repaid items TOTAl, ASSFTS 
AI~II.I'I'II'S AND FLJNI) I~AI.ANCE labilities Accounts payable Retailmge payable Accrued liabilities Due to other funds ])ue to other governnlents Deferred igVCllHe Other liabilities TOTAl, I,IABII 3TI1~S 
Fund balance l~.escrved for encurtlbrallCCS Reserved for inventory Reserved for prepaid iterns Reserved for restricted expenditures Reserved for capital expenditures Unreserved Designated for subsequent years' expenditures Undesignated TOTAl, FUNI) BAI,ANCE TOTAl, 1,1AI~II.I'I'II~S AND FUND BA1.ANCF 

'he aceonlpanying notes ale all integra] ])art of this statenlenl. 68 

$ 133,179 1,034,918 14.039.039 
4,659,182 3,100,656 26,697 24 3,664,010 71,148 14,276 $ 26.743.129 

$ 1,291,731 190,011 591,459 1,252,350 794,639 1,152,970 136,11 I 5,409,27 
7,921,429 71,148 14,276 886,320 5,325,128 3,110,461 4.005.096 21.333.858 $ 26,743,129 



REVEN[O 8 "1 axes ],iccnses and permits Inlergovernnlental Charges for services Fmcs and f0rfcilures Interest o1~ ilwcsled funds Miscellaneous "10"1AI, REVliNUES EXPENI)I I LJRE8 Gclmral goverlmlenl Public safety Public works I lcalth and welfare Culttlre and lcereaOon I ransil and urban development Miscellaneous "1 O'1AI, EXPI]NI )I'IURES iXCI;SS (I)IiFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNI)ER EXI'ENI)I3 URI';S 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GI'~NERAL FUND OF RF, VENLJI'~S, EXI'I(NI)ITUI~,IsS, AND CIIANGES IN FUNI) BAI,ANCE - BUDGH" AND ACTUAI, Year Ended June 30. 1999 

ACTUA $26,855,187 2,399,576 2,366,336 438,353 1,846,210 717,286 128,296 
7,718,928 16,942,062 2,696,614 789,516 3,862,742 436,047 1,546,418 
758,917 O'111ER FINANCING SOURCI'.S 0JSES) Operafng Iransfe/s ill 7,207,586 Operaling Irans fets out (6,267,582) "l O'1AI, O'1111iR FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 940,004 iXCl',8$ (I)Id:ICII',NCY) OF REVIiNUES AND O]11ER SOURCES OVER (UNDISR EX PI':N DI I URI',S AND OTI IER USES 

AI)JUS1 MI!N3' 3'O I~UDGF.TARY BASIS BUI)GE] ARY 

255,599 5,728,050 584,824 1,061 79 078 

$ 26,855,187 2,399,576 2,366,336 438,353 1,846,210 717,286 128,296 
$ 25,287,504 2,287,477 1,818,848 400,60(I 1,440,905 550,000 93,570 

VARIANCI; I:AVORABI .li (UNFAVORAI~I,E) $ 1,567,683 112,099 547,488 37,753 405,305 167,286 34.726 34,751,244 31,878,904 2,872,340 
7,974,527 22,670,112 3,281,438 790,577 3,941,820 436,047 1,531,597 
8,928,550 25,545,539 3,282,611 802,047 4,479,784 372,453 1,552,648 6 633 791 40 626 118 44 963 632 

954,023 2,875,427 1,173 11,470 537,964 (63,594 21 051 
(6,633,791) (5,874,874) (13,084,7281 7,209,854 
7,207,586 6,265,305 942,281 (6,267,582) (6,072,756) (194,826) 940.004 192.549 747455 

FUND BAI ,ARCE A] BEGINNIN(I OF YEAR 19,634,937 1,671,510 21,306,447 21,306,447 $2],333,858 $ (4,962,2811 $16,371,577 
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'1 AXI!S Ad valorem tax Sales tax Beer tax Parking tax }:rallchises lilcctricity servicc Ga~ service Ofl~tt ack wagering llotcllmolcl tax 'lelephonc Rivcrboal '10TAI. 'I AXI!S .ICt'NSES AND PliRMH'S Ihlsincss Occupational AIc~h~lic bevvragc Chain store Plulnbing I Icclrical "la~i cab Air conditioning Bingo Aninlal conlrol "10"1AL BUSINESS Non-business Building Garage sales Brake tags 

CITY OF KENNER, LOI.JISIANA GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUI)GET AND ACTUAL Year Ended June 30. 1999 
ACTUA $ 820,868 14,491,494 88,619 1,305,421 
AI)JUSTMENT 3"0 BU I)GI';TARY BASIS IIUI)GI TARY IIUI)Gli'I $ 824,157 12.931,689 82,834 1,230,306 1,255,603 146,027 268,159 98,450 465,020 7,985,259 

VARIANCE I:AVORAIII.I( (UN FAVOI~.AIII ,t!) 0,289 559,805 5,785 75./15 (13,862) (6,027) 11,816 10,149 (3,066) 668,743) 26,855,187 26,855,187 25,287,504 1,567,683 
722,077 71,257 71,636 32,275 18,95D 37,610 16,267 302 724 971,098 
90,184 4,348 333.949 "IOIAI, NON-BUSINESS 428,478 "IO'IAI I.ICIINSES AND I'I!I~,MI'I S IN fI~RGOVlilINMI!NTAI };rOlll slate q obacco tax ]'arish transportation fired I'arish road fimd Video pokcr ()tiler slale glalflS Fronl olhcr local govclnnlellt subdivisions Jefferson (ouncil on Agillg Jefferson Parish 

321,647 376,876 208,870 782,201 422,512 
43,230 211.000 "I O'I AI, IN'I I RGOVI!RN MI'INTAI, 2,366,336 
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722,077 71,257 71.636 32,275 18,950 37,610 16,267 302 724 

650,833 65,282 71,568 31,452 18,665 35,595 16,301 833 682 

71,244 5,975 68 823 285 2,015 (34) (53]) 42 971,098 1,891,211 79,887 
90,184 4,345 333.949 428,478 
2,399,576 
321,647 376,876 208,870 782,201 422,512 
43,230 211,000 2,366,336 

76,528 4,863 314.875 396,266 

321,646 389,532 187,236 668,834 
40,600 211.000 

3,656 (518) 9.074 32,212 

547,488 



CIIARGliS FOR SliRVICES 7,o~ing fees Inspccliotl lees lilcctl ical Ptimlbing Air condilloning heating, aud other Maps and docunlen| sales "l ax [~scarch fccs Police tcpolls Weed culling fees Recreation dcpartnlent Par0cipalion Ices Adnllsslon fccs Idenlitication and olhcr I~es ('onlmllnily SC[ViC&~ I~es Administrative charges 

CII'Y OF KENNER, I ~OIJISIANA GI'NERA1. FUND SCI 1EDUI.E OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI~ (CONTINUED) Year Ended June 30, 1999 
ACTUAL 21,775 48,335 29.831 25,483 4,390 15,320 37,964 78,375 1,881 11,733 375 350 62,541 "l O'1 AI, CIIARGI':S FOR SliRVICliS 438,353 FINES AND I'ORFI~ITUF.I:S Fines Forfeiturcs l)Wl titles I{einsla[enlt nt fees TO'I AI. I:IN ES AND FORFI!rI'IJI/I!S 
636,203 187,206 10,576 12,225 

N'I I RI~ST ON INVI~STEI) FI.JNI)S 717,286 MISCI!I I .ANEOL1S I)onafons P.t:nls ()tiler invgStlllenl hlCOlllC ()tiber "1 O'1AI, MISCEI ,I .ANEOUS TO'I AI, RI~VI!N III!S 

2,570 17,290 76,762 31.674 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUI)GETARY BASIS BUDGETARY $ 

$ 

$ 21,775 48.335 29.831 25,483 4.390 15.320 37,964 78,375 1,881 11.733 375 350 62,541 438.353 
636,203 187,206 10,576 12,225 
,846,210 

VARIANCI~ FAVORABI3! (UNFAVOI~.AI~I 3~) $ gNO0 39,056 19,562 20.063 3,500 17.000 44,000 64.071 16.500 103.048 3,500 700 61.000 
4o0,60o_ 
,263,471 155,481 14,053 7.900 
1,440 905 550.000 
7,890 65,000 __ 20,68o 93.570 $ 31,878,904 

3,175 9,279 0.269 5,420 890 0,680) (6,036) 14.304 (14,619) g,695 (3,1251 (350) 1,541 
37.753 
72,732 31,725 (3,477) 4,325 
405,305 67,286 
2,570 9,400 1,762 0.994 



GENliRAI, GOVliRNMEN'I I'ersonncl Supplies Service charges Capilal outlay 

CITY OF KI'NNER, LOUISIANA GI~NI~;RAI, FUNI) OF FXPENI)I'I'URI~;S - BUDGET AND ACTUA Year Fnded June 30. 1999 
ACTUA AI)JUS3 MENT "10 BUI)GETAI/Y BASIS IIUI)GE3 ARY $ 3,121,605 $ 109,173 4,174,467 313.683 (3,245 200,015 58.829 '10TAI. G I!NIiKAL GOVIiRNMliN'I $ 7,718.928 $ 255,599 

~UHI IC SAFI~'I'Y Personnel Supplies Service charges Capilal oullay 
$ 8,436,451 $ 641,635 2,835,000 5,028,976 "10"1AI. I~UIH .]C SAFH'Y $ 16,942,062 
,811,936 590,488 124,264 169,926 "IO'IAI, I'UBI3C WORKS $ 2,696,614 A171"t I AND Wlil ,FARI' I'ersonnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
$ 632,582 135,265 21,669 

"10"1AL 10';AI.'111 AND WliI,FARE $ 789,516 
CUI .'lURE AND RI ~CRI ~A'I'ION I'ersonnel Supplics Service charges Capilal oullay 

$ 2,459,191 266,300 1,001,186 136.065 

$ 3,121,605 105.928 4,374,482 372,512 
$ 3,179,521 136,726 5,060,970 551,333 $ 7,974,527 $ 8,928,550 

$ 8,436,451 (146,071) 495,564 10,701 2,845,701 5,863,420 10,892,396 $ 5,728,050 $ 22,670,112 
21,461 24,013 15 036 $ 1,833,397 614,501 139,300 694,240 

$ 9,872,888 610,055 3,013,019 12,049,577 

VARIANCE FAVORABI,li 03NFAVORAIII,I!) 57,916 30,798 686,488 178,821 954.023 
436,437 114,491 167,318 157 181 

$ 584,824 $ 3,281,438 $ 3,282,611 
$ 632,582 $ 637,053 136,326 138,534 21,669 26,460 

10,408 35,715 14,576 
4,471 2,208 4.791 

061 $ 790,577 $ 802,047 $ 11,470 
3,609 (2,692) 78,161 
$ 2,459,191 $ 269,909 998,494 214,226 

2,515,961 290,616 1,420,431 252,776 
56,770 20,707 421,937 38,550 "IO'IAI. CUI:'IURIiAND I/liCRliA'II6)N $ 3+862,742 $ 79,078 $ 3.941.820 $ 4.479.784 $ 537.964 
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q RANSI'I Personnel Supplies Service charges Capilal oullay 

CITY OF KENNI'~R, LOUISIANA GENI'RA1. FUND SCI IH)UI.E OF I'~XPENDITURI'~S - I~IJI)G}'T AND ACTUAL (CONTINUF.I)) Year F.ndcd June 30.1999 
AC'IUA AI)JUS'I MENT 30 BUDGIiI'ARY I'~ASI S BUI)Glil ARY BLIDGIi] VARIAN( }: FAVORAIHJ (UNI AVORAIH Ji) 

436,047 372,453 (63.594 "10"l AI. "1 RANSI'I $ 436.047 $ $ 436.047 $ 372,453 
MISCEIJ .ANI~OUS I'ersonnel Supplies Service charges Cnpital outlay 

$ 105,577 ] ,440,841 
"10TAI. MISCEI.I,ANliOtJS $ 1.546,418 
"10 I'AI. EXPENI)I'IURliS Pcrsolmel Supplies Service clmrges Capital outlay 

6,567,342 1,742,861 0,033,474 5,648,650 

$ (14,821) 
21,461 (120,633) 208.239 6,524.724 

105.577 426.020 $ 106.648 1,446.000 
$ (63,594) 
1,071 9.980 

6,588,803 1,622,228 0,241,713 2,173,374 
$ 18.155,876 1.826,147 11.493,209 13.488A00 

,567,073 203,919 ,251,496 ,315,026 'IO'IAI.liXPliNDITURES $ 33,992,327 $ 6,633.791 $ 40,626,118 $ 44.963.632 $ 4,337,514 
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CITY OF KFNNIIR, I.OUISIANA GI~NI(RAI. FUNI) COMBINING SCI IEI)UI.I~ OF I)IiI'ARTMIINTAI. IIXPI'~NI)ITURFS - BUI)GH" AND A(YI'UA GENERAl. GOVIiRNMF, NT FUNC I'ION Year Ended June 30. 1999 

ACfUA $ 547,277 28,002 84,245 6,364 'IO'IAI. liXI'I'NI)ITLJRIIS $ 665.888 

I-XI'I'NI)ITURliS ['crsol~nC] Supplies SOl vice charges Capital outlay 
ACTUAl 96,304 7,899 16,426 2.616 qO'lAI, 15XPI;NI)ITUI(liS $ 223,245 

~XI'IiNI)I'I UltJ iS Pt~lSOnnc] Supplies 8crvicc chargcs ( apilal millay 
AC'I UAI $ 211,729 4,605 10,823 5.195 TO'IAI, 15XI'I';NI)I'IUI~.I!S $ 232,352 

AI)JUSTMENT TO ~UI)Gli'I'ARY BASIS I~UI)Gli'I ARY 
(3,462) 481 

$ (2,981) 
MAYOR'S OI:FICI'~ 

547,277 24,540 84,726 6,364 $ 662,907 

AI)JUSTMI'~N 1' TO I~UI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GH'AI~,Y $ 96 4.748 
$ 196,304 7,995 16,426 7,364 

$ 555,871 44,696 124,504 94.963 

$ 201,956 8,811 20,348 6,580 

VARIANCI( FAVORAIII,Ii (UNFAVORABI.I';) 8,594 20,156 39,778 88.599 57.127 
VARIANCI! I;AVORAB1,E (UNFAVOI(ABI,E) 5,652 816 3,922 (784 4,844 $ 228,089 $ 237,695 $ 9,606 

CIIIEF AI)MINIS I'RATIVI'~ OFFICI 
AI)JUSTMEN'I '10 BUI)GH'AI~.Y BASIS BUI)GH'AI~.Y 
9.89 9.907 

74 

$ 211,72 4,62 10,82 25.08 
220,085 5,828 11,222 26.138 $ 252,259 $ 263,273 

VARIANCli FAVORAI~I Ji (UNFAVORAI~I,E) 356 207 399 (152 014 



XPENI)I'I UI(ES Personnel Supplies Service chalges Capilal oullay 

CITY OF KFNNER, LOUISIANA GI~NERAI, FUNI) COMBINING SCI IEI)UI ,E OF I)EI'ARTM ENTAI, IIXPIINI)ITUI~,ES - BUI)GI',I' AND ACTUA GIiNIiRAI, GOVI'RNMIiNT FUNCTION (CONTINUEI)) Year Ended June 30. 1999 

ACTUA $ 358,834 16,691 19,226 14,281 TOTAl I!XPINI)IIURI~S $ 409.032 

!XI'ENI)I I'UR) S I)ersonnd Supplics Service charges Capilal outlay 
ACTUAl. $ 177,599 3,025 14,305 6,529 "IOTAI. I!XI'I';NI)I'IURES $ 201.458 

ACTUAI $ 200,454 3,692 21,231 4,240 "I'OTAI, I(XPENI)ITURI{S $ 229.617 

FINANC 
AI)JUSTMI!NT TO ~UI)Gliq'ARY BASIS I~UI)GI{TARY $ (28) 006 

$ 358,834 16,663 19,226 15.287 
$ 3 6,684 7,500 2,620 5,322 

VARIANCI( FAVORABI,I" . (UNFAVORABI,I,;) (2350) 837 13,394 35 978 $ 410,010 $ 422,126 $ 12,116 
I'UI~,CI~ASING 
AI)JUSTMt'NT 3"O BUDGF~q'ARY BASIS BUI)GIITARY BUI)GH" 
(40) 4,274 4,234 

PERSONNEl 

177 2 14 20 
599 985 305 803 $ 215.692 
177,908 5,715 16,991 20.935 

A1)JUSTMI~NT TO ~UI)GEq'ARY BASIS BUI)GH'ARY IIUI)GI,;'I 
211 (42) 889 
200 3 21 5 
454 903 189 129 
$ 200,917 4,560 29,927 7.730 

VARIANCI" I:AVORAl~I,11 (UNFAVOI(ABI ,E) 309 730 686 132 5.857 
VARIANCI! I:AVORAI~I,I (UNFAVORAI~I,E) 463 657 738 601 058 $ 230,675 $ 243,134 $ 12,459 
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EXIqiNI)I'I LIRliS Pelsonnc] Supplies Service charges Capita] oullay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENI'~RAI. FUNI) COMBINING SCI II~I)UI.E OF DEPARTMI~NTAI. EXPENIMrI'UI~.ES - BUDGE'I AND ACTUA GENI!RAI~ GOVI'RNMENT FUNC33ON (CONTINUED) Year Ended June 30, 1999 

AC'J UAI 68,370 2,111 16,640 1.622 TOTAl, EXIqiNI)ITURliS $ 188,743 

liXPI~NIIlTURI'S Personnel Supplies Service charges Capilal oullay 
ACI'UA $ 75,437 9,875 212,411 

"]'O'IAI. I~XPI'NI)ITURES $ 297,723 

EXI'I'NI)ITUI~d~S ]'crsollllcl Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
ACTUA $ 48,640 2,263 12,403 

"1 O'1AI, I:XPENI)I'I UI~.IiS $ 63,306 

I'I,ANNING 
A1)JUSTMENT TO IUI)GI~q'AI~,Y BASIS BUI)GFrI'AI~,Y 

90 975 
I)A'I A I'ROCESSIN( 

$ 168,370 2,201 16,640 2,597 
$ 182,515 2,360 18,262 1.683 

ADJLJSTMI~N'I 3"O I~UDGETAI~,Y BASIS BU I)G I'YI'AI~,Y $ $ 75,437 9,923 212,411 $ 74,125 10,561 212,949 
48 $ 297,771 $ 297,635 

CIVIl, SI~RVICE 
AI)JUSqMFNT TO I~UI)GH'AI~.Y BASIS 
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48,640 2,263 12,403 $ 48,818 2,495 14.320 

VARIANCE FAVORAI~I,li (UNFAVORAI~I,li) 4,145 159 1,622 (914 5.012 
VARIANCE FAVORABI,Ii (UN FAVOI~.AI~I,E) (I,312) 638 538 
$ (136) 
VARIANC]', I:A VOI~,A P,l .E UNFAVOI~.AI~I,I!) 178 232 917 

63,306 $ 65,633 $ 2,327 



!XI'I!NI)ITURI!S Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KI';NNI:R, I.OUISIANA GIiNFJ~,A1. FUND COMBINING SCI II!I)UI.E OF I)111'ARTMENTAI. IiXPFNI)ITIJF.I,.S - BUDGI!T AND ACIUA GFNEI~.AI. GOVERNMENT FUNC I'ION (CON'I INUIil)) Year Ended June 30. 1999 

ACTUA 589,98 19,18 726,44 251.70 "1 OTAI, I!XI'IiNI)I'I LIRI'S $4,587,313 

AC'I UA 

"1 O3'AI, I{XPIiNI)I I URliS $ 

iXI'IiNI)I3'URliS Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
ACIUA 546,98 11,82 40,31 21.13 "IOqAI, liXI'IiNI)ITI.IRIiS $ 620,25 

GliNI~RAIJ MUNICIPAI~ EXI'IiNS 
AI)JUSTMENT TO BUI)GIS'I ARY BASIS 1KJI)GFTARY IIUI)GEJ 
99,576 29.463 229.039 

~MI!RGIINCY RF~SERVI~ 
AI)JUSTMENT TO BUDGETARy BASIS 

MAGISTP, ATE'S COUI{'I 
AI)JUSTMENT "10 BUDGH ARY BASIS 
(176) 

$ (12,5931 
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$ 589,981 19,183 3,926,020 281.168 
$ 604,770 18,500 4,030,916 291.043 $4,945,229 

$ 500,000 

$ 546,980 11,651 40,313 8,714 $ 607.658 
$ 555,872 15,700 48,911 86,939 

VAR1ANCI! FAVORAIII.E (UNFAVORAIII,E) 14,789 (683) 104,896 9.875 28,877 
FAVORAII1,1! (UN FAVOI~.AIII ,I9 

VARIANCE FA VOI~.A FH .li (UNFAVORAIII .li) 8,892 4,049 8,598 78,225 99.764 



!XHiNI)H'LIRI'S Personnel Supplies Service c]/~llgCS Capital ouOay 

(3TY O1: KF~NNFR, I~OUIS1ANA GI!NI!ILAL FLINI) COMBINING SCI IF, I)UI.I: OF I)EPAR'I MENTAl. I':XH:N I)H'UI,H:S - BIJI)GI!I' AND ACTUA GENEI~.AL (;OVERNMENT FUNC HON (CON'I INUEI)) Year Ended June 30, 1999 
TOTAL- GENI~ILAI. GOVI~RNMENT FUNC'IION 
AC'I UA1 $3,121,60 109,17 4,174,46 313.68 

AI)JUS I'MEN'I TO I~UI)GI!TARY BASIS F;UI)GH'ARY 
(3,245) 200,015 58.829 I'OTAI.I.:XI~IiNI)HURF.S $7,718,928 $ 255,599 
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$ 3,121,605 105,928 4,374,482 372,512 
$q,179,521 136,726 5,060,970 551.333 $8,928,550 

VARIANCE I:AVOI~.ABI ,li (UN FAVOI~.ABI.t',) 57,916 30,798 686,488 178,821 954.023 



EXIqiNI)ITtJIH~S ]'ClSollne] Supplies Service chargcs Capital outlay 

CITY O]: KENNER, LOUISIANA GI'~NERA1, FUNI) COMBINING SCI IEI)UI 3! OF I)I!PAR'I MI';N 1 AL I~,XI'ENI)ITURES - I~IJI)GE'I AND AC'I'UA PUII13C SAI ErI'y FUNCTION Year Ended June 30. 1999 

ACTUA $ 889,736 81,675 583,024 147.712 TOTAl, EXIqiNI)]'I URIIS $1,702,147 

XI'I!NI)IIURliS I'crsonnel Supplics Service charges Capital outlay 
ACTUA $4,113,928 353,838 1,801,810 1,050,570 

POI,ICli AI)MINISTRATION 
ADJUSTMI!NT TO I]UI)GI,71ARY BASIS IIUDGFTARY 
(3,198) 826 (6,863) 

889,736 78,477 583,850 140.849 
$ 956,253 115,200 662,000 145.000 $ (9,235) $ 1,692,912 $1,878,453 

AI)JUSTMENT 30 BUI)GI(TAIt.Y BASIS $ (138,729) 994 (355,389) TOI'AI ~ liXIq';NI)ITUI~,I';S $7,320,146 $ (493,124) 

~XI'I~NI)I'I'111(15S l'crsollllel Supplies Scrvicc chargcs ( apilal oullay 
ACTUAI $ 913,445 12,644 36,305 934 l'Orl'Al, I~XPENI)ITUI~A!S $ 963,328 

POLICI! I)11TIi(71'IVI!S 

$ 4,113,928 215,109 1,802,804 695.181 

AI)JUSTMI';N I TO I~UDGFTARY BASIS BUI)GF'I ARY $ (5,690) (918) (52,755) 
$ 913,445 6,954 35,387 (5L8211 $ (59,363) $ 903,965 

$5,406,887 249,000 1,858,000 1.370.000 $8,883,887 

$ 932,863 

VARIANCI( I:AVORABI.E (UNFAVORAI~I,E) 66,517 36,723 78,150 4.151 85,54 
VARIANCI', FAVORAIII ,li (UNFAVOI~,AI~I,li) ,292,959 33,891 55,196 674.819 

VARIANCI( FAVOI~.AIlI ,E (UNFAVORAI~I,E) (45,582 11,046 6,613 56.821 



EXPENI)ITtHH!S P~I SOIIIIC] Supplies Service chargcs Capital outlay 

CITY OF KliNNI';R, 1.OUISIANA GENERAl, FUND COMI~INING SCI IFI)UI 3i OF 1)EPARTM ENI'AL I!XPI!N DITI./RliS - I~UI)GI'T AND A(71'UAI PUBIJC SAFETY FUNCTION (CON I'INUIil)) Year Fnded June 30. 1999 

AC I'UA $ 498,526 4,324 5.659 TOTAl, EXIq!NI)ITLIRI,:S $ 508,509 

iXPI,:NI)ITUIUiS l'ersonncl Supplies Scrvicc charges Capital outlay 
ACTI1A 469,060 90,423 22,691 705.776 rI'O]AI. EXI'IiNI)II'URI~S $ 4,287,950 

XPENI)I'I UI(15S Pcrsollnc] Supplies Scrvice ehalgcs Capilal oullay 
AC'I UA 
36,222 1.341 

OTAI. liXPENI)ITUIU!S $ 37.563 

POI JCE COMMUNICATIONS 
ADJUSTMliNT TO I~UI)GF'I ARY BASIS BUI)GH'ARY $ 

JAI 

$ 498,526 4,324 5.659 

AI)JUSTMIINT TO BUI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GF'I ARY 
1,361 6,150,816 
$ 469,060 91,784 22,691 9,856,592 

POI,ICE RANGli/SWA'I 
ADJUSTMENT TO I~UI)GF'I'ARY BASIS BUI)GIiTARY 

$ (I,654) 
$ 34,568 1,341 

506,432 5,500 
$ 519,432 

VAI(IANCI' FAVORAIII,li (UNFAVORABI,li) 7,906 1,176 1.841 0.923 
VARIANCI~ FAVORAIII ,I (IINFAVORAIII,li) 524,689 $ 108,000 23,700 0.330.536 4 $10,986,925 

42,000 2,500 

5,629 6,216 1,009 3.944 546.798 
VAIJ, IANCli FAVOI(ABI J: (IJNFAVORABI,li) 
7,432 L159 

$ 35,909 $ 44,500 $ 8,59 



~XI'IiNI)I'I'URES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KF.NNI!R, I.OLJlSIANA GENERAl. FUND COMBININ(; SCI IFI)UI.I~ OF I)I~PARTMI!NTAI~ I~XPI~NI)ITURI~S - BUDGE'I AND ACTUA PUBI.IC SAFI';TY FUNCTION (CON I'INL]Iil)) Year Fnded June 30. 1999 

AC'IUA $ 6t 3 24 9 
,937 ,963 ,538 .911 "1 O3 AI. I!XI'ENI)I I'UI~,ES $ 988,349 

XIq:NI)I I LJi(I(S Per sonncl Supplies Servicc charges Capilal oullay 

POI,ICI'; TI~.AFFIC AND RliSCUI" 
AI)JUSTMFNT ]O IIUI)GETARY BASIS I~UI)GIi'I ARY 
1,065 2,672 $ 3.737 
$ 611,937 35,(128 246,538 98,583 $ 992,086 

CODI'; I~NFORCI!MI!NT - AI)MINISTRATION 
ACTUA $ 804,012 15,865 141,902 22,414 TOTAl, I:XPI~NI)ITUI(IiS $ 984,193 

XPI~NI)ITUI~,ES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
ACTUAl 

$ 999.985 

AI)JUSTMEN'I TO Ffl.l I)GI!TAI~.Y BASIS BUI)GliTAI~,Y BUI)GH 
560 10,088 24,939 35,587 
804,012 16,425 151,990 147,353 $ 1,119,780 

COI)I~ ENFORCIiMI';NT - INSPI';C I'IONS 

$ 135,807 12,681 1,389 
TOTAl I{XI't!NI)ITUI~.F,S $ 149.877 

AI)JtJS'I MEN'I" TO I~UDGETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY 
214 (289) 

$ (75) 

81 

$ 135,807 12,895 1.100 
$ 149,802 

$ 8 1 2,349 9,048 8,693 1.041 

48,280 16,057 4.026 
$ 168,363 

VARIANCI FAVORABI,li (UNI:AVOI~,AFI1.1!) $ 38,198 2,222 15,562 (48,083) 

VAI~.IANCI'. FAVOI~,AB1,1', (UNFAVORABIA:) 8,337 2,623 6,703 

VAI~.IANCI~ FAVORAI~I 3 (UNFAVORABI,E) 2,473 3362 2,926 



I~XPI'~NI)ITUI~.ES PcrsollllC] Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KIZ.NNIIR, I.OUISIANA GIiNIiRAI. FUNI) C()MI~ININ(i SC] IEI)UI .E OF I)I!PAR'I MIiN]'AI. EX PENI)II UI~JiS - FIUI)GET AND AC'I UA I'UB1JC SAIq!TY FUNCTION (CONTINUEI)) Year l'nded June 30. 1999 

ACTUA 
TOTAl, - I~UBI,1C SAI:H'Y FUNC I'ION 

8,436,451 641,635 2,835,000 5.028.976 "10TAI. I!XPENI)ITUI~.ES $ 16,942,062 

M)JUSTMEN'I TO I~UI)GI'~] ARY BASIS I~I.JI)GI~'I ARY 
(146,0711 10,701 5,863,420 $ 
$ 8,436,451 495,564 2,845,701 10,892,396 

$ 9,872,888 610,055 3,013,019 12,049,577 

VARIANCI~ FAVOI~.ABI.Ii (UNFAVOI(ABI,Ii) 1,436,437 114,491 167,318 1.157.181 



!XPENI)ITURI!S Pelsollnc] Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA GFNFRAI, FUND COMBINING SC[IEDUI 3! OF I)I!PARTMENTAI, I~XPENI)I3~URES - BUI)GF'I AND ACTUA PUBIJC WORKS FUNC I'ION Year Ended June 30, 1999 

ACTUAI $ 180,046 55,334 4.701 
'IO'IAI, EXI'IiNI)ITURI:S $ 240.08 

AC I'tIAI $ 539,667 56.943 941 
TOTAl, I!XI'I~NI)ITIH~I!S $ 597,55 

ACTUAl $ 320,506 61.818 
"IO'IAI, liXI~ISNI)IIUI~,ES $ 382,324 

AI)Jt/STMFN'I TO ~UDGETARY BASIS I~UI)GFTAP, Y 
5,864 107 $ 180,046 61,198 4,808 $ 186,833 63,371 7.400 
5,971 $ 246,052 $ 257,604 
PARKWAYS 
A1)J USTMF, NT 3'O BUI)GH'AI~.Y BASIS BUI)GI'~TAI(Y 21.461 4.398 $ 561,128 61,341 941 $ 556,800 63,413 895 
25,859 $ 623,410 $ 621,108 
I)RAINAGE 
AI)JUSTMFNT 3'O BUI)GH'ARY BASIS BUI)GH'ARY $ 94 $ 320,506 62,012 $ 324,408 70,125 

VARIANCI', FAVORAI~I,E (UNFAVORAI~I,E) 6,787 2,173 2.592 
552 

VAI~,IANCli FAVORAll1,1'; (UNFAVORABI,I'3 (4.328) 2,072 (46) 
$ (2,302) 
VARIANCli FAVOI~,ABI 3! (I.]N FAVORABI ,E) 3,902 8.113 

94 $ 382,518 $ 394,533 $ 12,015 
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CITY OF KI'NNER, 1,OUISIANA GIINIiRAL FUND COMBINING SCI IEDUI,E O1" 1 )I!I'ARTMENTAI, liXI~IiNI)ITURIiS - BUDGH' AND ACTUA PUII1JC WORKS FUNCTION (CONTINUEI)) Year Ended June 30, 1999 

ACfUA $1,811,936 590,488 124,264 169.926 "10"I'AI, liXPIiNI)ITURI~S $2,696,614 

'1 O'1AI, b I'IJIII,IC WORKS I,UNCTION 
AI)J US'IMIiN'130 BUIJGIiTARY BASIS BUI)GH'ARY 21,461 $ 24,013 15.036 833,397 614,501 139,300 694,240 
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$1,843,805 650,216 153,876 634.714 

VARIANCI FAVORABI .E . (UNFAVORAI~I,I~) $ 10,408 35,715 14,576 (59,526) 



iXI'I~NI)ITURI!S Pcrsotmcl Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNItR, I.OUISIANA (II~NERAI. FUNI) COMBINING SCI IFDUI.E O1: I)EPARTMEN'I AI~ EXPENI)ITURI!S - BUDGE] AND ACTUA IIFAI/HI AND WELFARE FI1NCTION Year Ended June 30. 1999 

ACTUAl $ 77,837 1,495 677 
TO'I AI. I'XPENI)ITUI~.I!S $ 80.009 

liXIqiNI)ITURliS Pcrsolmcl Supplies Sovicc charges Capital outlay 
ACTUA $ 40,796 31 

"10'1AL EXPI(NI)H'UI~,I!S $ 40,827 

XI'IiNI)H'URI~S Pclsomlel Supplies Service cha, gcs Capital oullay 
ACT(JA 63,207 11,881 12.340 

"IOTAI, I!XI'IiNI)H'URES $ 187.428 

COl)It liNFOI~.CliMIiN I' - IIIJMAN 
AI)JUSTML:NT TO BUDGItTARY BASIS BUI)(;I';TARY 

~OOI) BANK 

77,837 1,495 677 

AI)JtJSTMI'NT '10 ;UI)GE] ARY BASIS BUI)GI~TARY 

COUNCIl, ON AGING 

40,796 31 

$ 77,661 2,849 2,869 
$ 83,379 

$ 41,296 I 31 
40,827 $ 41,328 

AI)JUSTMENT TO BUDGH'AI~.Y BASIS B/JI)GH'ARY 
455 
455 
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63,207 12,336 12,340 
$ 187,883 

$ 162,826 12,146 13,361 

VARIANCE FAVOI~.AB1,1', (UN FAVOIC.AB1Jt) (1761 1,354 2.192 
3.370 

VAI~.IANCIi FAVOI~.AI~1,1( (tlNFAVOI~.ABI ,E) 

VARIANCE FAVOI~ABI,E (UNFAVORAI~I Ji) (380 090) .021 
450 



EXPIiNI)I3 IIRI!S Pelsonncl Supplies Service charges Capital oullay 

CITY OF KIINNEI~, I,OUISIANA GENEI~A1. FUNI) (OMBINING SCI II';I)ULF OF I)F, PARTM F, NTA1, I!XPI~;NI)]TURIiS - BUI)GH" AND ACfLJA IIFAI3'II AND WIiLFARl7, FUNCTION (CONTINUEI)) Year Ended June 30, 1999 

ACTUA $ 67,813 802 1.169 
"10TAI, EXI>I!NI)ITU RI~S $ 69,784 

EXI>I<]NI)ITURliS l'clsonnel Supplies Sel vice charges ( apital oullay 
AC'I UA $ 281,779 121,087 7.452 

"10"1 AI, I~XI'I~NI)ITU RI~8 $ 410,318 

XIq:NI)ITUI~ES I'crsonnel Supplies Servicc charges ( apilal outlay 
ACTUA 

"l orI'AI , I{XI)tiNI)IrI'URIiS $ 1.150 

IANI)ICAPPIII) SERVICI~S 
AI)JUS'I MENT 30 I:~UI)GIiTAI~,Y BASIS BUI)GI'3'ARY 

MA1NTENANC 

67,813 802 1.169 
69.784 

AI)JUSTMFNT TO I~U I)GIiTAI/Y BASIS BUI)GI~;TARY $ 281,779 121,693 7.452 

$ 68,476 801 2,271 

$ 285,594 122,669 7.928 
606 $ 410,924 $ 416,19 

AI)JUSTMliNTTO IJUI)GIiTARYBASIS 

87 

BUI)GETARY $ 1,200 68 

VARIANCI', FAVORAI~I,I .0JNFAVORAIJ130 663 o) 102 
$ 1,764 
VARIANCI! I:AVORAIII,E (UNFAVORAII13i) 3,815 976 476 
5,267 

VARIANCI~ FAVOI~.A BI ,E ~ (UNI:AVOI~,AI~130 50 68 



XI'IiNI)I'I IIRliS Pcrsol/nel Supplies Service charges Capital or*flay 

CITY OF KI~NNER, I,OUISIANA GI!NI!RAI. FUNI) COMBINING SC} IEI)UI.E OF I)FPARTMISN'I AI~ I',XI~I'~N DITURES - BUI)GH' AND ACTUA IlliAI,TII AND WELFARli FUNCTION (CONTINUEI)) Ycar Ended June 30. 1999 
TOTAl, - IIEAI3'II AND WEI,FARE FUNCTION 
ACTUA $ 632,582 135,265 21.669 

"10TAI, IiXI'I~NI)ITURFS $ 789,516 

AI)JUSTMENT TO BUI)GliTARY BASIS BUI)GI~TARY $ 632,582 136,326 21.669 $ 637,053 138,534 26,460 
061 $ 790,577 $ 802,047 
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VARIANCIi FAVORAI~I T (UNFAVORAIII,Ii) 4,471 2,208 4.791 
47(1 



 
CITY OF KI!NNER, I,OUISIANA GENI~RAI, FUNI) COMBINING SC111';l)Ul,li OF I)I!PAR'I MI';NTAI, EXPENI)ITUP, I';S - BUI)GH AND ACI'UA CUI.TUP, E AND RECREATION FUNCTION Year Ended June 30, 1999 

ACTUAl $ 74,164 9.782 
"1 O'1AI, I!X PliNI)I I'URI.IS $ 83,946 

ACTUAl. $ 27,305 1,738 17.665 
TOTAl, liXPENI)I'I UI~.I!8 $ 46,708 

EXPENI)ITURES I'ersonncl Supplies Scivice charges Capital outlay 
ACTUA 78,874 1,322 

"10"1AI, 15XI>I!NI)ITU RliS $ 80,196 

I,I~,ISURE SERVICES 
AI)J USTMI.;N'I '10 III31)GI'] ARY BASIS 
340 
340 

CUI:I'URAI, AFFA1RS 

74,164 10.122 
84.286 

AI)JUSTMENT TO BUI)GICI'ARY BASIS IIUI)GETARY 

IUMANI'I [ES AND MUSEUMS 

27,305 1,854 17.665 
46,824 

ADJ USTMI.;NT TO BUI)GFTAItY BASIS I~UI)GFTARY 78,874 1.322 

$ 74,845 9.935 
$ 84,780 

$ 27,211 1,738 17.938 

491 645 5 
80.196 $ 83,14 

VAI(IANCE I:AVORAIII E (UNFAVOI(AIII,I!) 681 (187) 
494 

VARIANCE I'AVORA]II .li (UN FAVOI>,AII1,1!) (94) (i 16) 273 

VARIANCE FAVORAII1.1! (UNFAVORABI.E) 2,617 323 5 
2,945 



XI)I!NI)rIU RI!8 I)erso]mel Supplies Service charges Capilal outlay 

CITY OF KENNI11',, I.OUISIANA GliNIiRAL FUNI) COMBINING SCI IEI)UI ,E OF I)EPARTMIiNTA1, I',XPENI)ITtJRE8 - BUI)GE 1' AND AC'I UA CULTURli AND RECREATION FUNCTION (CONTINUEI)) Year Ended Jtlne 30. 1999 

ACTUA 

"10TAI, EXPENI)ITURliS $ 

XI)IiNI)ITURI!S Pcrsonncl Supplies Service dmrgcs Capital outlay 
AcrruA 
21.852 

"10TAL E~I'I~NI)ITURI'8 $ 21,852 

XPENI)I'I'URES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
AC'IUA 52,114 3,414 86.731 

r]OTAI I~XI)I(NI)ITURES $ 142,259 

crrY MUSEUM 
AI)JUSTMI'NT TO BUI)GH'ARY BASIS BUI)GH'AI(Y 

RAIl 3/OAf) MUSI!UM 
ADJUSTMENT TO ItUI)GliTARY BASIS IIUI)GH'ARY 

WII,I)I,IFE MUSEUM 
21.852 

AI)JUS'I MIiNT TO BU I)GF, TAI~.Y BASIS I~UI)GI('rARY 
65 28 52,114 3,479 86,859 

285 

$ 23,960 

$ 52,806 3,435 89,276 

VARIANCI'. FAVOI~,ABI .E (UNFAVOI~,AI~I 3i) $ 274 
274 

VARIANCI( FAVORAIl1,1: (UNFAVORAI{I,E) 
2.108 
2,108 

VARIANCli FAVORAI~I,li . (UNFAVOI~,AIII 3i) 692 (44) 2.417 



~XPIiNI)ITURES I'cl bO]llll~] Supplies Scrviec charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KF, NNER, LOUISIANA GI",N E RAL FUND COMBINING SCI IEI)UI 3! OF I)IiPARTMENTAI, I!XI'I!NI)ITUItF~S - BUI)GET AND ACTUAl CUI,TURE AND RFCR1;ATION FUNCTION (CONTINUFI)) Year Ended Junc 30. 1999 

ACI'UA $ 45,060 
O'1AI, IgXliliNI)I IURFS $ 45,060 

XI'I~NI)ITURES Personnel Supplies Sclvicc charges Capilal oullay 
ACIUA $ 

"1 O'1AI I'XPI NI)I'I URliS $ 

EXI>ENI)I'I I,)1~.1 ;S Pel sonnc] Supplies Scl vice charges Capital outlay 
ACTIJAI 0,859 1,249 776 

]O'IAI, EXI>I'NI)I'IURES $ 112,884 

('onlinued) 

MARI)I GRAS MUSEUM 
AI)JUSTM ENT TO BUI)GI'TARY BASIS BU I)GI'71'AI{Y 

SA1N] S MUSIiUM 

45.060 
45,060 $ 50,75 

AI)JUSTMENT TO BUDGETARy BASIS BI.Jl)GIi'I ARY 

TOURISM 
3 $ 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGI'TARY BASIS I~UI)GI:TARY BUI)G 

91 

0,859 1,249 776 
2.884 
$ 110,371 2,050 1.500 

VARIAN( E FAVORABI,I! (UNFAVORAIII,E) 5.69 
5.69 

VARIANCIi FAVOI~.AI~1,1( (UNI:AVORAIII,li) 

VARIANCli FAVORAIII,E ~ (UN FAVORAIII,I';) (488) 801 724 
037 



liXPI~NI)ITUI~.I'S Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNI!R, I,OUISIANA (IENI~;RAL FUND COMBINING SCIII!I)UI,I~ O1" 1)EIJARTMIiNTAI, EXPI'NI)ITURFS - BUI)GH' AND ACTUAl CUH'URE AND RECREATION FUNCTION (CONTINUEI)) Year Ended June 30, 1999 

ACTUA 
297 257 

TOTAl. I{XPENI)ITUI~.ES $ 31,554 

XPliNI)ITURI~S I'crsonn~l Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
ACIUA 

FESTIVAI.S 
AI)JIJSq'MENT TO I:~I.IIIGH'ARY BASIS BUI)GH'ARY 
576 
576 

1,000 34.000 
SCIENCE CENTER ANI) PI,ANETARIUM 
$ 49,340 50.661 

"IOTAI, liXI'IiNI)ITUI{I'S $ 100,00 

ACIUA $ 858,987 148,875 420,976 100.000 TOI AI, EXIq!NI)II'URI~S $1,528,838 

AI)JUS] MliNT TO BUI)GH ARY BASIS BUI)GI{TARY 

I~,I{CREATION 

49,340 50.661 
00.00 

AI)JIJSTMENT TO I:RJI)GI'TARY BASIS I:~UI)GH'ARY 
(2,049) (2,199) 45,344 
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$ 858,987 146,826 418,777 145,344 $ 1,569,934 

$ 50,809 51.000 

69,784 66,927 53,665 47.698 $1.638.074 

VARIANCI! FAVORABI,I,; (tJNFAVORAIII,E) 
703 2.167 
2.870 

VAI/IAN(!E FAVORAIII .li (UNFAVORABI.E) 469 339 
808 

VARIANCI,, FAVORABI .E (UNFAVOI/.ABI,t!) 10,797 20,101 34,888 2,354 68,140 



EXPENI)ITUI~,ES Personnel Supplics Service charges Capilal outlay 

CITY OF KIiNNF.R, I.OUISIANA GENI3RAL FUND COMBINING SCItlil)UI.Ii OF 1)III'ARTMF~NTAL IiXPIiNI)ITUI~,IiS - BUI)GH" AND ACTUA CUH URI,. AND RIiCREATION FUNCTION (CONTINUEI)) Year l!ndcd June 30, 1999 

ACTUAl 
289 

"10TAI, liX PENI)I'I Ul~diS $ 289 

EXI'I~NJ)I'I U RliS }~Cl'sonll cl Supplies Sol vice charges Capital oullay 
A( TUA1 $ 930,197 81,452 124.455 

TOTAl AiXPI~NI)ITURliS $1,136,104 

I';XlqiNI)I'I URliS PCl sollllc] Supplies Service charges ( apilal oullay 
AC I'LIA 
0,615 0.916 

"10TAI, I, XPI,;NI)ITURliS $ 21.53 

COMMUNITY SIiRVICI', - CII'Y PARK 
AI)JUSTMENT TO BUI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GE'I AI~.Y 

I~,IiCREATION MAIN] ENANC 
289 
289 

AI)JUSTMENT TO BUI)GIiTARY BASIS BUI)GIiTARY IIUI)GIi] 
4,289 (801) 
3.488 
$ 930,197 85,741 123.654 

RECRI~ATION I,tsISURli SI(RVICE 
39.592 

AI)JUSTMENT TO BUI)GI~TARY BASIS BI.JI)GI!TA RY $ 304 (396) 0,919 0,520 
$ (92) $ 21,439 
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$ 966,152 84,428 383,900 3 

1,476 2,300 
$ 23.776 

VARIANCE FAVORAI~I,li (UNFAVORABI,li) 
2 

VARIANCI! FAVOP, AI~I ,li (UNFAVORABI,I) 35,955 (I,313) 260,246 3 294.89 
VARIANCI( FAVORAI~I ,E (UNI:AV(IRAI~I,E) 
557 780 
2.337 



XI~IiNI)ITURliS ]'ersollnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KIiNNFIL, 1,OUISIANA GENERAl, FUNI) COMBINING SCI ll!l)UI,E OF I)FPAI~,'I MEN'I A1, I~XI't~NI)ITURliS -/;Ul)Gli'l AND ACTUA CUI,TURli AND RECRIiA] ION FUNCTION (CONTINUI~D) Year F, nded June 30, 1999 
COMMUNITY SI~RVICE - AI)MINISTI~.ATION 
ACTUA 232,291 7,556 235,594 36.065 
AI)JUS'I MENT TO BUI)GI!TARY BASIS BUI)GI!TARY 
544 32.817 
$ 232,291 8,100 235,594 68,882 

$ 231,741 7,982 352,099 105.075 

VARIANCF FAVORAI~I, (IJNFAVOI~.All (55 (11 16,50 36,19 TOTAI,I~XI'I!NI)II'URFS $ 511,506 $ 33,361 $ 544,867 $ 696,897 $ 152,030 

XIqSNI)ITUI~,I,:S I'crsonnel Supplics Service charges Capilal outlay 

TOTAl, - CUI,TURt': AND RIiCRIiATION I:UNC]'ION 
ACTUA $2,459,191 266,300 1,001,186 136,065 "1 O'1AI, liXI'IiNI)ITUI/ES $3,862,742 

AI)JUSTMI,:NT TO BUDGETAI~.Y BASIS BUDGIiTARY $ 3,609 (2,692) 78,161 
$ 2,459,191 269,909 998,494 214,226 

$2,515,961 290,616 1,420,431 252,776 79,078 $ 3,941,820 $4,479,784 

VARIANCli FAVORABI J! (UNFAVORABI,E) 56,770 20,707 421,937 38.550 



iXPENI)ITUI~.ES Pcrsonncl Supplics Sccvicc chalgcs Capilal outlay 

CITY OF KI!NNER, I,OUISIANA GENERAL FUND COMBINING SCI IEI)ULIi OF I)EPARTMENTAI, IiXPI~NI)ITURES - BUI)GH' AND ACTUAl TRANSI3 FUNCTION Ycar Fnded June 30, 1999 

ACTUA $ 436,047 
"IO'IAI, liXIqiNI)ITUI~.FS $ 436,047 

TOTAl, - TRANSIT FUNCTION 
A1)JUSTMENrl" TO BUI)GFTARY BASIS IIUI)GETARY 
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$ 436,047 
$ 436,047 

$ 372,453 
VARIAN(?I', FAVORAIiI,Ii (UNFAVORAII1,E) 
(63,594) 

$ 372,453 $ (63,594) 



 
CITY O1: KI:,NNER, I,OUISIANA (~ENIiRAI, FL1NI) COMBINING SCI IEI)UI3~ OF DIiI~AR'I MEN I AI, I'IXI~IINI)H'IJRIIS - I~UI)GEI' AND AC I'UA MISCIiI J,ANEOUS FUNCTION Year l'ndcd June 30, 1999 

AC'I UAI $ 76,400 1,426,020 
"1 (Yl AI, EXPENDIFLIRES $1,5132,420 

XPIiNI)H LII~,ES I'crsotmel Supplics Service charges Capital oullay 
ACI'UA 

TOTAI,I~XH'NI)HURES $ 29,177 

ACTUA $ 14.821 
"I O I'AI, liXPIiNI)H URES $ 14.82 

NSURANCI 
AI)JUSTMEN'I TO BUDGF, TARY BASIS BUI)GI{TARY 

PAY INCEN'HVFS 
AD.IUS I'MF3qT TO I~iJI)GH AI~Y BASIS 

A1)JUSTMliNT TO I~U I)GI {'I'A|~.Y BASIS $ 
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76,400 426,020 $ 77,000 1,446,000 
$1,523,909 

29,177 
29,177 

P,U I)GI'71"ARY 

$ 29.648 
$ 29,648 

VARIAN( E FAVORABI 3' (IJNI,AVOI~,AI~I J~) 600 9.98(/ 

VARIANCE FAVOILABI A: ([INFAVORAIII,E) 47 

VARIANCI'. FAVOI~,A B1,1! (UN FAVORAI~,I ~E) $ 
$ 



XIqiNI)ITURIiS Pcrsollllcl Sul~plics Scrvice chmges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl. FUNI) COMBINING SCI IEI)UI,1i OF DEPARTMENTAl, IiXP15NI)ITUI~.ES - BUI)GE'I AND A(YI'UA MISCEI,I,ANIiOUS FUNCTION Year Ended June 30, 1999 

ACTUA 
'10TAI,- MISCIiLI.ANEOUS FUNCTION 

$ 105,577 1,440,841 
TOTAl. IiXIqiNI)I'IURI~S $ 1,546,418 

A1)JUSTMENT TO BUI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY 

$ (14,821) $ 1,531,597 
$ 106,648 1.446.000 
$ 1,552,648 

VARIANCI( FAVORAIII,li (UNFAVOI/.ABI,E) 1,071 9,980 
21.05 



(TillS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY) 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Special Revenue Ftmds account for the proceeds of specific revenues (other than special assessments, expendable trusts, or revenues for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 
ONE PERCENT SALES TAX OF 1984 FUND The One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 Fund accounts for the proceeds of sales taxes generated by a 1 percent sales tax increase. These funds are to be used to fund a municipal homestead exemption, police protection and various other city services. 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND "]'he Cmnmunily Development Block Grant Fund accounts for grants received from the Federal Comnmnity Block Grant Program. 
GARBAGE COI.LEC/I'ION AND I)ISPOSAL, ROADS AND BRIDGES, STREET 1.1GIJTING, AND FIRI DEPARTMENT FUNDS ']'he Garbage Collection and Disposal, Roads and Bridges, Street Lighting, and Fire Department Funds accounl for the proceeds nfad valorem taxes which are specifically dedicated for the functions performed by each of these funds. 
DRUG ENFORCEMENT FORFEITURE FUND The Drug Enforcemeni Forfeitme Fund accounts for fimds received from the federal government related to propclly seized m drag arrests to be used for police purposes. I.OCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT GRANT FUND ']'he Local Law Enforcement Grant Fund accounts for grants received fionr the Department of Justice for the Local Law Enforcement Block Grant. 
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ASSI'TS {7ash I!quity in pooled cash and inveslmcnts lnvcshl/enls Receivables InleFgovcrlill]ental Other l)uc from oilier filnds Prepaid items "1 O'1 AI. ASSFI'S 
AIIIIJTII!S AND FUNI) llAIANCI 

"1 (.)'1AI, 13AIIII ,I I IIgS Pund balance Rcscrvcd fol cncttmblances l~.cscrvcd for prepaid ilems btescrvcd for Section 108 loans Itescrved for lcstriclcd expenditures Ilnreserved l)csignated Ibr suhscquenl year expenditures [Iiidcsignalcd 'IO>IAI I;LINI) IIAI,ANCI~ 

Crl'7 01: K/'NNIiR. I.OUISIANA SPI~CIAI. RI';VliN 111! I:I.JNI)S COMBINING IIAI.ANCI': SI 1HI"1 June 30. 1999 

SPIICIAI, RIIVI';N UI ONE PIIRCIIN'I SAI.IIS TAX OF 1984 

843,814 

COMMUNI'I Y I)IIVI{I .OI'MIINT BI.OCK ORAN] 
56,173 10.868 547,976 4,626 12,869 1.400 

OARI:IAGI~ COI,I 3!C I'ION AND I)ISI'OSA 

272.024 190,236 

ROAI)SANI) III411)GI!S 

$ 2,289,970 $ 733,912 $ 513,346 $ 686,708 

2,289,970 
2.289,970 

TOTAl. 1.1Al111 .ITII!S AND FUNI) I~AI .ANCI! $ 2,289,970 

lie accompanying nolcs ale an inlegral parl of Ibis slatelnenl 

$ 59,555 10,427 23,625 210,066 2.140 305,813 
314 1,400 25.000 

32,942 
67.888 

301,385 312,516 
$ 733,912 $ 312,516 

40,900 9,325 412,648 10,597 473.47(/ 

213,238 



FUNI)S WITII HUI)GE'I S S'I I~,I~E'I ,IGIIHNG 

29.438 

I:IRE I)I~I'ARq'MIINT SUB'IOTA 
$ 21,580 2,367,811 
578 758,745 
$ 56,173 72,666 2,478,679 2,391,790 277,228 2,224,152 1.4/)0 

SI'ECIA1, RliVENUF FtJNI)S WITIIOUT BUI)GI!T DRUG I,OCA1, I,AW I',NFORCISMEN l I~N FORCI ~MliN'I FORFIiH'URE FUNI) GRANT I"UNI) "1 O'1 A 
510,601 1,274 
29,453 5.0001 

55,980 46,726 622,754 120,666 2.478.679 2,421,243 277,298 2,229,152 1.400 29,438 $ 3,148,714 $ 7,502,088 $ 546,328 $ 102.776 $ 8A51,192 
63,681 1,735 33,508 21,514 20.438 

20,322 85,853 576,183 672,861 
$ 217,4010 10,427 120,538 3,522,375 875.000 

492,885 
.284,088 16,522 793.495 

$ 715,437 1,400 125.000 
897,989 16.522 

5.036 

541,292 

8,524 
8,524 
94,252 
94,252 29,438 $ 3,148,714 $ 7,502,088 $ 546,328 $ 102,776 

230,960 10,427 120,538 3,522.375 875.000 
715,437 1.40/) 125,000 635.544 
897,989 16,522 



 
CITY OF KENNIII/, I,OUISIANA SPECIAl, REVENUE FUNI)8 COMBINING S'I A'I'EMEN'I OF REVENUI18, EXIq~NI)I'I URES, AND CIIANGES IN FUNI) BAI,ANCI,,S Year Ended June 30. 1999 

REVI!NUES "laxcs ]nlclgovcHllncnla] Charges for scrvices Inlcrcsl Misccllaneous "1 O'1AI. I~.EVI;NUI~S IiXIqSNI)I'I'U RliS I'uMic safcty Public works Ctdlurc and rccrcafion Urban dcvcloplnenl "1 O'1AI, EXIqiND] FUI~.I!S !XC1!88 (1)IiFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVI!R (UNI)I~R) liXPI!NDI IlJRES O'111ER FINANCING SOURCES (LJSES) Opcralin8 transl~rs in ()pcralhlg transfers oul 

SPliCIAI, REVENU ONE PER( I~NT SAI.ES TAX OF 1984 

0,396,880 
(10,396,880) 

COMMUNITY DEVIiI.OI'MENT B1.OCK GRAN'I 
962,868 6,103 67.755 036.726 
5,223 214,290 779.067 998,580 

GARBAGI~ ( Ol JJ~CTION AND DISPOSAl. 633,652 ,297,340 6,824 
937,816 

ROAI)SANI) IIRII)GIiS 
359 
00.119 
00.119 

38,146 (375,176) (I,099,478) 
66,254 (127,327) "IOIAI, O'11 lliR FINANCING SOURCI!S (USI!S) (10,396,880) (61,073) iXCl!88 (I)IiFICIliNCY) OF REVItNUI'S AND OTIII!R S(.)UR(?ES OVFR (UNI)ER) I,.XI'ENI)H'LIIIES AND O+H IER USES FUNI) BAI .ANCE AT Ill!GINNING OF YEAR A'I ENI) OF YEAR $ 
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273,327 

414,365 312,516 02,774 213,238 



FUNI)S Wl 1'11 IIIJI)GFT S ]'REI(T .IGIITIN( 573 
FIRE )EPARTMI'N'I $ 2,901,184 596 91,922 9,307 

3,932,571 962,868 1,297,936 104,849 77.421 

SI'I';CIA1. REVENUF FUNI)S WITI lOUT BUDGET DRUG I.OCAI. I.AW I~NI:ORCI~;MI~N 1 ENFORCI~MFNT FORI:I~ITURF FUNI) GRAN 1' I:tJNI) 'l O J'A $ 
11,944 46,973 

89,423 4.979 
3,932,571 1,152,291 1,297,936 121,772 224,394 573 3,003,009 16,375,645 158,917 194,402 16,728,964 

952,45 

(951,878) 1878,6411 
959.430 
959.430 

,881,650 ,370,785 214,290 779.067 9,245,792 

3,558,953 (10,524,207) 
(6,965,254) 

39,855 

4,321,501 4,370,785 214,290 779.067 

46.0 
46.0 

7,043,32 
3,604,964 (10,524,21171 
(6,919,2431 

7,552 171,359 164,599 39,855 (80,376) 124,078 
448 2,591,749 501,437 $ 1,793,495 $ 2,756,348 $ 541,292 $ 94,252 $ 3,391,892 
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CITY O1: KI~NNIIR SPFCIA1, REVI!NLJI~ FLJNI)S COMIIINING SCIIEI)UI,I~ OF RIIVIINIII'S, I~XI'I'NI)ITURIIS AND CIIANGES IN FUNI) BAI.ANCI~S - SPI~CIAI, RI!VEN FtINI)S WITII ANNUAl. llUI)GtITS - IiUI)GET AND ACI'UAI. Year Ended Jullc 30. 1999 

I~3!VENUES Taxes Inlcrgovcrl]nlel]lal Chargcs for services ]nlciesI Miscellaneous O'l AI, IZEVliNUES ;XI'ENI)I'111RI';S I'ublic safety Public works (:ullulc and iccrcation Urban development TO'I AI. I!XPI!NI )ITUI~.I':S XCliSS (1)IiFICII NCY) OF REVI!NUI~S OVER (11NI)H{) I~XI+I~NI)]TtJI~,ES O'1 III!R FINANCING SOIJRCES (USI!S Opcraling transfers ill Operaling transfers ouI 

3"O'1 AI. - SPI!CIAI. REVENUI~ FIJNDS WITII ANNUAl. IKJI)GI':TS 
ACTUA 3,932,571 962,868 1,297,936 104,849 77.421 
,881,650 ,370,785 214,290 779.067 

AI)JUS rMI/NT TO IKII )GFTARY BASIS IIUI)GETARY 

489,732 118,016 (2,1261 

$ 13,932,571 962,868 1,297,936 104,849 77.421 
3,800,203 2,070,492 1,288.651 92,032 7,500 

,371,382 ,488,801 214,290 776,941 
5,396,215 5,400,564 725,076 1,337,313 

VARIANCI', FAVOIIAlll ,E IJNFAVOI~,AIII ,E) 132,368 (1,107,624) 9,285 12,817 69.921 
/124,833 911,763 510,786 560,372 9,245,792 605,622 9,851,414 12,859,168 3,007,754 

7,129,853 (605,622) 6,524,231 4,399,710 2,124,52 
3,558,953 (10,524,207) I O'I'AI, OTIIFR FINANCING SOURCFS (USES) (6,965,254) 

3,558,953 (10,524,2071 4,087,157 (10,374,9671 (528,204) (149,240) 
(6,965,254) (6,287,810) (677,444) ~XCliSS (I)I(I:ICII!NCY) OF F.I':VENUI~S AND O'1 llliR SOIIRCES ()VI';R (UNI)IiR) I,:XI'ENI)ITURFS AND OTI II,:R USES 164,599 (605,622) (441,023) (I.888,100) 1,447,077 lIND IIAI,ANCE A'I BEGINNING OF YEAR A'I END OF YEAR 2,591,749 (109,816) $ (715,438) 
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CH'Y OF KI/NNER, LOUISIANA SI~IICIA1, REVENUE FUNI)S - ONE I~ERCI!N'I SAI ,I';S TAX OF 1984 FUND 8CI IH)UI,E OF REVENUES, EXPENDH'LIRI~S, AND CIIANGES IN I:LJNI) BAI,ANCE - IIUI)GH' AND ACTLIA Year Ended June 30, 1999 

I~.IiVENUI!S "laxes Sales tax 
AC'I'[IA A1)JUSTMENT TO IUI)GETAI/Y BASIS BUI)GEI'ARY VARIANCli FAVORAI~I,I! (UNFAVORAIII ,E) 

$10,396,88(I $10,247,640 $ 149,24/) "10TAI. RI!VENLII~8 10,396,880 10,396,880 10,247,640 149,240 iX PliNI)I'l LIRliS I'crsonnel Supplies Service charges Capital oullay 'l O I'AI, IiXPI~NI)H URI~S EXCESS OF I~.IiVISNLJI!S OVFR IiXI'I~NDH'URES 10,396,880 OH IEF. FINANCING USFS Operating Iransfers Otll liXCESS OF REVIgNUES OVER EXI+ENI)H URES AND ()'1 llliR FINANCING USES FUND BAI .ANCE AT IIEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 
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0,396,88(I 10,247,640 149,240 
(10,396,8801 (10,247,640) (149,2401 



 
CITY OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA SPECIAl, P,I!VI~NUI~ FUNDS - ('OMM UNITY I)EVI',I ,OPMFN 1' BI,OCK GRANT FUNI) SCI IFI)UI ,E OF I~-EVt ~N UF, S, FXPENI)]'I [JIll';S, AND CI IANGES IN FUND I~AI,ANCE - IHJI)GE]' AND AC] UAI, Year Ended June 30. 1999 

F, liVENUI~S Inlclgovcrnnlenlal (onmnnfily dcvclopmcnl block grants 1 Iomc progranl Inlerest Miscellaneotts 

ACI'UA 
828,135 134,733 6,103 67.755 "10TAI RI~VI!NUES 1,036,726 XPENI)ITI]RI!S Public works Ctlllurc and icctcation Urban dcvelopmelll "I 0"I AI, I~Xt'IiNI)I I'UI(I~S 
5,223 214,2911 779.067 

~XCESS (IF RliVliNUliS OVER EXI'ENI)I'ItlRES 38.146 OTI IER FINANCING SOURCI'IS (USES) (Iperaling Irmlsl~Js in 66,254 Operating Iransfcls out (127,327) TOTAl. O'J'III!R FINANCING S()URCI~S (USES) (61,073) iXCliSS (I)I!FICII~NCY) OF RliVI';NUliS AND OTIIFR SO(IRCI,;S OVER ((1NDI,M) I~XPI:NI)ITtlI~.I~S AND OTI IER USES FLJNI) BAI ,ANCI! A'I I~EGINNING O]: YEAR A'I ENI) OF YEAR 

AI)JUSTMENT '10 BLII)GH AI(Y BASIS I~UI)Glfl ARY 

(2,126) (2,126) 

828,135 134,733 6,103 67.755 
$ 1,827,745 242,747 7.402 

036,726 2,077,894 
5,223 214,290 776,941 108,000 725,076 ,337,313 

2,126 40,272 
66,254 (127,3271 
(92,495) 
104,822 (127,327) 

VAR1ANCli I:AVORAIH .1 (UNFAVORAI~I.E) 
(999,610) (108,014) (I,2991 67.755 (1,041,168) 
102,777 510,786 560,372 73.935 
32.767 
(38,568) 

(61,073) (22,505) (38,568) 

$ 428,099 $ (315) 
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94,199 



!XI}I~NI}I'I'URES Public Works Capilal oufay "10TAI, PUIII JC WORKS Cullure and Rgcleation Capilal oullay "1 O'1AI. CUI .'1 URli AND I'd!CREA'I ION Llrban I)evelopmcnt Petsonllcl Supplics Service chargcs 

CITY OF KI'NNEI',, I.OUISIANA RI!VENUI~ FUNDS - COMMUNITY I)EVI!IX)PMENT BI.OCK GRAN I' FUND SCI IH}UI ,E OF FXPENI)ITURES - I]UI)GE'I AND ACTUAl, Year Ended June 30, 1999 

ACI'UA 

230,620 7,687 540.760 "1"O'1AI~ URIiAN I}EVI~I.OI>MliN'I 779.067 "1 O'1 AI, I,:XI'I :NI}I'I URES 

A1}.IUSTMENT T(} BUI)GITII'ARY BASIS BUI)GI!TARY 

$ (2,126) 
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VARIANCE I;AVORAIII,I! (UNFAVORAIlI,li) 
5,223 $ 108,000 $ 102,777 02,777 

510.786 
214,290 725,076 510,786 
230,920 ?302 538,319 776,94 
245,440 7,059 084.814 337,313 $ 2,170,389 

14,520 (643) 546.495 560,372 73.935 



 
CI'IY OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA SPIiCIAI, REVIINUI~ FUNDS - GARBAGII COLLI]CTION AND DISI'OSAI, FL/NI) SC11E|)LI1 .E OI; RI'VIINL11~S, EXPENDI'I UI~.1',S, AN[) CI I ANGFS. IN |"UNI) BAI .ANCI - BUI)GF,'I AND ACTLJAL Year ]inded June 30, 1999 

RI,,VI!N[II!S loxes Ad v~llOlCll] lax Charges for services Garbagc fccs and penallics ]ntelesl TOTAl+ I~.I~VEN UES !XPI!NI]I I'LJRI!S I'ublic works Conlractual services TO'|'A|. EXPENI)ITLIRES XCliSS (I)I~FICII~NCY) OF REVliNUES OVER (UNI)ER) I!XPI~NI)I'I | J1~1~S OTIII!R FINANCIN(I SOURCES Operatil]g transfers ill ~X( l~SS, (1115FICIEN(Y) (IF RI!VliNL11!S AND OTI IER SOLIRCI!S OVER (I.INI)IiR) I!XI'ENDITLJRIIS FLJNI) BAI ,ANCI! A'I BliGINNING OF YI!AR AT ENI} {}F YEAR 

AI)JI.1STMI~NT TO AC'I UAI. P, UDGI(I'ARY BASIS I?~U I)GI'.TARY 
,297,340 6,824 937.816 

273,327 

414,365 $ 
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$ 633,652 1,297,340 6,824 
$ 636,315 1,287,701 15.000 937,816 1,939,016 

(375,W6) (702,0191 

VARIANCI' FAVOI~.AIH ,1! (tlNI, AVOKARI E) 
$ (2,663) 9,639 (8,176) 
32g.043 328,043 

273,327 280,806 (7,479) 
414.365 $ (6,848) 

319,364 



RIIVI~NUES "1 axes Ad valorenl tax Miscellaneous "10TAL RI!VENUES :XI,ENI)Irl tlRIIS Public works Personnel Supplies Sol vice charges Capilal outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA SPliCIAI. RI!VI!NUF FUNI)S - ROAI)S AND IIRII)GliS FUNI) OF REVENUI~S, EXPI~NI)rI'URES, AND CIIANGES IN FUNI) I~ALANCI - FHJDGE'I AND ACTUAl. Year Ended June 30. 1999 

AC'I UA 
282 359 
585,651 280,672 131,193 102,603 "10TAI. I:XPENDITURES 1.100.119 

AI)JUS'I MliNT TO BUI)GI!TARY BASIS llUI)GI ;TARY IIUI)GE 1 

380 212,687 (102,603) 

282 359 
585,651 281,052 343.880 

$ 

610,440 502,313 552,838 
XCFSS (I)EFI(?II!N(Y) OF I(I',VENUI!S OVER (UNI)11R) I!XPI!NI}I I'UI~,I{S (I,099,478) (110,464) (I,209,942) (1>665,591) O'lllliR FINAN( ING SOURCliS (Iperaling Iransfcrs in 1,209,942 XCI',SS (I)I!FICIENCY) OF RI~VENUIIS AND O'II IER SOURCES OVER (UNI)IiR) I,,XPENI)I I URI!S :UNI} IIAI,ANCE A'I BI'2{HNNING OF YEAR 102,774 A'I ENI) OF YEAR (102,774) $ 1213,238) 
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.209,942 1,665,59 

VARIANCE FAVORAIH ,1', (UNFAV(II~.AIH,li) 
282 359 
24,789 221,261 208,958 

455.649 
(455,649) 



RliVENUI4S "1 axes Ad valtuem lax I'0"1AI , RliVliNUES iX PI,~NI)ITLJI~.I!S Public works Pcrsolmel Supplies Scl vicc dlargcs 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA SPECIAl. RI,NENUE FLJNI)S - STREET I,IGI ITING FUNI) OF REVI!NUFS, EXPENI)I] UI~ES, AND CI IANGES IN FUND tlAI.ANCI - BUI)GET AND ACTUAL Year Ended June 30, 1999 

ACFUA 
573 
108,731 50,200 793.520 "10TAI. I+XI+I~NI)I'I URliS 952,45 

AI)JUSTMFNT TO BUGH'ARY BASIS llUI)GFTARY 

2,615 4.937 

573 573 
108,731 52,815 798,457 110,832 53,800 821,306 985.938 XCESS (I)IiFICII~NCY) OF REVI!NUI!S OVEI~, (UNI)EI~,) I'.XI'ENI)I I'URliS (951,8781 (7,552) (959,430) (985,938) O1 III!R FINANCING SOLIRCES Operating Iransfcrs ill 959,430 XCliSS (I)IiFICII';NCY) OF REVI~NUES AND O'1 IlliR SOIlRCES OVER (IJNI)ER) I':XI'ENI)I'I UI/15S 7,552 (7,552) FUNI) BAI,ANCli AT III~(IINNIN(I OF YEAR A'I ENI) OF YliAR 448 $ 9.000 (1,448) $ (9,000) 
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959.430 985.938 

VAI~.IANCli I"AVORAIII ,E (UNFAVOI~,AI~1,1!) 
573 573 
2,101 985 22,849 25.935 



REVliNLIES "1 axes Ad va]olcm t~x Service charges Firc reports hllelest Miscellaneous "1 O'1 AI. RI!VliNLIliS !XPliNI)I'I'LJI(I!S l'ublic safety I'ersonncl Supplies Scrvice ehalgcs Capilal oullay 

CfI'Y OF KIiNNIIR, I.OI.]ISIANA SPI!CIAI. RIIVI';N t111 FUNI)S - FIRE I)I~PAI(TMI!N'I' FtJNI) O1 REVICNLJI';S, I!XI>I~NI)I I't]I,II'~S, AND CIIANGES 1N FUND BAI.AN( - I]UI)GI';q AND ACI UA1. Year Ended June 30, 1999 

A( TIJAI 
$ 2,901,184 596 91,922 9,307 
196,171 48,787 583,080 53.612 

AI)J[JSTMI!N'I TO RII)GI~TARY BASIS IIUI)(iH'ARY 
$ 

80,576 3,505 405.651 

$ 2,901,184 596 91,922 9,307 3.003.009 
3,196,171 129,363 586,585 459,263 

$ 2,916,248 95O 69,630 7,500 
,289,642 149,184 666,316 191,073 

VARIANCt! FAVORAIII.li (UNFAVORAllI+E) 
(15,064) (354) 22,292 1.807 8.68 
93,471 19,821 79,731 831.810 "10"I'AI, IIX I'I';NI)I'I LJRI'S 3,881,650 489,732 4,371,382 5,396,215 1,024,833 IXCI!SS (I)ISFICII!N(?Y) OF P,I(VISNUISS OVER (UNI)I+R) I+XPIiNI)I'I t IRI!S (878,641) (489,732) (I,368,373) (2,401,8871 OTI IER FINANCIN(I SOURCES Operalillg transfers in (XCI~SS (I)H:I(glI!NCY) OF RINliNtJES AND OTIIIO( SOilI(CES OVER 03NI)IiR) liXPI!NI)I I'tlRI S 171,359 LJNI) I~AI,AN(?E AT BI!(;INNIN(I OF YEAR AT END OF YEAI~, $ (492,885) 
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618,983 $ 267.096 

033,514 

033,514 
033,514 



(Tills PAGE LEFT BLANK 1NTENTIONAI,LY) 



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
The Debt Service Funds are used to accumulate monies the City of Kenuer's general obligation, special tax comnlitmenl. 
GENERAL DEBT FUND 

for the payment of principal, interest, and fiscal charges on bonds, and special assessment debt with governmental 
The General Debt Fund accounts for the tax levy needed to comply with the intel~st and principal redemption requirements of bond indentures for file following paving certificates, excess revenue and sales tax bonds: Series A of 1990 - Paving Certificates Sales Tax Refunding Bonds Series 1992 Sales Tax Bonds Series 1994 Sales Tax Bonds Series 1995A Excess Revenue Bonds Series 1996A and 1996B AD VALOREM TAX BOND FUND The Ad Valorem Tax Bond Fund accounts for the pl~perty lax levies needed to comply with file interest and principal redemption requirements of bond indentures for the following bonds: General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 1992 FIREMEN'S PENSION MERGER FUND The Firemen's Pension Merger Fund accounts for the funding needed to comply with the interest and principal redemption requirements for the loan payable to the Slatewide Firefighters Retirement System. 
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Currcnl assets Cash liquity 0/pooled cash and investments Investments ]nlergovcmmcntal Special asgeggnlel]lS receivable Inlcrcsl receivable I)tlc from other ftlnds "10TAI, ASSli] S 
AI~IIXI'IES AND FLINI) BAI,ANC ,iabilitics Accounts payablc Due to other funds Deferred [eVClltlC "1 O'1AI, I 3AI$IIATIES Ftlnd balance Reserved for debt service 1 OTAI, FUNI) BAI,ANC] 

CITY OF KENNliR, LOUISIANA I)EI3T SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING F~ALANCE SIIEIH June 30, 1999 

GENIiRA l)liPH 
3.703 
AI) VAI,ORliM TAX BONDS HREMEN'S HiNSION MERGER FUNI) "1 O'1 A 
215,470 $ 1,145 278,869 5,965,217 665,113 29,271 4,826 65,105 105,303 

29,27 
6,713,964 

"1 O3 AI, I,IAFIII,I I ]ES AND I:UNI) BAI,ANCli $ 6,743,235 

$ 321,918 

02.822 02 822 
219.096 219.096 

$ 321,918 
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278,869 

23,751 250,000 
273,75 
5.118 5,118 

229.173 280,014 5,965,217 665,113 29,271 4,826 170.408 

23,751 250,000 132.093 405 844 

$ 7,344,022 



 
CHY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA DEI~1 SERVICE FUNI)S COMBINING S'I Aq EMENq OF REVENUES, I~XPENI)H URES, AND CIIANGES IN FUND BAI,ANCI':S Year Ended June 30, 1999 

REVENUI~S "laxes Special assessments Interest on invested ftlnds Miscellaneous "1 O'1 AI, kl VENIJES !XI'ENI)H UIZES DeN service Prillcipal Inlercsl and fiscal charges Agenl fees MiscellancmB "1 O'1AI, I :XI'ENI)H URES 

(;ENERAI I)EB3 

3,143,260 2,356,378 12,000 5.511.638 

AI) VALOREM TAX BONI)S 265,213 8,201 
273.414 
200,000 89,076 1,500 290,576 :XCESS (I)I!FICIENCY) OF REVI':NUES OVER (LINI)ER) EXI~ENI)H URI~S (1,459,949) (17,162) O'1 III,.R FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operalillg Ilans fcrs in ()pcla011g Ilansfers oul '1 O'1AI, O'11 lliR FINANCING SOURCES (USI S) 

301A35 

I'IRIiMIIN'S PIiNSION M liRGliR FIJNI) IO'1 AI 
4,035 24,834 28,869 
2,943 20.808 
23.75 
5.118 

3,829,630 29,272 369,622 125.448 
3,346,203 2,466,262 I 500 5.825.965 
,301,135 
301135 X('l':S8 (I)EFICIENCY) 01' REVI NLIIIS AND O'll I['R SOLJRCES OVIiR (UNI)IiR) EXI'I NI)II URI S (158,814) (17,162) 5,118 6170,858 FUNI) P;AI ANCI: A] ItI!GINNIN(I OF YEAR A'I INI) OF YEAR 6,872,778 236,258 
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$ 219,096 5 118 7. I (19.036 



REVENUES Taxes Sales lax Special assessments Inleresl Oll invesled funds Miscellaneous '10TAI, I~.EVI,;N UI'S ,;XI'ENI)ITLJRI.;S I)cb! service I'rincipal lnleresl Miscellaneous TOTAI. I';X PI';N 1 )11"U I~.I~S ;XCESS (I)I'FICII~NCY) OF I~.I';VI';NUES ()VI';I{ (UNDEI~.) I';XI'ENI)ITURI'S 

CITY OF KENER, I.OUISIANA 111';1~'1 SI';RVICI'; FUNI)S - GENFRAI~ DI'BT FUNI) OF I~,EVI~;NUES, I~;XI'I~;NI)I'I'UI~,I;S, AND CI IANGI';S IN I:UNI) BAI ,ANCI - I:~UDGI'T AND ACI'UAL Year F.nded June 30. 1999 

O'Illl';R FINANCING SOUI~.CI';S (USI';S) Opetating ttansfcls in Operafng transfers otll TOTAL OTIII';I/FINANCING SOURCES (USI'S) XCI'SS OF REVENUES AND O'11 IER SOUP.CI';S OVER EX PENI )I'1 UI~.P;S :UNI) I~AI.ANCE AT I~EGINNING OF YEAR AT FNI) OF YI'AR 

ACTUA 
564,417 29,272 357,386 100.614 4.051.689 
3,143,260 2,356,378 12,000 
(1,459,949) 

(]58,814) 
6.872.778 6.713.964 
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VARIANCI'; I:AVORABI J ! (UNFAVORAI~I,E) 
$ 3,864,849 $ 358,000 100.613 4.323.462 
3,213,488 2,406,491 12,000 5.631.979 

429.774 
429.774 
21,257 
6,994,035 

(300,432) 29,272 (6]4) i 
70,228 50.113 
2(I,34 

(280,071) 
$ (280,071) 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA I)EBT St';RVICI'; FUNI)S - AD VALOI{EM TAX BONDS FUNI) SC} IEI)UI J'; OF RI'VI';NUES, I~;XI'I~;NI)I'I'URES, AND CIIANGl';S IN FUNI) IIAI,ANCI~; - BUI)GET AND ACTUAl, Year I:nded June 30, 1999 

RFNI:,NUI:,S Taxes Ad Valorem tax hltercst on invested funds TOTAl, RI~VFNUES !XI'I:,NI)ITLJI{ES l)eb! service Ihir, eipal Ildercst alld fiscal charges Agen! fees TOTAl, I :XI'I'NI)ITURI~;S ~XCESS (IIHqCIENCY) OF I{IWI'NUI~;S OVER (UNI)ER) I ;Xlq~;NI)I'I'UI/ES [INI) BAI,ANCI,; A'I" BEGINNING OF YI:AR AT ENI) OF YIgAR 

ACTUA 
265,213 8,201 273,414 
200,000 89,076 1,500 290,576 
(17,162) 
236,258 219,096 
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265,327 6,900 272,227 
200,000 89,076 1.500 290,576 
236,258 217.909 

VARIANCI~ FAVORAIII,E (UNFAVORAIII,E) 
014) ,301 

87 



 
CH'Y OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA I)EBT SI'RVICI" FUNI)S - IqREMEN'S PENSION MERGH~, FUNI) SCllEI)UI,E OF RI~VENUES, I';XPI~;NI)I'fURI'S, AND CIIANGI~S IN FUNI) BAI,ANCE - BUI)GI'H" TO AC'I LJAI, Year Ended June 30, 1999 

REVENUI'~S Taxes Ad Valorcnl lax ]lltercsl on invested funds Miscellaneous TOTAl, RI:;VENUITS ~XI'I~NI)ITUI~.ES Debt service I'lincipal Ii|leresl and fiscal charges Agent fees TOI AI, EXPI';NI)H'URES iXCI'SS (DI'FICIENCY) OF REVENUI'~S OVI:R (UNDFI~.) I;XPFNDH'URI;S OTIII:R FINANCING SOURCI'~S Opcraling IianslErs in 0"1AI. OTIII'R FINANCING SO1JP.(?I~S I'XCESS OF I~ISVI;NUES AND OTIIER SOURCFS OVER EXPENI)H'UI/FS FUNI) BAI,ANCE AT BI'~GINNIN(I OF YEAR AT FNI) OF YEAR 

ACTUA 
4,035 24,834 28,869 
2,943 20.808 
23.75 
5.118 

5.118 
5.118 
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24.834 24.834 
221,658 53.176 
274.834 
(250,000) 

VARIANCI,; FAVORAI~I,E (UNI,'AVOI~.AI~I ,E) 
4.035 
4.035 
218,715 32,368 
255.118 

(250,000) 
5.118 
5.118 



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources and expenditures in connection with the acquisition renovation and improvements of capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. 
GENERAl. CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS General Capital Projects Fund accounts for projects originally funded by the General Fund and the Wastewater Operations Fund, Also included are projects funded by riverboat fees. 
CAP]TAL PROJECTS FUNDED WITH BOND PROCEEDS Capital Projects Funded with Bond Proceeds accounts for projects originally funded by the 1987A Seiics Bond pioceeds, the 1987B Series Bond proceeds and the 1988 Series Bond proceeds. These bonds were refunded by file Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 1992. Also included are projects funded by loans from LDEQ and by proceeds from the Excess P.evenue Bonds Series 1996A and 1996B. 
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ASSETS Cash Equity in pooled cash and I nvcstnlelltS Receivables Intergovernnlental Interest Other Due fiom other funds TOTAl, ASSI'TS AI~;II.I'I'II.:S AND FI.JNI) BA1 ~ANC] abilities Accounts payable Contracts payable Rclainages payablc Due to other flmds 'OTAI, I,IABII,ITIES und balance Reserved for encUtllbrances Ullr~scrv(~d Designated for capital additions and inlprovenlents Undesignated TOTAl. FUNI) BAI.ANCI TOTAl, 1JABII JTII';S AND ]:UNI) IIAI.ANCI,; 

CITY OF KENNEl(, I.OUISIANA CAPITAl. PROJI~CTS FUN1)S COMBININ(I BAI .ANCE $11EI';'I June 30. 1999 

GI';NIIRA1, (!APrrAl, I'ROJIIC I'S 
552,155 1,559,316 3.891.788 203,845 5,037 712,215 

CAI'ITAI, PROJI';CTS FUNI)I'I) WITI 1 BONI) PROCI';FJ)S TOTA 
476,201 34,263 1,028,356 1,593,579 3.891.788 203,845 5 5,037 712,215 $ 6,924,356 $ 510,469 $ 7,434,825 

470.914 74,464 303.582 848.960 
257.675 
5.817.72 
6,075,396 

11,604 
77.406 89.010 

421.459 
421.459 

482,518 74,464 380,988 937.970 
257.675 

6,496,855 
6,924,356 $ 510,469 $ 7.434,825 

Tile acconlpanying notes are all integral parl of this slatenlcnt, 
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C1TY O1: KI'~NNIDIt, LOUISIANA CAPITAl. PItOJI~CTS FUNDS COMI~INING STKI'I~,MENT ()F I~,INI';NUI~S, EXPI:.NI)ITUI{t'~S, AND CI 1ANGES IN FUNI) I~ALANCI'~ Year Ended June 30. 1999 

I>,INI,',N {JI'S ] ntorgovernnlonlal ]ntoresl Miscdlancous 'OTAI, I~,I'VI']N tJl~S XIq'~NI)I'FUI,tI:,S Capital ou0ay ( i cnola] goverlllll ont Public salTly Public works 1 lealih and wclliare Cullure and recreation TO'I AI, I:XI'IiNI)ITUI~,FS 
I')XCI'SS (I)H:ICIFNCY) OF RI'NI'~NUI'~ OVFY. (UNI)F.R) I'~XPFNI)IT{ JRIL'q OTI IEI~. FINANCING SOUI~,CI,;S (USES) Operalhlg tlansfcr in OfJerallng Ilansfers oul TOTAl, O'1"11H~. FINANCING SOUP, CI{S (USES) ~XCI'SS (I)I'~HCII~NCY) 0]; RI'NI'~NtJI';S AND OT111:14 SOURCIng OVFR (UNI)I'I~.) FXIq:NI)I'f{JI~.FS AND O3"11FR USFS I:UNI) BAI ANCN A'l' III'~(IINNING OF YI!AP, A'I END OF YI~AF, 

GI~NI'~RAI. CAI~ITAI, IqtoJEcI'S 422,980 335,749 35.000 793,729 
190,240 2,146,286 863,545 99,279 

CAPITAl, PItOJECTS FUNI)FI) W13"l I BOND PItOCI'~EI)S TOTA 

2,003 3,654 3.093 28.750 
(3,605,621) (115,555) 
6,156,682 (1,502,359) 
4,654,323 

5.026.694 6,075,396 

lit: acconlpanying notes are an integral parl oflhis statclncnl. 
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19,615 (22,879) 
(3,264) 
(118,819) 
421.459 

422,980 348,944 35.(1/1(I 

192,243 2,146,286 877.199 312,372 4,528,10/I 

6,176,297 (I,525,238) 

929.883 
6,496,855 



(THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY) 



ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enle~prises where the intent of the govenmlent's council is that file costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the government's council has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability 
I)EPAR'IMENT OF WASTEWATEI~. OPERATIONS FUND The Department of Wastewater Operations Fund accounts for the sewer services provided to the residents of the City of Kenner. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund including, but not limited to, admiuistratiou, operations, maintenance, financing, and related debt service and billing. Effective July 1, 1995, lhis departmenl was privatized. CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS FUND The Civic Center Operations Fund accounts for the operalions of the Pontchartrain Civic Center. Priucipal revenilcs of the land are rental charges, connnissions and governmental subsidies (hotel/motel taxes and cable television fianchise fees). 

120 



ASSI!'I S Ctlrl cn| assets Cash I!quity in pooled cash Receivables (net, whcrc applicable, of allowances for uncollccfiblcs) Intclgovcrllmcllta] Service charges Othc, Due from other funds Prepaid cxpcascs Rcfimdablc deposits '1 O'1 AI. CURI/I~NT ASSIi"I S 

(ITY OF KIINNER, I.OUISIANA IINTIIRPR1SIi FUNDS COMBINING BA1.ANCF SIII'I!'I Junc 30. 1999 

NI'T I'ROPIII~.TY, I'I.ANT AND IiQUII'MI!N'I 
"l (ITAI. ASSETS 

DEI~ARTMI!N'I O WASTliWA'I I';R OPIiRA'I IONS 
26,995 960 
,243,482 240,396 3.669 615,502 
1,825,937 73,884,382 151,167 1,283.694 919,800 78,064,980 25,922,952 
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CIVIC CICN'I I{R OPI~RA'I IONS "10I'A1 
356,495 806,967 
23,244 41,330 59.994 40,245 

5,319,450 6,470,931 2,963,889 36.893 24,791.163 4,132,512 

483,490 807.927 
123,244 ,284,812 159,994 24(I,396 40,245 3.669 
7,145,387 90,355,313 3.115,056 1,283,694 956,693 

72.800.679 



AIIII,fl II(S AND FUNI) EQLJfl Y Jabililies Cu fl~llt liabililics Accounts payable Rctainage payable (!tin-it/it portion ofmorlgage payable Accrued liabilities l)cposils on ftlltirc ovoids I)uc Io othcl ftlllds I)cfi:rred rcvcmle "IOIAI, CLllUtI(NI I,]AI]II ,)'JlliS .ollg-|Cl'll/ liabilities ( ompcnsated absences Mortgage payable (net of eurrcllt porlioJ)) "10"1 AI, I .ONG "1 ERM I JABI 1,1'11 l iS "1 O'1 AI, I JAlllI J'l Ili8 

T(I'IAI (7ONTIOBIJTI{I) CAI'flA 
l (11AI, FUNI) liQU ffY '101AI, I,IABII ,I I'II'S AND F{]NI) liQtlffY 

I)I!I'AI(fMI!NT OF WAS] J~WATJ~I~ OI'I~I~.ATION S 
7,720 7,651 1,790 2,688 6,576 9.767 
2,117 21.723 
330.032 
6,346,000 4,040.723 32,416,765 3,900>000 4,424,695 7,863,943 

C1VI(? (71~N3"1~1{ OI'I(RA'I IONS "1 O'1 A 
$ 177,021 
58,531 147,997 384 383.933 

383.933 
9,506,320 2,642,162 

68,992,126 24J87.760 

224,741 17,651 1,790 61,219 147,997 116,576 120,151 
2,117 21.723 23.840 713.965 

93,179,886 
(15,564,628) (2,384,767) (17,949,395) 
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21,802,993 



 
CH'Y OF KIiNNIIR, I,OUISIANA I'NTI~RPRISE FUNI)S COMI~ININ(I STATEMIINT OF REVIINLII:,S, I~XPENSIiS AND CIIANGI'S IN RETAINED I'AIKNINGS (1)IIFICH) Year 11ndcd June 30. 1999 

()PERA'I ING RIIVENUIIS Charges for services Miscellaneous "I'OTM, OPEI~.ATING RI'VENUI'S OH'P,A'I ING EXI'IgNSI:,S Personnel expenses Supplies and other expenses ]lui]ding and nlaintcl/al/ce expenses Otltsidc services Ttansporlalion ]llStllaneo prelllillllls (icncral expenses Dcprccialion Other OIAI, OPHIATING IiXPIiNSIIS OPIW, A'I ING I,OSS NON-OPIiI~.A'I IN(i IIEVI';NUIiS (I:XPI;NSE8) Ad valoroln laxcs I lotcl/motel taxes Cable lelevision flanchisc fees Inlercsl Jneollle Inleresl OXpellSC O'1 AI, NON-OPIiI~,ATING IU'VENUI'S NH I,OSS BI~I:ORIi (II'I'I/A'I ING "H~.ANSFIiI(S OHiRATIN(i "1 IIANSFERS "l ransfers in NIi'I I.O88 RH'AINIII) I'AI~.NINGS (I)IiFI(H') A'I BIiGINNING OF YI:,AR AT END OF YEAR 

I)I;I'AV, TMI~NT OF WAS'I IeWATIiR OH:RATIONS 4,547,484 8,713 4,556,197 
57,770 710 94,882 4,468,693 263 
676,405 67.868 6,366,59 (1,810,394) 
451,019 
4,481 (2,388) 453.112 
27.045 

CIVIC CIINTER OI'I~RATIf)NS 202,385 2,940 205,325 

44,531 595,473 32,658 

33,613 29,969 48,628 (153) 012,057 
(99,784) 
(99,784) 

(14,234,391) (2,284,983) 

5,749,869 11.653 
57,770 15,930 449,090 5,743,769 263 44.531 2,271,878 1(10,526 

451,019 333,613 629,969 53,109 (2,541) 465.169 
(1,457,066 
27.045 
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OP](RAI ING IUiV]iNUES Charges for service~ Sewerage ser~ ice charges Miscelhmcous 

CITy O]: KliNNER, I,OUISIANA IiNTI RPRIS}i FUN~) - WASTJiWA'I ER OPERATIONS S(I II{l)/)l,|i OF REV ENk}I {S AND C} IANGE,% 1N RF;I AINI~.I) I{ARNINGS (DEI:ICIT) - BUI)GE'I AND ACTUAl, Year Ended June 30.1999 

"10"1 AI, OPl RA'IING RI{VI{NtJI(S Olqil/A] ING I{XPENSES Personnel expenses Supplies and other expense Building and nlaintenance expenses Outside services "I ransporlation (k'nerM cxpens~s I)epreciation Other "1 O'1 AI, OI'IiRA'I ING EXPENSES 

ACI UA~, 
$ 4,547,484 8,713 

ADJ. TO IIUDGIilARY BASIS BUI)GETAI{Y 

59,770 710 94,882 (19,044) 4,468,693 263 676,405 67.868 

$ 4,547,484 8,713 $ 4,334,627 500 
57,770 710 75,838 4,468,693 263 

VARIANCI{ I;AVORABI ,li (UNFAVOI~:ABI ,I 
212,857 8,213 
037) 26,322 49,348 70,604 737 (I,676,405) 145,577 213,445 499,~94 285,949 432 823 OPI{RA'I ING INCOMI{ (IX)SS) (I,810,394) ___ 1,549,872 -- (260,522) (914,415) 653,893 NON-OI'ERA'I'ING REVENUI(S (EXPI{NSliS Ad valorenl laxes Interest inconle Interest expellse OIAI, N()N-OI'ERA'I ING RI~VliNUliS Nlil INCOMI (I.O8N) BEFOR OPI{F,A'I ING "1 RANSFliRS OI'IiRA'I ING "1 IIANSFEI/S "1 ransfers in 

RI{I AINliD I ARNINGS (I)]{FI(3"I) A'J BEGINNING OF YEAR A'I liND OF YEAR 

451,019 4,481 (2,388) 
453.112 
27.045 

451,019 4,481 453,169 4,500 64,172) 

27,045 

$ (15,564,628) 37,333 1,137,333 $ 16,921,596 $ 1,356,968 $ 676,415 $ 
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2,150 (19 1.784 

27.045 



OIq~RA3 ING RI VENUES Charges for services Rental charges Parking Concessions Calering Misccllan~otl~, Electrical Reimbursed services Advertising Security 

CHY OF KENNIgR ENHIRPRISE FUNI) ~ CIVIC CENI liR OPI RATIONS OF RliVENIJI ~S, EXPENSES AND C[ IANGES IN Rli3 AINliI) EARNINGS (I)lilqCI 1 - BUI)GEI AND ACIUAL Year Ended June 30, 1999 

"IOIAI, CIIARG] S IOR SIiI(VIC]IS 
"l O'l AI, OPI~I(ATIN(; REVENUliS 
OI)]'](A'I ING liXPIiNSliS Supplies and other expenses Building and mailllcnancc expense Outside services InsurallCC prenlitnns General expenses Depreciation ()tiler IOIAI, OPIiI(A'I IN(I liXPIiNSIiS 
NON-OPI'](A'I ING RI(VliNUliS (I'~XPliNSliS l ]otel/molel taxes Cable television franchise R'cs ]nleres[ income Interest expense 

ACqUA 
675,698 55,890 63,707 86,796 8,333 71,519 169,476 26,558 44.408 ,202,385 2,940 

595,473 32,658 

ADJ "10 UDGE I'ARY BASIS BUI)GHARY 
$ 675,698 55,890 63,707 86,796 8,333 71,519 169,476 26,558 44.408 ,202,385 2 940 
15,220 54,208 75,076 44,531 
32.658 

651,000 62,000 55,500 61,400 10,200 59,850 146,00(I 25,000 44,800 5,750 2.700 8,450 
26,240 458,000 ,233,820 66,600 

VAI~.IANCli FAVOI(ABI,I i (UNFAVORAIfl ,E) 

86,635 240 86.875 
11,020 103,792 (41,256 22 069 
(32,658 62.967 (I,1 ] 1,841) 595,473 (516,368) (666,210) 149,842 

333,613 629,969 48,628 (153) IOI'AI, NON OPH'~A'IING REVIiNLJI'IS 1,012,057 NEI IN(OMli (I ,OSS) 
RlilAINIil) liARNINGS (I)IiFICH) A'I B1 GINNING OF YEAR A'I liND OF YIAF( 

(99,784) 595,473 
333,613 629,969 48,628 053 
328,947 480,272 24.12(I 4,666 49,697 24,508 053 78,718 67,129 328,560 
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iicrcasc (dccrcase) ill cash and cash cquivalcnls: Cash flows flora operating aclivilies Opcraling incomc (loss) A([itlSllnClllS |o reconcile operating illCOllle (loss) to ncl cash provided by (uscd for) operating aclivilies: Dcprccialion 

crI'Y OF KIiNNFR, I,OUISIANA I~NTI~RI'RISE FUNI)S COMBINING STATIIMEN 1" OF CASI I H,OWS Ycar Ended June 30, 1999 

(?hangc ill curtelll asscls (incrcasc) dccrcasc I~.cccivablcs Due from olllcr finKls ] nlcrgovcrnnlental Prer, aid cxpenscs Changc in currcn! liabililics increase (dcclcasc): Accotmls payable Rclainagc payable I)c fcrrcd fcvi31ltlc Accrucd liabililics I)UC 10 olhcr filnds Dcposils oil fillurc cvcnls COlII pCllsalcd absences O]AI, AI)JUSIMENI S Nct cash providcd by (uscd for) operating activities (!ash flows from noncapilal financing activilics: Ad valorcm taxes ] ]olcl/n/olcl IIIXCS Cable television fianchisc fccs Opcraling lransfi~rs in 
Nel cash provided by noncapilal financing aclivitics 

I)ITARTMI'NT OF WASTI'WATt'I( OPI~;RATION S CIVIC CENTI'R OPH(ATIONS 
$ (1,810,394) (I,Ill,841) $ (2,922,235) 
676,405 
(130,901) (129,036) 357.761 
11,161 17,651 10,520 (117) (195,332) 
618,113 

595.473 
15,364) 20,558 5.144 
79,562 
38,011 43.921 

(192,281) (344,536) 
451.019 
27.045 
478,064 
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333,613 629.969 
963.582 

(146,265) (129,036) 20,558 362.905 
90,723 17,651 1/),520 37,894 6195,332) 43.921 

51,019 33,613 29,969 27.045 



 
CITY OF KENNI!I~., I,OIJISIANA ENII(RPR[g[? F(INDS COMBINING STATEMEN'I OF CASI1 Iq,OWS (CONIINLIEI)) Yeal Ended June 30, 1999 

Cash Ilows from capital and rclalcd financing aclivilics: I'lincipal j~aynlc]lls - iiotc payablc Principal paymcnls - nlortgagc payablc Iiitcresl paylnenls Acquisilion of propctty, plant, and cquipmcnt 

)EI~AI~.] MENT O WAS I'EWATE|t. OPFRATIONS 
(I,784) (2,388) 

CIVIC CEN'I ER OI'ERA] IONS TO'IA 
(3,736) 053) (196,060) Ncl cash p/re,ideal by (used fin) capi1~l and rclalcd 11nmlcillg ~clivilics (327,518) (199,949) Cash flows fronl invesling a~fvitics Interest rcccivcd Ncl cash pr'ovidcd by investing actlvilies 4.48 4.48 NcJ inclcasc (dcclcasc) it~ CaSh arid cash cqtlivalcnts (37,254) 467.725 Cash and cash equivalcnls, begilming of year 165,209 695.737 Cash and cash equivalcnls, end ofycm $ 127,955 $ 1,163.462 

Rcconcilialion to balance sheet accounls: Cash liquily in pooled cash and invcslmen/s 26,995 960 
Ntmcash il/vcsling, capilal, 8nd fhbancing aclivitics: ('onftibutions of capital Acquisilions ol'propcrty, planl, and Cqtliplllcnl Ihlough capita~ COnlribtltiolls 
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356,495 806.967 63.462 

$ (3,736/ (I,784) (2,541) (519,406) 
53,109 53,]09 430,47 860,946 ,291,417 
483,490 807.927 ,291,417 



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
lntemal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one departmcn! or agency to olhel departments or agencies of the government and to other government units, on a cost reimbursement basis. SELF-INSURANCE FUND The Self-lnsurance Fund accounts for monies accumulated to provide automobile property damage and worker's compensation for which tile City is self-insured. l I EAI,TIt INSURANCE FUND The llealtb Insurance Fund accounts for monies accumulated to pay the health insurance premiums 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SttEE'I June 30. 1999 

ASSETS Cash ]nvestlllelltS I'l.eceivables (net, where applicable, of allowances for uncollectibles) Accouuls 
TOTAl. ASSETS 

LIAlllIATIES AND FUND EQUITY l.iabilities Accounls payable Estimated claims payable Due to other funds TOTAl. LIAFqLITIES Fund equity P, etained earnings 
TOTAl. FUNI) EQUITY 

SELF- NSURANCE FUNI) HEAl.TIt NSURANCE FUND 
$ 538,285 $ 182,79 3.639.070 
54.877 
$ 4,332,232 
$ 768,436 2.367.188 
3.135.624 
96,608 
96.608 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND I;UND EQUITY $ 4,332,232 

The accompanying hOleS are all inlegral part of Ibis statement 
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$ 182,79 

3.744 3.744 
79.047 
79.047 
$ 182,79 

$ 721,076 3,639,070 
54.877 
$ 4,515,023 
$ 768,436 2,367,188 3.744 3,139,368 

$ 4,515.023 



 
CITY OF KENNER, 1.OUISIANA INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CIIANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS Year Ended June 30. 1999 

OF'I~RATING RI:VI'~N UI'~S Charges for services OIq~RATING I';X PI'NSES Outside services ]nsurallCe claims ] iiSUl'allc(2 prerlliUll] s 
TOTAl, OPERATING EXPENSES OI'I'RATING INCOME (I,OSS) NON-OIq~RA'I'ING I{EVENUE ]lltercsl revenue TOTAl, NON-OIq;RATING RI';VENU 
NET INCOME (I,OSS) RI'71'AIN H) EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YFAR AT ENI) OF YEAR 

The accompanying notes arc all inlegral part of Ibis slatemenl 

SEI.F- NSURANCE FUND 
$ 1.908.893 
940,938 1.102.025 
2,042,963 (134,070) 
47347 47.747 

11 EAI,TI 1 INSURANCE FUND 
$ 2,461,843 
2.372.896 
2.372.896 88.947 
3.928 3,928 

$ 4,370,736 
940,938 1,102,025 2.372.896 
4.415.859 (45,123) 
51.675 51,675 

3.677 92,875 106.552 
82,931 86,172 1,269,103 $ 1,196,608 
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$ 179.047 $ 1,375,655 



IN(]RI~ASE IN CASII AND CASII EQUIVALENJ'S: Cash flows fron't operating activities: Operating income (loss) AdjuslmelltS lo reconcile operating ineolne (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: Change in assets and liabilities: Increase in RecOlllltS receivable Decrease in accounts payable Increase in accrued expenses Increase in due to other fimds 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA INTERNAl. SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING STATIz~MENT OtI CASII FLOWS Year Ended June 30. 1999 

Cash flows from investing activities: Purcbases of invesllllelll securities l'rocecds from maturities ofinvesUllenls Interest received 
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 

SELF- INSURANCE FUND IlEAl;I'll NSURANCE FUND 
$ (134,070) $ 88,947 $ (45,123) 
(154,877) (19,315) 533,560 
359,368 
225,298 
(13,205,046) 12,885,979 142,443 
(176,624) 
48.674 
489.6 538,285 

'lie aeconlpanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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(1,8oo) 3,000 ,200 
90.147 
3,928 

(154,877) (2hJl5) 533,560 3200 360,568 

(13,205,046) 12,885,979 146,371 
3,928 (172,696) 
94,075 
88,716 182,79 

42.749 
$ 721.076 



FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
']'nlst funds are used to account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity. Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individual, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. 
FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for the retirement annuity payments at appropriate amounts and times in the future. 
AD VALOREM TAX COLLECTION FUND The Ad Valorem Tax Collection Fund accounts for property taxes billed and collected oll behalf of all funds of the City. 
AIRPORT SALES TAX FUND ']'he Airport Sales Tax Fund is used to account for file proceeds of sales taxes generated from a special 2% sales tax assessed within the Airport "]['axing District, and to distribute to the appropriate taxing bodies, 
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CITY OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA FIDUCIARY FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEE'I June 30, 1999 

ASSETS Cash Equily in pooled cash and inveslments ] I]Voslll"lcnl.S Receivables (net, where applicable, of allowance for uncollectiblcs) Ad valorem taxes hltergovernnlental Interesl Other Prepaid expenses TOTAL ASSETS 
AI~II.ITIF.S AND FUND BA1.ANCE l.iabililies l)ue lo olher funds Due to other governlnclltS Refunds payable TOTAl. IJABII.ITIES 
Fund balance reserved for employees' pension benefits TOTAl, FUND BAI,ANCE TOTAL LIABII.ITII')S AND FUND [IAIJANCF. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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I'ENSION TRUST FUNI) 
HRF.MF.N'S PENSION AND REI.1H' 51,322 092,620 
9,142 60 4.971 $ 1,158,115 



AGENCY FUNDS 
AI) VAI.OREM TAX COLLI3CTION 36.444 
,306,05 

442,495 

,389,552 52,943 442,495 

442,495 

AIRPORT SALES TAX FUNI) 

301.788 

]00,596 201.192 
301.788 

301.788 
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$ 187,766 092,620 
,306,051 301,787 9,142 60 4.971 $ 2,902,398 

$ 1,490,148 201,192 52,943 744,283 
58.115 
$ 2,902,398 



 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA PENSION TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF CI IANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS Year Ended June 30.1999 

AI)D1TIONS Contributions: Participants Fmployer: City of Kenner 
nvestlnen[ ]ncomel Net apprecialion in fair value Interest l)ividends Total hlvestnlent Income 
Less ]nvestmenl I';xpense Net lnvcstment Income Oilier ] nconle Total Addilions 
DEI)UCTIONS Transfer of plan assets to the Slatewide Firefighters Retirement System Members' benefits Refunds to terminated employees (?onlinued service incentive Administrative expenses TOTAL DEDUCTIONS NET I)ECREASE PLAN NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 135 

FIREMEN'S PENSION AND REI,1 El' 
181,266 271.425 452,69 
114,321 252,468 51.056 
43.665 1,374.180 0 826.98 
130,143 494,049 4,529 39,408 18.995 687.124 
(9,860,143) 
018,258 $ 1,158,115 



 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA ('.OMB1N ING STATEMENT OF CI 1ANGES 1N ASSF, TS AND 1JABILITES - AI.L AGENCY FUNI)S Year Ended June 30. 1999 
AD VAI.OREM TAX CO1,LECTION FUNI) 

ASSH'S Cash Ad valorelll taxes receivable TOTAl. ASSETS AIM I.ITI F.S Accounts payable l)ue to other ftnlds Refunds payable TOTAl. LIAI~IIJTIES 

BALANCE JULY 1, 1998 ADDITIONS $ 62,132 1,202,334 $ 1.264.466 
$ 5,933 1,245,205 13,328 
$ 1,264,466 

$ 5,081,081 5,262,514 $ 10,343,595 
$ 5.1 51,457 39.615 
$ 5,191,072 

AIRPORT SALES TAX FLJND 

BAI,ANCE DEDUCTIONS JUNF 30. 1999 $ 5,006,769 5.158.797 $ 10,165,566 
$ 5,933 5.007.110 
$ 5,013,043 

$ 136,444 1,306,051 $ 1,442,495 
389,552 52.943 
$ 1,442.495 

ASSI:,TS Equity in pooled cash and inveshnents l)ue from oilier governlllenls TOTAl. A SSI:.q'S 
ABII,ITIFS l)ue to other funds l)ue to olber governnlenls TOTAl. I.IABII,ITIES 

BAI.ANCE BAI.AN('I'; JULY 1, 1998 AI)DIrI'IONS DI';I)UCTIONS JUNE 30, 1999 $ 267,29 $ 267,292 
$ 89,097 178.195 $ 267,292 
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301.787 $ 301.787 
$ 100,596 201.192 $ 301,788 

$ 267,291 
$ 267,29 
89,097 78.195 $ 267.292 

$ 301 
$ 301.788 
$ 100,596 201.192 $ 301.788 



 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA COMBINING STATEMI'NT OF CI |ANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AI.I, AGENCY FUNDS (CON'I INUEI)) Year Ended June 30.1999 

TOTALS - ALl. AGENCY FUNDS 
ASSETS Cash Equity ill pooled cash and iaves0nenls Ad valorem 'taxes receivable l)lle from other goverlllllCnls TOTAl, ASSETS 
AI3113TIES Accounts payable I)ue to other ftmds l)tle tO oilier governlnents Refunds f, ayable TOTAl, LIAI~II,II'II~S 

BALANCE JULY 1. 1998 AI)DITIONS DEDUCTIONS 

$ 1,531,758 

Tile accornf~anying notes are an integral part of this statement 

I~ALANCE JUNI" 30. 1999 $ 5,0gl,081 $ 5,006,769 $ 5,262,514 301.787 $ 10,645,382 
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$ 5,492,860 

5,158,797 267,291 $ 10,432,857 
5,933 5,096,207 178.195 

$ 5,280,335 

136,444 1 ,306,051 301.787 $ 1,744,283 
490,148 201,192 52,943 $ 1,744,283 



GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP 
The General Fixed Assets Account Group is used to account for fixed assets which are not used in Proprietary Fund operations or accounted for in Trust Funds. 

138 



 
CITY OF KENNER, I~OUISIANA SCIIEI)ULI';OF GENI';RAL FIXI~,I) ASSI~71"S - BY SOURCES June 30. 1999 

GI';NERAI. FIXEI) ASSETS I.and Buildings Improvements other than buildings ]:Ulllittlre~ fixltlrcs and equipl'uent Vehicles Construcliol~ in progress TOTAl, GENI'2RAL FIXI'2D ASSETS 
NVI'STMI'NT IN GF.NERAL FIXF, I) ASSETS FROM Gellelal ftllld roventles General obligation bonds and notes Federal granls Stale grants Parish grants Gifts Special assessments Riverboat fees 
TOTAl, INVESTMENT IN GENERAl, FIXED ASSETS 
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$ 11,847,232 15,077,894 37,618,498 14,203,177 10,910,719 8.018.938 $ 97,676,458 
$ 41,502,330 17,851,797 11,403,950 1,223,850 263,000 638,662 15,072,274 9.720.595 $ 97,676,458 



 
C|TY OF KENNFR, LOUISIANA SCI ll!l)l.)l ,E OF GENI!RA1. FIXEI) ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY June 30, 1999 

IMPROVIiMEN l'S O3211iR ~1 IIAN BUll J)INGS IIUII,DIN(IS 
$ 1.340.948 $ 1.584.O21 $ 12,500 214.746 1,224 113,752 5,189 201,087 "1 O'1AI. GI NIlRAI. GOVIOINMI N I 1,340,948 1.896.521 2.662.380 

.009.267 171.679 
p.blic ~oiks Atlmh~is~alion Bcaulificatic>n (ial Ililg~ Roads and bridges Shcel lighllrlu ])tainage Vchiclc and building mainlcnancc "I (IIAI. PUBIA(' WORKS eallh and ~elfare Ilumane 4'omlcil on aging Remo~ al of architcclulal barliClS ]ood bm~k ] lousing aulhorib "l O'1AI, I ILAI .'111 AND WEI,FARI 6'ultul~ and icclcalion Adlninislratiol~ and ,nainlcnancc Rcclcation Museums 

20,810 

46.288 
47.394 54.602 3 969 

22,465,104 177.778 718,279 22,270 216,062 23,846,196 

46.950 20.409 6.720.515 1.328fl57 
218,470 254.000 7.046.601 1,694,534 

53,132 83.205 18.350 
29.606 8.445.386 402.181 

2,032,040 6.954.341 37.943 5.869 10.671 892,279 1.234 49.358 

$ 332.420 40.036 $ 7,415.811 267.282 114.976 206.276 
6.480.556 73.941 2.076,243 

7.951.695 8.758,451 
150.O'Jl 188.548 111.252 1.668.073 40.199 27.050 3418.127 
2.974 2.155 5.129 

IO'IAI CUI,'I UI~.I AND RI,CRI AIION 8.069.681 8.995.135 8.877.173 1,666.238 3 ,ansii and urball devcloplncll Community dcvclopnlcld "J la~lsit 217,263 277.631 '1 O'1AI, '1 RANSI I ANI) [IRIIAN I)1 VEI,OI'MI N 1 494.894 IOIAI,(ll NI RAI. FIXF I) ASSE'IS AI ,I,OCA'I H ) 10 FUNCIIONS 
725,809 38,735 

1.324.551 725,809 38.735 

85,920 12.732 

21.945 68.411 

145.833 337.963 79.868 

17.324.493 111.884 5.869 58.065 4.413.387 176.882 177.069 
342417 764.045 111.252 25.020.960 265>787 877.173 463,307 
21,945 499,937 183,205 2,155 18.350 725,592 
920.197 23,375.663 3,876,031 
2,365.87 277.63 

140 

8.018,938 $ 97,676.458 



 
CITY OF KFNNFR, I,OUISIANA SCIII'I)UI,I'; OF CIIANGES IN GI~NEIt.AL HXH) ASSETS - BY I:UNCTI()N AND ACTIVITY Year Ended June 30, 1999 

FUNC'I ION AND AC 1 IVITY General govcrlmlCnl Adnlinistrabon l'leclcd ofl~cials Clelk of court Planning and zoning "IOIAI, ( ]ENERAI GOVH~NMEN I 

'ublic ~sorks Administration Beau6ficalioll Garbage Roads lind bridges Sllcet ]ighling Drairlagc Vehicle and building tnailllenallcc 'l O'1AI, I'LIB1.1(" WORKS Icalth and welfare I lumane ('ouncil oll aging I(enloval ofa*~llitectu)al bartieis food bank I hlusing authority "l O'1 AI, I I I'A] ,'111 ANI ) Wlil,FAl/ CiiIture and ~ecrealioll Adlninislration and nlaintellancc Recitation Mtigctlms ] O'1 AI C(II,+I (JR} AND RliCREAIlON "l rtll~Sil and mban dcveloplllell (?onlmunlty devclopnlcliI "1 ransit 

I)EI)UC] IONS & GENERAl, FIXI(1) DEPAR'I MI',N I'AI GENEI/AI, FIXEI) ASSE'I S 7/01/98 AI)I)I I IONS ] KANSH',RS ASSHS 6/30/99 

27,636,90 
21,945 499,937 183,205 2,155 18,350 

26,904,200 1,187,171 277 631 

$ 85,025 $ 6,139 18,229 175.774 285,217 
3,261,258 
42,098 8984 
207.640 

207 640 

,267,69 
,26769 78 700 

"IOIAI, "1 RANSI'I AND UI<IIAN I)EVI~I,OI'MEN I 1,464,802 I,I 78,700 '10"I AI, (;liNI(RAI, FIXEI) ASSE'I S AI,I OCA] 1 1) qO FUNC'I IONS 6,318,64 6,252,488 6,157,788 

20(1000 

$ 7,415,811 267,282 114,976 206,276 

342,017 764,045 111,252 25,020,96O 265,787 877,173 463,307 
21,945 499,937 183,205 2,155 18,350 725592 
1,000,064 23,375,663 3,796,164 
2,365,87 277 63 

4,457,491 8,018,938 "10'1AI, GENI;RAI. I:IXEI) ASSI! 1S $ 89923673 $ 12410276 $ 4,657,491 $ 97,676,458 
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GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP 
The General Long-Term Debt Account Group records the general obligation bonds and other forms of long-term debt supported by general revenues that are obligations of a governmental unit as a whole and not its individual constituent funds. 
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CITY OF KENNER, 1,OUISIANA SCHEI)ULE OF GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT June 30, 1999 
Amount Available and to be Provided for the Payment of 1,ong-'l'erm Debt SFRIAI, BONDS Amount available ill Debt Service Funds 

Alnounl to be provided for retiremenl of general obligation special lax bonds, and special assessment debt with governlnenlal colnnlitlll gill Total available and to be provided for serial bond retirement NOTFS I'AYABI,I'~ Anlounl available in Special Revenue Funds Amount available in Debt Service Fund Tolal available for notes payable Amounl to be provided fi-om governmental funds Total available and to be provided for holes payable 
COMPI{NSATI'I) ABSENCES PAYABLE Ainount to bc provided fi'om governmental funds CAPITAl, I,I';ASI'~S PAYABLE Anlounl to be provided fi'om governmental funds Total amount available and to be provided 

General Long-Term Debt Payable SI(P, IAI. BONI)S PAYABI,E General obligation and special tax bonds Special assessnlenI debt with governnlenlal conlnlil.lnenl 
"1 olal serial bonds payable N OTF, S I'AYAB COMPENSATED ABSF.NCES PAYABIA CAPITAl, I,EASES PAYABI.F. 
Tolal general long-term debt payable 
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$ 6,933,060 
37,916,212 44,849,272 
25,000 5.118 30.118 2,952,677 3.082.795 
940.180 
$ 50,445,420 

$ 44,820,000 29,272 
44,849,272 3.082.795 1.940,180 
$ 50,445,420 



STATISTICAL SECTION 



 
CITY OF KI~NNER, I,OUISIANA GENI'RAI. GOVI~RNMI'NTAI. I~XIq~NI)ITUI,H';S BY FUNCTION (I) ],ANT TEN FISCAL YEARS (I]NAUDITED) 

FISCAl, GI(NIiRAI, PI'RCI!NI YEAR GOVliRNMKN'I OF TO'I AI 175 18.3 219 188 19.2 21 0 214 18.2 184 161 

PUIII,IC SAFIITY $ 9,575,704 9.744.152 
0.004.115 1,342,251 2.406.268 5,896,297 

PERCIiN'I OF TOTAl 34 4 329 299 311 354 35 5 38 7 380 37.3 433 

nchldcs General, Spccial Rcvenuc Funded with 3axes and Debt Servicc Funds 
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PUB1 ,IC WORKS llliAI.31I PERCI'IN3 AND PI!RCIiN I OF TOTAl, WEI,FARI~ OF TO'I AI 

5,868,997 
6,933,135 6,862,236 7.062,176 

547,913 609,521 634,838 626,316 609,811 701,860 764,698 769,305 789,516 



 

CIJI J UF, I( ANI) PI]RC] N3 PIiI~.CEN I ]UICI/IiA'IION OI 30"IA], 3RANSIT Of 303AI $ 2,5(16,347 3.131.412 
2,808,260 2.664.041 

DEBT SIiRVICI 
06 08 87 83 86 77 73 87 80 

370.830 447,001 386,300 352,921 391,628 344,149 408,919 408,806 436,047 
4,319,384 6,878,21)6 
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I'IiRCliN'I OF 3"O'1AI MISCliI,- ,ANEOUS 65 $ 1,069,870 58 1,287,275 52 1,215,427 8 4 1,296,067 30 1,325,103 I 2 1,450,042 0 5 1,628,349 51 1,566,591 3 I 1,944,224 21 1,546,418 

PI~RCENT O1" 3OTAI 38 $ 43 3.8 40 41 41 40 34 44 32 

27,845,959 29,661,948 31,726,784 32,178,996 
34,979,184 41,039,471 45 435 75(I 

PIiRCI(NI OF I'O'IAI O00 00 (J 00 0 00 0 000 000 00(I 000 000 000 



FISCAl YEAP, 990 
991 992 993 994 995 996 
997 998 999 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl. GOVERNMENT EXPENI)ITURES BY OBJECT CLASS (1) LAST TEN FISCAl, YEARS (UNAUDITED) 

PERSONNE SEI~,VICES $ 12,337,347 
3,184.843 3,531,586 3,856,23 4,359,353 5,531,624 7.085.934 
18,224,696 9,721.760 20.457.895 

PERCENT OF TOTAI. SUPPLIES 44.3 
44.5 42.7 43.1 44.8 44.4 41.6 
40.1 44.5 42.6 

$ 1,106,030 
1,182,805 1,189,214 612,958 466.075 600,026 785,418 
2,062,214 2,122,520 

PERCENT OFTOTAI. 4.0 
4.0 3.7 5.0 4.6 4.6 4.4 
4.3 4.7 4.4 

(1) Includcs General, Special Revenue Fmadcd witl~ Taxes and Debt Service Funds 
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SERVICE CHARGES 
$ 9,341,758 9.885.847 ,281,678 9.907.774 0.097.822 876,714 3,245,138 
13,036.954 3,540,666 3,854,259 

I'ERCI~N' OF TOTA 33.5 
33.3 35.6 30.8 31.5 34.0 32.3 
28.7 30.5 28.8 



CAPITAl, OUTI,AY $ 458,835 720,509 887.479 887.936 969.627 
2,067,010 
5,324,829 3.208.400 5.804.865 

PERCENT OFTOTAI. 1.6 2.4 2.8 2.8 6.1 
5.9 1.2 1.7 7.2 2.1 

I)I';BT SERVICE $ 4,601,989 4,687,944 4.836.827 5.914,097 
4,172,086 3.903.810 4,319,384 6,878,206 5,814,389 5.825.965 

PERCENT OF TOTAL 6.5 5.8 5.2 8.4 
3.0 1.2 0.5 5.1 3.1 2.1 
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$ 27,845,959 29,661,948 31.726.784 32,178,996 
32.064.963 34.979.184 41.039.47 45.435.750 44,347,429 48,065,504 

PI'~RCENT OF TOTAl 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 
100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 



] ]SCAI 8'I'IAR 

41.195.517 

(ITY O1" KI~NNF, R, I,OUISIANA GENI~RAI, GOVERNMENT I~,I~VEN UFS BY SOURCF (I) LAST TEN FISCAl, YEARS (I, INAUDITED) 
PERCI~N 1 OF ](HAl ,ICI NSES CI IARGI:S AND I'ERCEN [ INItR PI RCENI fOR I'I;RCI,;N I I'ERMIJS O1' ]OIAI, ~;OVERNMI:N l AI, OI, 'IOIAI, SERVICliS O1' ]OIAI 763 $ 1,436,385 75.9 1,698,454 812 1,848,219 808 1,963,613 81.7 2,183,193 841 2,226,695 829 2,371,946 82.1 2,341,273 81.5 2,363,845 82 0 2,399,876 4.6 4.4 

ncludes General, Special Revenue Funded with ]axes and I)ebt Service Funds 
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2,623,098 2,360.336 

8.6 $ 962,361 81 1,173,087 31 1,172,666 4.5 1,181,214 37 1,200,082 3,8 1,289,866 37 1,484,513 46 1,627,833 51 1,646,482 4.3 ~,336,289 



 

lINES AND PERCEN I SPl CIAI, PERCI NI (2) PI RCI:N I MISCJ I - PERCI:N I IORII IIURI S O1 qOIAI, ASSESSMI N IS OI, "1 O'1AI, ]NIERES1 OF IOqhL I.ANI OLIS O1' ] O'IAL "10"l AI 
875,969 808,182 911,586 ,011.839 ,127,429 ,121,222 
,506,6~0 ,846,210 
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28,511,937 28,863,060 30,885,112 34,237,164 45,886,999 49,641,525 49,540,300 51,494,918 54.444A35 

PI:R('I;N I O]'lO'l AI 100.0 I000 I000 IOOO I0oo IOOO Io0o IOOO IOO o IOO o 



FISCAl YliAR TOTAl, MII,I,AGES 22.23 22.23 22.23 24.22 23.36 23,36 23.36 21.87 21.70 21.70 

CITY OF KENNFR, LOUISIANA I'ROPER'I Y TAX I.EVII~S AND COl J J~C'I'ION S I.AST TEN FISCAl. YEARS (UNAUDITIiD) 
(i) NON- IOMIgSTEAI) EXI~MIVI TAX LEVY 

TAX COl ,LI~C'I'ION S AND AI)JUSTMENTS $ 4,322,962 $ 4,207,072 
4,420,417 4,788,328 4,725,618 4,680,143 4,945,611 5,077,528 5,143,207 5,262,573 

4,103,848 4,167,543 4,332,766 4,488,199 4,430,768 4,768,588 4,918,121 5,005,049 5.040.482 

PI!I~.CliNT OF I.EVY COI.I .EC fill) & AI)JUSTI~I) 97.32 94.7 I 94.28 90.49 94.98 94.67 96.42 96.86 97.31 95.78 

(1) "lhc City Cmmcil iml~lcnlentcd a $7,500 I lonlestcad Exemption beginning with fiscal year 1986. 
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TO'I AI, OU I'STANI)ING )El JNQIjliNT TAXES RI'CEIVAIiI J~ 
,207,600 ,083,950 ,314,752 ,279,679 ,396,007 ,372.837 ,210,252 ,222,334 ,306,050 
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CITY OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA ASSI';SSF~I) AND ESTIMATI'D ACq'[IAI, VA1,UF, O1: TAXABI,I" I'I~,OPI~RTY (3) I,AST TEN FISCAl, YEAI~.S (UNAUI)ITED) 

qSCAI, YIiAR I~,EA1, ESTATI 

NOTES 

PEP.SONA1, PROPERTY TAX SAI,E PI.IBI,IC SI:,RVICI~ COI/.I'ORATIONS $ 224.009,875 $ 30,829,750 $ 7,849,376 $ 22,358,090 216,726,680 215,215,880 
214,159,570 214,213,110 

37,366,492 
6,176,486 7,222,086 5,379,716 5,224,996 43,253,948 5,271,656 

27,102,242 

50,596,941 3,990,386 28,614,918 58,195,479 4,257,761 30,995,528 60,938,732 3,699,541 30,195,387 245,918,850 62,500,241 4,820,151 28,922,196 

(11 Asscssed values arc eslablishcd by tile I'arish Assessor by l)ccembcr of each year at 10 pclccnl of assumed nlarkcl V~lIllc for real properly and 15 percent of asstlnled inarkcl vMuc lbr olhcr property. A revaluation of all property is required to be complclcd every four years, qhc last revahlatioll was conlpletcd for l)eeenlbel 1996. (2) The Cily Council implcmcnlcd a $7,500 hoinestcad exemption beginning wilh the fiscal year 1986 
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RAII,WAY ROI ,I,ING STOCK $ 17,200 22,930 36,940 35,490 36,450 42,600 46,390 42,070 44,92(I 43.660 

(1) TO] AI. ASSESSMI'NTS (2) OMI';STI'AI) I'XEMIq" NON-I IOMES'I'I~AI) I';XI~MI'T $ 285,064,291 $ 90,599,205 $ 194,465,086 283.960.419 89.045.160 287,976,576 89,127,460 287,064,197 292,604,600 292,031,881 
89,362,880 90,309,400 

194,915,259 198,849,116 197,701,317 202,295,200 

TOTAl, I~S'I'IMATEI) ACTUAl, VAI,UE 
2,636,080,013 
2,645,985,200 2,681,979,220 91,683,350 200,348,531 2,678,495,093 92,339,680 330,565,379 98,398,673 336.276,911 99,263,364 99.690.817 
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211,712,725 232,166,7o6 237.Ol3.547 
2,776,329,887 3,008,210,200 3,058,838,980 3,117.163.990 



 
CITY OF KI!NNER, I ,OUISIANA PROPIsR'I Y "lAX RATI{S - I)IRECI AND OVI~RI,APPING GOVEI(NMI(N'I S ( Plil~. $100 OF ASSIiSSED VA1 .tiE) 1,ASq I"EN FISCAl. YI'ARS (UNAUI)ITlil)) 

CITY OF KliNNIiF, 
SPI{CIAI ('OI ,l,l((? I ION IJVY GIiNERAI, RI[VENU YliAF, YIAR FUND FUNDS 

NO J'EN 

416 4.16 4.16 616 616 616 616 513 513 513 

I)1~B1 SERVICI I"UNI)S WAS'I liWAl"lil~. OPH{A'I IONS FUNI) 30'IA 
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22 23 2223 22 23 2422 2336 2336 2336 21 87 2170 21 70 

PARIS 
(]) POI,I I'ICAI, SUBI)IVISIONS TOI'A 8554 6595 46(13 76 45 7574 72 85 67.62 67 62 68 86 69 29 



 
CITY OF KENNER, 1,OUISIANA RINCII'AI. TAXPAYERS OF AD VALOREM TAXI'S June 30, 1999 (UNAUDITED) 

TAXI'AYI"R TYPE OF BUSINESS Southwcsl Airlines 
1998 ASSESSED VALUATION Air Carrier $ 7,442,820 Bcll South 'l'cleconununicatons Tclcl)hone Utility CF Kcnncr Associatcs 

]:reeporl McMorall ~ntelgy Corpolalion Stcrik Company 
Treasure Chest Casino Rccrcalional Barge Kenner I Iotel lad. I~artncrship 

Relail (Mall) Casino 4,880.000 3.406.127 Oil & Gas Exploration 3,191,302 Electrical Utility 3,006,486 Shopping Center 2,761,530 
Air Carrier 2,615,920 
Casino 11 otcl 
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2,215,036 
$ 38,896,53 

1998 TAX AMOUNT $ 161,509 158,450 105,896 73,913 69,251 65,241 
59,925 56.765 
48,066 45.037 
$ 844.053 

PF.RCI~NTAGI OF TOTAl, ASSESSH) VAI,UATION 2.2 2.1 1.4 1.0 0.9 0.9 
0.8 0.8 
0.6 0.6 



FISCAl Ylih P, 

NOIliS 

( URP, EN'I AND I)EI,IQUEN'I ASSIiSSMliN I'S I)l.Jl~ AT BliGINNING OF YEAR 
$ 359,169 597.813 551.902 503N95 452.496 41 37 34 
~602 ,250 .979 314,708 275.450 
88.001 77.589 72.617 65,016 62,516 59,495 57,913 57.913 57,913 54,824 

CIIY OF KIiNNER, I,OUISIANA SPECIAl, ASSI(SSMI';NT I,EVIES AND COI,I,IgCTIONS I,AS'I TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUI)I'I I~I)) 

ASSESSMEN'I S I,EVIlil) DURING YEAR PAVING ASSliSSMEN'I S 

0,412 4,972 7,601 2.500 3,021 1,582 
3,089 423 

155 

RA'I IO OI COI,LEC'I IONS "10 AMOUN I' l}Uli 
(2) TOTAl, ASSIiSSMliN I S OU'I S I ANI}IN( A'I END OF YEAR 
597,813 551,902 503.495 

77,589 22,617 65,016 62,516 59,495 57,913 57,913 57,913 54,824 54.401 



Assessed value 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN June 30, 1999 (UNAUDITED) 

)ebl lilnit - 35% of assessed value (1) Tolal bonds payable ,ess: Special assessnlenl bonds Sales tax bonds Amonnl available for repayment, of general obligation and excess revenue bonds 
Total debt applicable to limitation ~egal debt margin 

NOTES 

$ 44,849,272 (29,272) (39,340,000) 
838,067 

342,205,098 9.771.784 

7,318,067 $ 112,453,717 

(1) l,ouisiana R.S. 39:562 allows a maximum of 10% of the assessed valuation fm bonded debt for any one purpose or 35% of the total assessed value for all purposes. 
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CI'IY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA RATIO OF NET I .ONG-TF, P.M 1)1:1~1" TO ASSF.SSI:I) VAI.UIi AND NI"I" I.()NG-TERM I)l'l~]" PIeR CAI'I'I A I.AS'I TEN FISCAl, YEARS (UNAUI)ITEI)) 

i 15;CAI (I) YEAR I'OPI JI A'I ION ASSESSI:I) VAI.UI: (IN "11 IOllSANI )S) 
I)EI~1 (2) 1)Ii113 I'AYAIII.E GROSS Sl RVICli FROM NEI .ONG-'I 1 RM MONIES I N I EI'~PI'~IS]: I,()NG-31 I{M I)I':B'I AVAII,AIII,E REVISNtIliS l)lill'l 

72,033 72,252 75,317 72,700 72,3OO 73,765 74,002 74,180 74,2261 

283,960 287,977 287,064 292,605 292,032 304,052 330,565 336,277 342,205 

36,843,448 35,189,176 38,394,904 
51,141,547 51,048,494 

4,212,995 3,241,665 3,192,081 4,171,332 6,111,699 7,118,493 7.109.036 

N(13ES: (I) Source: I.ouisiana "Itch Llniversilyfor 1988-1989 and 1991 1999; US Census Bureau ~r 1990Ccnsus. 
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30,976,181 35,153,239 

43,930,001 40,909,508 

NVI ONG-'IERM I)EIrlPI:R CAPIIA $ 44553 44160 428 72 466.74 466 14 COl ~4 616145 593.63 55149 510.86 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA P.ATIO OF ANNUAl, DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAl, BONDED DEBT TO GENERAl, GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED) 

FISCAl, YEAR PIC.INCIPAI~ 990 991 992 993 994 995 996 997 998 999 

NOTI~S 

(2) NTEREST AND I"EES TOTAl, DEI3T SERVICE 
(i) TOTAL GI~NERAL EXPI';NI)ITURI;S $ 1,566,120 $ 3,035,869 $ 4,601,989 $ 27,845,959 698,676 2,989,268 4,687,944 29,661,948 2,905,487 4,836.827 31.726,784 ,539,119 3,438,906 4,978,025 32,178,996 2,223,884 4,167,411 32,064,963 729.405 2.174.405 3.903.810 34.979.184 2,309,351 4,319,384 2,722,764 6,878,205 2,614,360 5,814,389 44,347,429 2,479,762 5,825,965 48,065,504 

(l) Includes General, Spccial Revenue Funded wilh Taxes and Debt Service Funds (2) Excludcs bond issuance cosls 
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RATIO OF I)ISBT SI!RVICI" TO TOTAl, GI';NERAI. EXPI~NI)rrLJI~.ES 6.53 5.80 5.25 5.47 3.00 1.16 0.52 5.14 3.11 2.12 



Jefferson Pa0isb Public School Syslem '1 olal direcl and overlapping debt 
Rafo of di,ccl and overlapping debt to laxablc asscsscd valuation )irccl and overlapping debt per capila 

NOH!S 

('ITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAI)I)ING I)I';BT June 30, 1999 (UNAUDITED) 

NI)EI3"I lil)NliSS AS OF 6-30-99 2-31-98 

NET AI) VAI OREM "lAX BONDI!I) I)EItT OU'I S'IANI)ING 

21,911,193 

PI{I~.CI~NTAGll APPI ,ICABI ,E TO 'IIIE CITY (I) 000% 5.07% 
AMOUNI APPI ,ICAI~I ,li TO TIlE CII'Y ,395,000 ,098,302 

) The percentage of indebtedness of the Cily's overlapping political subdivisions was determined by dividing 1he City's assessed vah]alion sul!i~cl to laxalioll b)' the total assessed valualion subject to taxation of the overlapping subdivision 
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4.6% 213 



ISCAI YF.AR 990 991 
992 993 994 995 
996 997 998 999 
NO'I'ES 

(1) I'OPUI,ATION 72,033 72,033 
72,252 75,317 72,700 72,300 
73,765 74,002 74,180 74.220 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA I)EMOGRAI'IIIC STATISTICS LAST TEN IqSCAI, YEARS (UNAUI)ITED) 
(2) PER CAPITA PERSONAl, INCOME 17,101 17,489 
18,340 19,100 20,170 20,170 
20,170 21,973 22,912 
(4) 

(3) UNI":MPLOYMENq RATES 5.2% 5.6% 
6.2% 5.9% 6.4% 5.0% 
4.3% 3.8% 3.30% 
(4) 

(1) Source: l.ouisiana Tech University for 1987-1989 and 1991-1999; U.S. Census Bureau for 1990 Census (2) Sourcc: United Slales Census Bureau, Regional Economic Information System. Figures apply Io Jefferson Parish, in which Ihe City of Kenner is an incorporaled municipality. 
(3) Source: Louisiana Department of l,abor for calendar years, lqgures apply to Jefferson Parish, in which the City of Kenner is an incorporated municipality. (4) Infounation nol yet available 
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NOTES 

FISCAl YEAR 990 991 992 993 994 995 996 997 998 999 

CITY OF KENNF, R, I.OUISIANA PROPERTY VALUE AND PRIVATE CONSTRUCTION PERMITS AND VAI.UE LAST TEN I"ISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED) 

(1) ASSESSED PROPERTY VALUE $ 285,064,29 283.960.419 287.976.576 287.064.197 292,604,600 292,031,88 304.052.405 330.565.379 336,276,9 342,205,098 

(I) Asscsscd values Iiorn fifth fable prcscnted (2) Source: City of Kcnncr (?ode Enforcement Dcparlmen 
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CONSTRUCTION PERMITS (2 
NUMBEP, OF BUILDING PERMITS $ 26,127,495 32,872,520 

27.975.909 
36,140,565 74.900.927 32,283,893 66,281,179 38,348,546 



)ate of Incorporation: l)eeembcr 13, 1913 Form ofGovcrmnenl: |lomc Rule Chartcr; Mayor-Council ],'ornl Average FAcvalion: -5 ]:eel 
Area: 15 square miles Number ofSIrecl l.ighls: 6,853 Number of llousing Units: 27,017 ire Proleclioll 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS June 30, 1999 (UNAUD1TED) 

Rating: 2 on a scale of 1 to 10 with 1 being the highest (l.ouisiana Property Insurance Association) Number of Slalions: 5 Nulnber of Commissioned Firemen: 82 Number of Pieces of F.quipnmnt: 17 Police Proleclion 
Number of Stations: 2 Ntlnlber ofConllllissioned Policelllen: 142 

1 62 

Sewerage Trealnlenl Trcalmenl Capacily: 18.25 MGD Number of Treatlnenl Plants: 3 
Number of Low Lift Slalions: 76 Number of Mi|es on Colleclion Syslcln: 391 Discharge Point: Mississippi Rivm Culture and Recreation Ar~ Gallery 
Number ofMuseulns: 7 Number of Theatres: 4 Number of Parks: 2 Ntlnl ber of Gynl nasitlnls: 9 
Nulnber of Playgrounds 
Number of Wheelchair Tracks: 3 Number of Employees 
Civil Service: 240 Unclassified: 485 
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 
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REBOWE & COMPANY (ERTIFIF.I) PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CONSULTANTS A PROF [ SSIONAL CORPORATION 3501 N Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ P.O. Box 6952 ~ Metairie, LA 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAl, CONTROl. OVER FINANCIAl, REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUD1TING STANDARDS 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the Counc City of Kenner, Louisiana We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of City of Kenner, Louisiana as of and for the yeal ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated December 17, 1999. We conducted our audit ill accordance with generany accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of tile United Slates. Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Kenner's general-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not all objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Kenner's internal control over financial reporting in order to detenniae our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general-purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on lhe internal con~trol over financial reporting, llowever, we noted a matter involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation fl~at we consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City of Kenner's ability to record, process, sunmaarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of managemenl in the general-purpose financial statements. Ttle reportable condition is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 99-1. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal conhol components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk thai misstatements in anmunts that would be material in relation to the general-purpose fiuancial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the nomlal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration office internal conlrol over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable condiiions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all ieportable condilions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, the reportable condition described above was not considered to bc a material weakness. We also noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to management of the City of Kenner, Louisiana in a separate letter dated December 17, 1999. 
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This report is intended solely for the information of management, the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
December 17, 1999 
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REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBIJC ACCOUNTANTS CONSULTANTS A PHOF f SSIONA[ CORPORA] ION 3501 N. Causeway Blvd. , Suite 810 ~ EO. Box 6952 ~ Metairie, LA 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACIt MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the Council City of Kenner, Louisiana Compliance We have audited the compliance of the City of Kenner, Louisiana with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. The City of Kenuer's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results sectiou of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with tile requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City of Kenner's managenlent. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on tile City of Kenner's compliance based on our audit. We conducted our audit of cmnpliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of tile United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those s~andards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtai~l reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requiremeuts referred to above lhal could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Kenner's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe thai our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City of Kenner's compliance with those requirements. In our opinion, the City of Kenner, Louisiana complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. Internal Control Over Compliance The management of the City of Kenner, Louisiana is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grauts applicable to federal pl'ogranrs. lu planuing and performing our audit, we considered the City of Kenner's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determiue our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMI~ Circular A-133. 
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Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in file internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which tile design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and nol be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation thal we consider to be material weaknesses, This report is intended solely for the information of management, the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should nol be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
December 17. 1999 
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CITY OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA SCIlEI)ULE Of EXPEND] I UES OF FEDERAl. AWARDS Year Ended June 30. 1999 

)I3)AR3 MI,:N'I OF IIOUSING AND IARBAN I)EVEI.OPMI~N3 Direct Programs: Comn~unity Developmcnl Block Grant* Conlnrunity I)cvclopmcnl Block Grant* "1 oral Direct I'rograms Passed "1 hrough Jeffi~rson Parish: Ilome Inveslmcnl Partncrship Program (I IGMI!) Ilomc Inveslmcnl Partnership Program (I IOME) 30101 Passed Through Jefferson Parish Passed "1 hrough Slate Dcparhncnt of Social Services, Office of Comnmnity Services Enrcrgency Sheller Grants Program qolal Passed Through Slate Deparlment of Social Services, Office of Community Services "10"l AI. I }EIIAWI MENT OF I lOUSING AND URBAN DEVEI.GPMEN I 13,S I)H'ARTMI~N] OF JIASTICE Passed 1 hrough I.ouisiana Commission on Law I nforcemenl: Slrccl Gang Reduction Program "1 otal Passed Through Louisiana COlnnlission on Law Enforcemenl Gfflce of C ommunity Oriented Policing Services: Cops Mole '96" Cops Universal I liring Program* 3 otal Office of Communily Oriented Policing Services Office of Juslice I)[ograms: Local ].aw Enfbrcemenl Block Grant* Local I.aw Enlbrcenlenl Hloek Grant* Local Law lhlfbrcelnenl Hloek Grant* ]olal Of flee of Jus0cc Programs qO'IAI. I.IS I)I!I'AR'I MEN'I OF JUS]]CI NA'I IGNAI. I IIGIIWAY "IRAI 1 IC SAFETY ADMINIS3 RA3 ION I'a~sed q hrough Louisiana I lighway Safcly Conlmission: Kenner Police Patrols ()vet Safe Sheets Everywhere (POSSE) Buckle Up Louisiana ] O'1AL NA3 IONAL tlIGIIWAY "IRAI I IC SAFE'I Y ADMINISTRA3 ION 

CFDA NUMBER GRAN'I NUMBER 
4.218 B-98-M( -22-0008 4.218 B-97-MC-22-0008 
4.239 M96-DC-22-0207 

I)OAfl 370-6133 I)SS# 06588 

6.710 97-CM-WX- 1080 6.710 95-CC-WX-0081 
6.592 98-LB-VX3609 6.592 97-I.B-VX3609 6.592 96-LB-VX3609 

20.600 20.600 
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17.500 9991-37 

'I O'1 AI. REVENUE FI~I)ERAI GRANT AND RECEIPTS ANI) O'111ER AWARD RECOGNIZED EXPENI)FI IIRI!S 
$ 992,000 $ 1,031,000 812,190 812,190 
201,300 213,371 36,348 98.385 34.733 
5,945 15,945 

812,190 812 190 
36,348 98,385 34733 
5.945 
5.945 $ 962,868 $ 962,868 

6,000 $ 16,000 16.000 
397,274 851.156 47,274 230,205 277.479 
190,938 189,424 I 18,659 224,680 8,659 

50,528 $ 39,526 1,360 1,341 

6,000 
47,274 230,205 277.479 
18,659 66,046 284 705 

39,526 1,341 



 
CITY OF KENNFR, LOUISIANA SCI IEI)ULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FI'~I)ERA I, AWARDS (CON l INUED Year Ended June 30, 1999 

CFDA NIJMBER GRANT NUMBER 
"1 OTAI. q O'['AI. REVENUE GRAN'I ANI) RECEIP I S AWARD RECOGNIZED I:I(DERAI, EMERGENCY MANAGEMEN'I AGENCY Passed Through Mildary l)eparlment Office of Emergency Preparedness: 1 lazard Mitigation Granl Progranl (Secfoa 404) 83.548 1049-053-0005 $826,658 $ 3 OTAI. FEI)ERAI. EMFRGI!NCY MANAGI MEN'I AGliNCY BIIREAII OF JUS] ICli ASSISJ ANCE I'asscd ] hrough Louisiana Commissio/l on I.aw I':nforcement: Mulli-Jurlsdicfionat Drug Enforcen',en~ Task Force Mulli-Jurisdicllonal Drug Enforcement Task Force Street Salcs Disruplion "10] AL BUREAU O1: JtJSq ICE ASSIS'I ANCE U.S. DI PARqMEN'I OF TRANSI'ORq A'I ION Pasged "1 htough I.ouisiana Dcparlnlenl of'hans[~rlagOn and Development: Loyola Drive hnprovenlenls (I)BE, WIlE Scl Aside I'tojccl, Urban System Ptojccl) qO'lTil. [IS I)IiPARTMI!NI OI 3 RANSPGRTATION 

16.579 16.579 16.579 
State Projccl # 742-07-0056 I'AP# STP-8668 (002)M 

]OJAI, FEI)ERAI AND O'111ER EXPENI)I'I tJRES 

25~00 I0,000 7,300 

US DEEICE OF J~DUCA ] ION I'assed Through Slate I)eparmlent of Education: (]overnogs Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Ael 84.186A 28-99-76L2-D 9,451 $ 7,399 $ 7,399 ] DqAI. US OFFICE OF EDUCAq'ION "IO'IAI, FI!I)ERAI FINANCIAl. ASSIS] ANCE 

* Major Program 

]hc accompanying Nolcs 1o Schedule of E~pendilutes of Fcdcral Awards arc an inlegral pari of this schedule. 168 

$ 7,399 $ 7,399 
$ 109~542 $ 109,542 



 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS June 30. 1999 
NOTE A - SCOPE OF AUDIT PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS. OMB CIRCUI.AR A-133, "AUDITS OF STATES, LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, AND NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS" AND 3'111 SINGLE AUDIT ACT OF 1984 AND 1996 AMENDMENTS All federal grant operations of fire City of Kenner, Louisiana, are included in the scope of tile single audit. Those programs which were major grants and which were selected for specific testing included: Community Development Block Grants (CFDA No. 14.218) COPS Universal Hiring Program (CFDA No. 16.710) COPS More '96 (CFDA No. 16.710) Local Law Enforcement Block Grant (CFDA No. 16.592) The Department of Housing and Urban Development has been designated as the City's oversight agency for tile single audit. NOTE B - FISCAL PERIOD AUDITED Single audit tesling procedures were performed for program transactions occurring during the year ended June 30, 1999. Revenues and expenditures recorded prior to July 1, 1986 for programs with contractual reimbursenrenl periods commencing prior to that date were outside the scope of the single audit. These prior period revenues and expeuditures are subject to file audit requirements of the applicable federal funding sources. Grant terms are indicated in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. NOTE C - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BASIS OF PRESENTATION The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Graut revenues are recorded for financial reporting purposes when the City has lnet the qualifications for the respective grants. Several programs are funded jointly by State of Louisiana appropriations and federal funds. Costs incurred in programs partially funded by federal grants are applied against federal grant funds to the extent of revenue available when they properly apply to the grant. 2. ACCRUED AND DEFERRED REIMBURSEMENT Various reimbursement procedures are used for federal awards received by the City. Consequently, timing differcuces between expenditures and program reimbursements can exist at the beginning and end of the year. Accrued balances at year end represent an excess of reimbursable expenditures over cash reimbursenrents received. Generany, accrued balances caused by differences ill the timing of cash reimbursements and expenditures will be reversed in the remaining grant period. NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE In December 1992, City of Kenner issued a long-term note for $700,000. The proceeds were to be loaned in accordance with the HUD Section 108 Loau Guarantee program. The loan did not materialize, therefore, the proceeds have been invested to finance the payment of the note payable. The investment is accounted for in the Communily l)evelopmeo! Block Grant Special Revenue Fund. "Ilae long term note is payable over a period of 6 years with interest payable senri-annually at rates ranging from 6.59% to 6.83%. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO SCHEDULE O17 EXPENDITLIRES OF FEDERAl, AWARDS (CONTINUEI)) June 30. 1999 
NOTE D -. NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED) At June 30, 1999, the note payable had an outstandint; balance of $125,000, and is recorded in the General Loug Term Debt Account Group. The following is a schedule of future payments on the note as of June 30, 1999 totaling $129,269, which includes interest of $4,269: Year Ending June 30. 2000 
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Future Minimum _ Payments $ 129,269 



 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
A~ SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESUI.TS 1. The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the general propose financial statements of the City of Kenner, Louisiana. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of City of Kennel Louisiana, which would be t~equired to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards., were disclosed during the audit. 4. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of internal control over major federal award programs are reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with Requirements' Applicable to Eacl Major Program and lnternal Control Over Compliance in Accordattce with OMB Circular A-133. 5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of Kenner, Louisiana expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal programs. 6. Audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for the City of Kenner, Louisiana are reported in this schedule. 7. The programs tested as major programs include: 
Community Development Block Grants COPS Universal Hiring Program COPS More '96 Local Law Enforcemem Block Grant 8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000 9. City of Kennel Louisiana does not qualify as a low-risk auditee B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

99-1. Museum Revenues 
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CFDANumber 14.218 16.710 16.710 16.592 



 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
Internal controls should be in place that provide reasonable assurance thai all revenues collected me remilled to the City's Finance Department. Effect: Because of the failure to establish sufficient collection procedures, misappropriation of assets may occur and not be identified timely. Recommendation: Additional measures should be taken to strengthen the existing internal controls over the collection and remittance of museum revenues. Response: See management's corrective action plan for their response 

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEI)ERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT QUESTIONED COSTS U. S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 99-2. COPS Universal Hiring Program - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No. 96-CC-WX-0081 Condition: As reported in the prior year, twelve (l 2) officers were hired under the COPS Universal Hiring Program. One of these officers was hired prior to the grant award date Criteria: Eligibility for the program requires all officers to be hired after tile grant award date. In addition, the federal award specifies a time period during which the entity may use the federal funds (period of availability). 
The total salaries and benefits for this officer in the amount of $23,000 per year may be disallowed. $ 70,946 Cause Procedures in place for the hiring requiremenls of officers under the COPS Universal Hiring Program were not followed. Reconmlendalion: Procedures should be implemented to ensure these requirements are met. Response See management's corrective action plan for their response 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 
99-3. COPS Universal Hiring Program - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No. 96-CC-WX-0081 Condition: The local share match has not changed during the grant period, nor has the federal share match changed in accordance with fl~e terms of the grant agreement. This condition was also reported in the prior year. 
Matching contributions may be applied at any time during the life of the grant provided that the full matching share is obligated by the end of the grant period. In addition, as a percentage of the total, the local share must increase every year during the grant period and the federal share must decrease. Effect: 

QUESTIONEI) COSTS 

The local share increase/federal share decrease matching requirement is not being met. None Cause Procedures are not in place to ensure that the requirements are met for the local share increase/federal share decrease. l~,ecommendation: Procedures should be established to ensure the local share increases every year during the grant period and the federal share decreases. Response: See management's corrective action plan for their response 99-4. COPS More '96 - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No. 97-CM-WX-1080 Condition As reported in the prior year, a COPS More '96 grant was awarded to the City for the purchase of equipmeut. A disbursement for equipment in the amount of $350,000 was reimbursed by the grantor. Iiowever, the disbursement was made prior to the graut award dale. Criteria Eligibility for the program requires all reimbursable costs to be made after the grant award date. In addition, the federal award specifies a time period during which the entity may use the federal funds (period of availability). 
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Effect 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

The costs for the entire grant award are subject to being disallowed Cause Procedures in place to ensure eligibility of costs under the program were not fonowed Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure these requirements are met Response: See management's corrective action plan for their response TOTAL U. S. DEPARIMENT OF JUSTICE 
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QUESTIONED COSTS 
$ 397,274 



 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
A. 1NTFRNAL CONTROL FINDINGS 98-1. Bank Reconciliations Condilion Bank reconciliations were not perfomaed on a timely basis Current Status The City is performing bank reconciliations on a timely basis. Accordingly, this finding is cleared at June 30, 1999. 98-2. Mauual Checks 
Proper procedures for recording manual checks are not being followed Current Status: Procedures have been implemented to ensure all manual checks are recorded on a nmnthly basis Accordingly, this finding is cleared at June 30, 1999. 98-3. Sel~Insmance 
As noted in the prior year, lhe City currently has a third parly administzator handling the processing of claims for the General Liability, Auto and Worker's Compensation Self-Insurance programs. The current accounting system calls for the administrator to provide the City wifll "loss reports" detailing claims incurred, claims paid, and reserves on claims each month. We noled thai the loss reports were not being reconciled to the actual disbursements as recorded on the City's general ledger. Currenl Status Our claims administrator is now reconciling the check register to the related general ledger accouuts ou a montlfly basis for all self-insurance programs. Procedures have been established to reconcile such disbursements to the loss reports. Accordingly, this finding is cleared at June 30, 1999. B. FINDINGS RELATED TO FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS 98-4. COPS Universal Hiring Program CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No. 96-CC-WX-008 
Procedures are not adequate to ensure all requests for reimbursements are received Current Status: Procedures are now in place to ensure all requests are received and recorded on the general ledger Accordingly, this finding is cleared at June 30, 1999. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings (Continued) For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
98-5. C'OPS Universal Hiring Program - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No. 96-CC-WX-0081 Condition: Twelve (12) officers were hired under the COPS Universal Hiring Program. One of these officers was hired prior to the grant award date. Current Status: 

98-6. COPS Universal Hiring Program - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No. 96-CC-WX-0081 Coudition The local share match has not increased during the grant period, nor has the federal share match decreased. Current Status: No significant improvements have been made in the local share increase/federal share decrease matching requirement. This finding is repeated in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (99-3) at Junc 30, 1999. 98-7. COPS More '96 - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No. 97-CM-WX-1080 Condition A COPS More '96 granl was awarded to the City for the purchase of equipment. A disbursement for equipment in the amount of $350,000 was reimbursed by the grantor. However, the disbursement was made prior to the grant award date. Current Status: l'rocedures are now in place to ensure the requirements for reimbursable costs are met. The Cily received correspondence from the Department of Justice requesting the return of grant funds e~pended for the purchase of equipment before the grant award date. ttowever, negotiations are still in progress as to the final outcome of this matter. This finding is repeated in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (99-4) at June 30, 1999. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings (Continued) For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
98-8. COPS Universal Hiring Program - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No. 96-CC-WX-0081 COPS More '96-CFDA No. 16.710: Grant No, 97-CM-WX-1080 Condition The Financial Status Reports are not being filed on a timely basis Cun'ent Status Financial Status Reports are being filed in a timely manner. Accordingly, this finding is cleared at June 30 1999. 
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REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CONSULTANTS A PROF E SSIONAL GORPORA~ ION 3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ P.O. Box 6952 ~ Metairie, LA 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-9123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 
December l 7, 1999 
Honorable Mayor and Member oflhe Counc City of Kenner, Louisiana 
We have audited tile gcncral-purposc finaucial statements of tile City of Kenner, Louisiana for the year ended Jtme 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated December 17, 1999. As parl of our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine Ihc nature, tinting and extent of our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on tile internal control. 
However, during our audil we became awarc of matters that are opportmfities for strengthening internal control and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompmlies this letter summarizes out- comments and recommendations regarding these mailers. We previously reported on the City's inlcrnal control in a separately issued report entitled Independenl Audi/or's Reporl on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial RcT~orling Based on an Audit q/'Financial Stalemenls Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated December 17, 1999. 
We will review the status of lhcsc matters during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed many of these recommendations with various City pcrsonncl and have included their responses. Wc will be pleased to discuss these rccolnmcndations with you in further detail at your convcnience, perform any additional study of these matters, or assist you in implementing the rccommendations. 
Sincerely 



OBSERVATIONS, RECOMMENI)ATIONS, AND MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
1. YEAR2000 ISSUE Observation: We understand tbat tim City recognizes the Year 2000 issue and has assessed the effect of the Year 2000 issue oll its systems. This Year 2000 project should be monitored closely to ensure completion before mission-critical systems begin to fail. Such failures may be evident before January 1, 2000. lfthe City of Komer fails to complete this project timely, it may experience costly and significant application-program failures that could prevent it from performing its nonual processing activities. Depending on the extent of system failures, noncompliance could have catastrophic consequences for tile City. 
Also, the City of Kcnner should implement additional verification procedures to test the accuracy of information received from its vendors, service providers, bankers, and other lhird-party organizations with whom it exchanges date-dependent information, because these organizations also must become year 2000 ready. The City of Kcmlcr also should satisfy itself that vendors, service providers, bankers, and other third-party organizations will not experience problems relating to the Year 2000 issue that could affect the City of Kenner's operations or casb flows. Rceommendalion: We recommend thai the City complete the necessary actions to remcdiate or replace, and test all systems that may be negatively affected by the Year 2000 issue, particularly mission-critical systems. Mana~emenl's Con'ective Action Plan All of lhe City's computer systems have been reviewed and addrcsscd for Year 2000 compliance. The contact person responsible for the corrective action is the Chief Financial Officer, Duke P. McConnell who may be reached at (504) 468-4052. 
2. GASB STATEMENTNO. 34 
Obselwation: In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Stmldards Board ("GASB") issued GASB Stalement No. 34 "Basic Financial Statements" effective for the City of Kenncr in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. GASB Statement No. 34 establishes new financial reporting requirements for both state and local governments. When implemented, it will create new information and will restructure much of the financial infonnation thal governments bare presented in the past. GASB Statement No. 34 was developed to make mmual reports more comprehensive and easier to understand by the reader. 



OBSERVATIONS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
As slated, GASB Statemenl No. 34 requires that tile City of Kenner significantly change lhe way it reporls its fiuancial data. The most significant changes will be thai lhe Cily will report financial iuformation for all governmental fired type accounting utilizing the full accrual method of accounting as opposed to the modified accrual melhod currently uscd. Thc City will be required to rccord and depreciate all capital assets, including infi'astructure, and to climinale both the Gcncral Fixed Asset Accounting Group and lhc Gencral l,ong- Tcrm Debt Accounting Group. The City also will present dual financial slalements wilh presentation of both "Government-wide Financial Statements" and the traditional "Fund Financial Statements". The City will also eliminate all inlcrfund transactions for reporting purposes, including inlerfimd loans, inlerfuud services providcd and used, and inlcrfund transfers. 
Although the full effect of GASB Statcment No. 34 will not be known until its implementation, the effects of these changes could cause certain funds to report deficit fired balances. In addition, GASB Statemcnt No. 34 will require additional man-hours to implemenl. 
Rccommcndalion Thc City should become familiar with the new reporting model so thai it can plan to properly implement GASB No. 34 by its cffeclivc date. Mana~ement's Corrective Action Plan Wc are aware of GASB Slatcmenl No. 34 and will address its implcmcnlation by the effective date. The contact person responsible for the corrective action is the Chief Financial Officer, Duke P. McConnell who may be reached at (.504) 468-4052. 
3. COPS- UNIVI*;RSAI,HIRING GRANT Observation For the year coded Junc 30, 1999, the Police Deparlmcnl requested reimbursement of approximately $945,000 fi'om the Department of Justice in connection with its COPS Universal lliring Grant. However, actual reimbursable expenditurcs for the 12 officers hircd under the COPS Universal lliring Program was approximately $935,200. This resullcd in an overpayment of approximately $9,800 as of June 30, 1999. 
Recommendation The City should closely monitor the grant to ensure that its request for federal reimbursement reflects actual expenditures. 



OBSERVATIONS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN Manaacment's Con'ecfive Action Plan Rcimburscnlenl requests for 1999 2000 will reflect actual rcimbursablc cxpenditurcs to offscl overpayments from 1998-1999. 
4. FIXED ASSETS Observation Wc noted that procedures are noi in place for the tagging of fixed assets Recommendation In order to safeguard asscls and to maintain an accurate inventory of fixed assels, the City should implement procedures to tag all of its fixed assets and to properly record the lag number related to each fixed asset. 
Manaaemcnl's ColTective Action Plan Adequalc controls arc in place to properly safeguard the City's fixed assets. Any additional safeguarding of fixed assets such as tagging is not deemed to be cost beneficial to the City al this lime. The contact person responsible for the corrcctivc action is the Chief l;inancial Officer, Duke P. MeConnell who may be reached at (504) 468-4052. 
5. BANK RECONCILIATIONS Observation: Bank reconciliations are not reviewed timely and the required adjustmcnls for reconciling items arc not being recorded on a timely basis. 
Recommendation Procedures for lllc timcly review of bank reconciliations need to bc enforced 
Mana~zcmcnt's Corrective Action Plan Bank reconciliations are reviewed periodically by the Chief Financial Officer. llowcver, the Assistanl l)irector of the Finance Department has been assigned to review the bank reconciliations on a monthly basis. The contact person rcsponsible for the corrcclivc action is the ChicfFinancial Officer, Dukc P. McConnell who may bc reached at (504) 468-4052. 
CIIECK S EQU |,:NC|,] Observation: During our review of the City's check registers, wc noted several large gaps in check numbers. Upon inquiry to accounts payable personnel, certain boxes of defective checks were rclumcd to the vendor, however, such chcck numbers were not logged as relurncd or voided. 



Recommendalion 
OBSERVATIONS, RECOMMENDATIONS, ANI) MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION P1.AN 

Procedures should bc implemenled to ensure/hat all checks are sequentially accoumed for. A log should bc maimained lo lrack all checks, bolh issued mid voided. In lhe evenl a box of checks is deemed dcfcctivc, such checks should be voided and logged as such. Mana~cmcnt's Corrcclive Action Plan A log is mainlained to keep track of all checks bolh issued and voided. From now on, any defcclive checks received from the printing company will be voided and nol rcprinted, thereby mainlaining lhe propcr sequence of checks uscd. The contacl person responsible for the correclivc aclion is lhc Chief Financial Officer, Duke P. McConnell who may be reached at (504) 468-4052. 


